
SCHEDULED COMMITTEE MEETINGS to be held in the Multi-Purpose Room #236, second floor of the City 
Administration Building, 201 Spring Street: 
 

• Monday, April 7th, 5:30 p.m. is the next Committee meetings. 
 Committee agendas will be available on Friday, March 28th, 

2014.  
 

SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, MARCH 25th, 2014 
 

 
5:55 p.m. Pre Meeting Activities 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
  Invocation – JIM REED 
 
6:00 p.m. OFFICIAL AGENDA 

 
1. Large Print agendas are available at the back of the room, next to the main entrance 
 
2. Call to Order - Mayor Doug Sprouse 

      
3. Roll Call – City Clerk Denise Pearce 
 
  Recognition of a Quorum 
 
4. Recognitions by Mayor Doug Sprouse 
 

Rick McWhorter – 2014 Professional of the Year Award by the  
                               Arkansas Recreation & Parks Association.  

 
5. Comments from Citizens 
 

The Council will hear brief comments from citizens during 
this period on issues not on the agenda.  No action will be 
taken tonight.  All comments will be taken under 
advisement.   
 

6. Reports 
 

a) Building Inspection Activity Report for February  Pg. 3 
 
  
7. Approval of Minutes  

 
  a) March 11th, 2014 Pg.'s 4-15 
 
8. Procedural Motions 
 

A. Entertain Motion to read all Ordinances and Resolutions by title only. 
 
B. Entertain Motion to dispense with the rule requiring that ordinances be fully and 

distinctly read on three (3) different days for ordinances listed on this agenda as item 
numbers….9-A & B; 10; 12-C & D; 14. (Motion must be approved by two-thirds (2/3) 
of the council members).  

 
9. Planning Commission Recommendations by Planning Director Patsy Christie: 
 

A.  An Ordinance rezoning 5.23 acres owned by the Steenburgen Family, LLC from 
General Commercial District (C-2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District (C-5) and 
declaring an emergency. Pg.'s 16-18 

 
B.  An Ordinance rezoning 1 acre + owned by Jimmy and Mary Allred from 

Neighborhood Office District (O-1) to General Commercial District (C-2) and 
declaring an emergency.  Pg.'s19-21 

 
C. A Resolution approving a Conditional Use at 589 White Road, the Church of NWA 

as set forth in Ordinance No. 4030. Pg.'s 22-23 
WAIVER: 



 
D.  A Resolution approving a waiver street improvements, drainage, curbs, gutters, 

and sidewalks as set forth in Ordinance No. 3725 to Jim Cash in connection with a 
large scale development  located at 5190 Highway 112. Pg.'s 24-25  

 
10. Ordinance Committee Report and Recommendations by Chairman Mike Overton:  
 
 An Ordinance amending Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale, 

Arkansas, and for other purposes.  (Committee recommended approval) Pg.'s 26-41 
 
11. Police & Fire Committee Report and Recommendations by Chairman Eric Ford:   
 

A. A Resolution amending Section 4.10 of the Personnel and Procedures Manual for 
the City of Springdale, Arkansas.  (Committee recommended approval) Pg.'s 42-45 

 
B. A Resolution adopting the City of Springdale, Arkansas, Emergency Operations 

Plan for the City Council and the City of Springdale. (Committee recommended 
approval) Pg. 46 

 
C.  A Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into an agreement for 

Automatic Mutual Aid between the Springdale Fire Department and the Lowell Fire 
Department. Pg.'s 47-53 

 
D. A Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into an agreement for 

Emergency Medical Services with Benton County, Arkansas. Pg.'s 54-58 
 

E.  A Resolution authorizing execution of a Construction Management Contract for 
Fire Department Improvements projects in the 2012 Bond Improvement Program. 
Pg.'s 59-117 

 
12.   Street & CIP Committee Reports and Recommendations by Chairman Rick Evans: 
 

A.  A Resolution authorizing a joint street project with the City of Bethel Heights. Pg. 
118 

 
B. A Resolution by the City Council of the City of Springdale to appropriate funds for 

planting trees on Don Tyson Parkway. Pg.'s 119-120 
 

C.  An Ordinance to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract for the 
planting of trees on Don Tyson Parkway; to waive competitive bidding; to declare an 
emergency; and for other purposes. Pg. 121 

 
D. An Ordinance to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract for the 

purchase of traffic signal poles/mast arms for the Don Tyson Parkway/40th Street 
Intersection Traffic Signal; to waive competitive bidding; to declare an emergency; 
and for other purposes.  Pg.'s 122-123 

 
13. Personnel Committee Report and Recommendations by Chairwoman Kathy Jaycox:   
 
 A Resolution amending Section 4.10 of the Personnel and Procedures Manual for the 

City of Springdale, Arkansas. Pg. 124 
 
14.  An Ordinance ordering the razing (demolition) and removal of a certain residential 

structure within the City of Springdale, Arkansas, located at 4003 S. Thompson Street; 
to declare an emergency and for other purposes. Pg.'s 125-126 
 

15. Comments from Department Heads. 
16. Comments from Council Members. 
17. Comments from City Attorney. 
18. Comments from Mayor Sprouse. 
19. Adjournment. 
 



Permits laued 

Accessory Structure 5 

Banner & Temporary Sign Permit 4 

Business License 0 

Commercial Addition Permit 0 

Commercial Alteration Pennit 6 

Commercial Building Permit 0 

Demolition Permit 2 

Electrical Permit 10 

Garage Sale Permits 20 

Mechanical Permit 9 

Plumbing Permit 22 

Residential Addition Permit 0 

Residential Alteration Permit 6 

Residential Pool Permit 2 

Residential Single Family Permit 26 

Sign Permit 9 

Totals 121 
Average 

City of Springdale's 

Mayor Doug Sprouse and City Council 
Members 

Month of February, 2014 

Total lnapectloftl Total SF ToUIIValue TotaiFeeli 

11 0.00 $0.00 $661.00 

0 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

25 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

29 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

50 0.00 $0.00 $2,090.61 

13 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

0 0.00 $0.00 $100.00 

8 0.00 $21,004.91 $267.30 

0 0.00 $0.00 $200.00 

9 0.00 $68,857.08 $477.00 

23 0.00 $36,025.00 $531.05 

13 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

9 0.00 $0.00 $726.00 

4 0.00 $0.00 $958.00 

350 60,858.00 $6,324,343.00 $23,278.00 

0 0.00 $0.00 $131.41 

544 60,858.00 $6,450,229.99 $29,420.37 
34 3,803.63 $403,139.37 $1,838.77 

MYGOV.US City of Springdale 1 Mayor Doug SproU&e and City Council Mambars 1 Printed 03105r.i!014 at 11 :38 Nit P~~ge 1 of 1 

tr) 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11, 2014 

The City Council of the City of Springdale met in regular session on March 11, 2014, in 
the City Council Chambers, City Administration Building. Mayor Doug Sprouse called 
the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Roll call was answered by: 

Doug Sprouse 
Brad Bruns 
Jeff Watson 
Mike Overton 
Eric Ford 
Mike Lawson 
Rick Evans 
Jim Reed 
Kathy Jaycox 
EmestCate 
Denise Pearce 

Department heads present: 

Wyman Morgan 
Patsy Christie 
SamGoade 
Kathy O'Kelley 
Mike Irwin 
Mike Chamlee 
Rick McWhorter 
Courtney Kremer 
Alan Pugh 
MarkGutte 

AGENDA ITEM ADDED 

Mayor 
Ward3 
Ward3 
Ward2 
Ward 1 
Ward4 
Ward2 
Ward I 
Ward4 
City Attorney 
City Clerk/Treasurer 

Director of Finance & Admin. 
Planning Director 
Public Works Director 
Police Chief 
Fire Chief 
Chief Building Official 
Parks & Recreation Director 
Animal Services Director 
Engineering Director 
IT Director 

Aldennan Reed made the motion to add a Resolution to tonight's agenda as item 14 
regarding a gift of land from JHT on Don Tyson Parkway. Alderman Jaycox made the 
second. 

There was a voice vote of all ayes and no nays. 

INVITATION FROM CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

Bill Rogers extended an invitation to City Council members to come to City Future N 
which will be held on November S-7, 2014 in Eureka Springs. There will be about 90 
members from the business community that will attend. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Alderman Jaycox moved the minutes of the February 25, 2014 City Council meeting be 
approved as presented. Alderman Reed made the second. 

There was a voice vote of all ayes and no nays. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS READ BY TITLE ONLY 

Alderman Reed made the motion to read all Ordinances and Resolutions by title only and 
to dispense with the rule requiring that ordinances be fully and distinctly read on three (3) 
different days for all items listed on this agenda. Alderman Evans made the second. 

"'it 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11, 2014 

The vote: 

Yes: Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans 

No: None 

RESOLUTION NO. 29-14- AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A GENERATOR 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH UNITED ENGINES. LLC 

Wyman Morgan presented a Resolution authorizing the execution of a general 
maintenance agreement with United Engines LLC for ten City of Springdale facilities 
which have backup generators. 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A GENERATOR MUUNTENANCE AGREEMENT 
WITH UNITED ENGINES, LLC 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale currently has ten (1 0) different facilities with 
backup electric generators that require maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, the successful operation of these generators during a power outage 
is critical; and 

WHEREAS, having all of the generators on one contract improves perfonnance 
and reduces the over all costs; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to 
execute an inspection, maintenance and repair agreement for emergency standby 
equipment for the annual amount of$10,430.64 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day ofMarch, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 29-14. 

., 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

RESOLUTION NO. 30-14- APPROVING REAPPOINTMENTS OF BRIAN POWELL 
AND KEVIN PRESLEY TO THE SPRINGDALE PLANNING COMMISSION 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented a Resolution approving reappointments of Brian 
Powell and Kevin Presley to the Springdale Planning Commission. 

RESOLUTION NO. _ _ _ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING RE-APPOINTMENTS TO THE 
SPRINGDALE PLANNING COMMISSION. 

WHEREAS, Brian Powell, and Charles "Kevin" Parsley, have been serving on 
the Springdale Planning Commission, and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended Brian Powell be reappointed to Seat #1, and 
Charles "Kevin" Parsley be reappointed to Seat #2, on the Springdale Planning 
Commission; said terms expiring January 31, 2018, in accordance with Section 90-26 of 
the Springdale Code of Ordinances; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS that Brian Powell, Seat #1 and Charles 
"Kevin" Parsley, Seat #2 is hereby reappointed to the Springdale Planning Commission 
for four-year terms, with each term expiring January 31st, 2018. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ dayofMarch, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, CITY ATTORNEY 

Alderman Evans moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Reed made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 30-14. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4771 - AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 3.5 (C) OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES 

Planning Director Patsy Christie presented an Ordinance amending Article 6, Section 3.5 
(c) of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale and for other purposes, pertaining 
to temporary open-air enterprises. The amendment allows temporary open-air enterprises 
to operate at any special event in the City of Springdale without the need for a temporary 
open air enterprise permit. 

Planning Commission recommended approval at the March 4, 2014 meeting. 

\C 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCll.. 
MARCH 11, 2014 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance "Do Pass". 
Alderman Evans made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns 

No: None 

Alderman Reed moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 4771. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4772 - AMENDING SECTION 42-93(A} OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE. ARKANSAS; DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (REGARDING RIGHT OF WAY TO 
REMOVE GRAFFITO 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented an Ordinance amending Section 42-93(a) of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Springdale, Arkansas; declaring an emergency and for 
other purposes. The change is in regards to right-of-way to remove graffiti from the 
exterior ofbuildings affected. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance "Do Pass". 
Alderman Evans made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton 

No: None 

Alderman Reed moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 4 772. 

RESOLUTION NO. 31-14- AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR DESIGN OF A MATERIAL STORAGE BUll..DING 
AT THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

Public Works Director Sam Goade presented a Resolution authorizing execution of a 
contract for engineering services for design of a material storage building at the Public 
Works Department. 

....... 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR DESIGN OF A 
MATERIAL STORAGE BUILDING 

WHEREAS, resolution number 14-14 amending the 2014 budget of the Public 
Works Department transferring funds from the Materials/ Asphalt account and the 
Contract Labor/Paving account to the Equipment account and the Building Improvements 
account was passed and approved on January 28, 2014 $150,000 of which was allocated 
for construction of a salt/grit storage building, and 

WHEREAS, the salt/grit storage building requires engineering design consulting 
services, and 

WHEREAS, USI Consulting Engineers, lnc., has submitted a contract for engineering 
consulting services in the amount of $19,699, a copy of which is attached to this 
resolution, and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City 
Clerk!freasurer are hereby authorized to execute a contract with USI Consulting 
Engineers, Inc., for design services for a material storage building in the amount of 
$19,699. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day ofMarch, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 31-14. 

RESOLUTION NO. 32-14 - AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 
ENTER INTO A JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE U.S. GEOLOGICAL 
SURVEY CUSGS) FOR MONITORING SPRING CREEK 

Alderman Bruns presented a Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter 
into a joint funding agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) for monitoring 
Spring Creek to provide baseline information on the creek on a cost sharing basis. 

QCl 



SPRJNGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
CLERK TO ENTER INTO A JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT 
WITH THE U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) FOR 
MONITORING SPRING CREEK 

WHEREAS, in order to address the City's MS4 Storm Water Permit, funding is 
necessary for monitoring Spring Creek to provide baseline information on the creek with 
respect to flow, nutrient and pollutant levels; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale has historically partnered with the USGS in 
order to provide this service; and 

WHEREAS, included in the 2014 budget is funding to enter into a joint funding 
agreement with the United States Department of the Interior, U.S. Geological Survey for 
sampling of Spring Creek to continue to provide baseline information on the creek on a 
cost sharing basis. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby authorized to enter into a joint funding agreement with the United States 
Department of the Interior, U. S. Geological Survey, a copy of which is attached as 
Exhibit "A", for sampling of Spring Creek to provide baseline information on the creek 
on a cost sharing basis. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day ofMarch, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Alderman Jaycox moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Reed made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 32-14. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4773 - AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH MSI CONSULTING GROUP LLC. TO PROVIDE A 
COMPREHENSIVE CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (VIRTUAL JUSTICE) FOR 
THE SPRJNGDALE DISTRICT COURT; TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING. TO 
DECLARE AN EMERGENCY AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

Alderman Bruns presented an Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract 
with MSI Consulting Group LLC, for a price not exceeding $125,000, to provide a 

C"' 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

comprehensive case management system (Virtual Justice) for the Springdale District 
Court; to waive competitive bidding; to declare an emergency and for other pmposes. 

The cost for data conversion from the existing court system will cost a one-time fee of 
$100,000.00. After data conversion, the system setup, configuration and installation, and 
training will cost $19,050.00 plus tax. For 30 users, the cost will be $1,800 per month 
plus tax. All of these expenses will be paid for from the district court automation fund, 
since they are expenses for district court related technology. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Jaycox moved the Ordinance "Do 
Pass". Alderman Reed made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed 

No: None 

Alderman Evans moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 4773. 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-14 - AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET OF THE 
SPRINGDALE DISTRICT COURT (VIRTUAL JUSTICE) 

Alderman Bruns presented a Resolution amending the 2014 Budget of the Springdale 
District Court for the installation of Virtual Justice, a case management system for the 
District Court. 

RESOLUTION----

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET OF THE 
SPRINGDALE DISTRICT COURT 

WHEREAS, the Springdale District Court has proposed the installation of a 
comprehensive case management system (Virtual Justice) and the City Council of the 
City of Springdale, Arkansas has approved the proposal; 

WHEREAS, all expenditures qualify for payment from funds in the Court 
Automation Fund, which can be used for District Court related technology; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the 2014 budget ofthe Springdale 
District Court is hereby amended as follows with the increases to be paid from the 
District Court Automation Fund: 

= ... 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

Proposed 
Department Account No. 
District Court 205-0103-413.70-05 
District Court 205-0103-413.51-10 
District Court 205-0103-413.80-50 

Description 
TraveVTraining 
Computer Main. 
Capital 

Budget 
$7,600 
$4,000 
$ 0 

Present 

Increase 
$ 5,762 
$115,804 
$ 15,146 

Decrease 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of March, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Budget 
$ 13,362 
$119,804 
$ 15,146 

Alderman Jaycox moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Reed made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 33-14. 

RESOLUTION NO. 34-14 - AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET OF THE 
SPRINGDALE DISTRICT COURT AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN PURCHASES 
BY THE DISTRICT COURT RELATED TO TECHNOLOGY IN THE DISTRICT 
COURT 

Alderman Bruns presented a Resolution amending the 2014 Budget of the Springdale 
District Court and authorizing certain purchases related to technology in the District 
Court. 

RESOLUTION NO. ----

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET OF 
THESPRINGDALE DISTRICT COURT AND AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN PURCHASES BY THE DISTRICT COURT 

WHEREAS, by Resolution number 173-13, passed by the City Council of the 

City of Springdale, Arkansas; on November 26, 2013, the Council authorized certain 
expenditures related to technology in the District Court, which were to be paid from the 
District Court Automation Fund; 

WHEREAS, of the $12,000.00 in expenditures authorized, $5,759 was not spent 
in 2013 because the product was not delivered and the work was not completed in 2013, 
but will be completed in 2014, and will need to be paid in 2014, and involved technology 
related to security in the Court, so it is necessary to make a budget adjustment to allow for 
payment in 2014; 

~ 
~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

WHEREAS, the District Judge has requested additional technology be acquired 
and that the District Court Automation Fund be used to fund the purchases and these 
expenditures include the implementation of a computer generated video system to allow 
video evidence to be shown in the District Court courtroom so that all parties involved 
can see the video, and an additional camera to monitor the entire seating area of the 
courtroom, which enhances security; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the District Judge or Mayor are 
authorized to make the above described purchases, and all the purchases will not exceed 

$15,000, and the budget of the District Court for 2014 shall be amended as follows (with 
all payments qualifying as District Court related technology to be paid from the District 

Court Automation Fund): 

Department 

District Court 

District Court 

Account No. 

205-0103-413.51-01 

205-0103-413.80-50 

Description 

Building Maint 

Capital 

Present 

~ 'Increase 

0 $7,500 

$15,146 $7,500 

Decrease 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _ _ day of March, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Proposed 

Budget 

$7,500 

$22,646 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 34-14. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4774 - AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT COURT TO ENTER 
INTO A CONTRACT WITH ADVANCED INFORMATION MANAGEMENT FOR 
IMAGING (ARCHIVING) OF COURT RECORDS; TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE 
BIDDING AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

Aldennan Bruns presented an Ordinance authorizing the District Court to enter into a 
contract with Advanced Information Management for the total amount not to exceed 
$51,108.00 for imaging (archiving) of court records; to waive competitive bidding and for 
other purposes. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Evans moved the Ordinance "Do 
Pass". Alderman Reed made the second. 

The vote: 

N 
~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

Yes: Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton 

No: None 

Alderman Reed moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 4774. 

RESOLUTION NO. 35-14- AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO SETTLE A 
CONDEMNATION LAWSUIT WHEREIN VALLEY HARVEST MINISTRIES INC. 
ARE DEFENDANTS 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented a Resolution authorizing the City Attorney to settle a 
condemnation lawsuit wherein Valley Harvest Ministries Inc. are defendants. 

The city will settle the lawsuit for the additional sum of $899,041.50, making the total 
settlement cost $1,367,041.50 for 6.33 acres ofland. 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO 
SETTLE A CONDEMNATION LAWSUIT WHEREIN VALLEY 
HARVEST MINISTRIES, INC. ARE DEFENDANTS. 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale filed a lawsuit against Valley Harvest 
Ministries, Inc., to condemn a tract of land for the 1-540/Don Tyson Parkway Interchange 
Project, AHTD Project No. 040527, Tract 4; 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale deposited the sum of $468,000.00 into the 
Registry of the Court as estimated just compensation for Valley Harvest's property; 

WHEREAS, Valley Harvest has extended an offer to settle the condemnation 
lawsuit for the total sum of$1,367,041.50, which will include the entire 6.33 acre tract of 
land; 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the City Attorney that the City Council 
approve the additional sum of $899,041.50 to settle this lawsuit, as this amount is 
reasonable, is justified, and will avoid the cost, expense, and risk of a trial; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the City Attorney is hereby 
authorized to settle the Valley Harvest condemnation lawsuit for the total sum of 
$1,367,041.50. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day of , 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

fl') -



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11,2014 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, CITY ATTORNEY 

Alderman Overton moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Bruns made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Evans, Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton 

No: Ford, Lawson 

The Resolution was numbered 35-14. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4775 - AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO FILE A CLEAN 
UP LIEN FOR THE REMOVAL OF OVERGROWN BRUSH AND DEBRIS ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented an Ordinance authorizing the City Clerk to file a 
clean-up lien for the removal of overgrown brush and debris on property located at 2002 
Melissa Lane and 1001 Wilkinson Lane. 

After reading the title of the Ordinance, Alderman Reed moved the Ordinance ''Do Pass". 
Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Reed, Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans 

No: None 

Alderman Evans moved the Emergency Clause be adopted. Alderman Reed made the 
second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Jaycox, Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed 

No: None 

The Ordinance was numbered 4775. 

RESOLUTION NO. 36-14- AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND THE CITY CLERK 
OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE TO ACCEPT A GIFT OF LAND FROM JHT, LLC 

City Attorney Ernest Cate presented a Resolution authorizing the Mayor and the City 
Clerk of the City of Springdale to accept a gift of land from JHT, LLC. Resolution No. 
28-14, passed on February 25,2014, which authorized the Mayor and City Clerk to accept 
a gift ofland from JHT, LLC, did not contain all the property in the legal description. 

~ 
~ 



SPRINGDALE CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 11, 2014 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
CLERK OF THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE TO ACCEPT A GIFT 
OF LAND FROM JHT, LLC. 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 28-14 was passed on February 25, 2014 authorizing 
the Mayor and City Clerk to accept a gift ofland from JHT, LLC; 

WHEREAS, the legal description contained in Resolution No. 28-14 did not 
contain all of the property to be donated, and a new legal description has been provided, a 
copy of which is set out in Exhibit "A," which is attached hereto and made hereof as 
though set out herein word for word. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk of the 
City of Springdale, Arkansas, accept the above described property from JHT, LLC. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of ________ _, 
2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

Alderman Reed moved the Resolution be adopted. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

The vote: 

Yes: Bruns, Watson, Overton, Ford, Lawson, Evans, Reed, Jaycox 

No: None 

The Resolution was numbered 36-14. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Alderman Overton made the motion to adjourn. Alderman Jaycox made the second. 

After a voice vote of all ayes and no nays, the meeting adjourned at 6:24 p.m. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk/Treasurer 

ll'l -



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 3307 THE SAME 
BEING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, AND THE PLAT PERTAINING 
THERETO BY REZONING CERTAIN LANDS FROM GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C-2) TO THOROUGHFARE -· . 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C-5) AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY: 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, 
Washington County gave notice required by law and set a hearing date of March 4, 
2014 for hearing the matter of a petition of Steenburgen Family, LLC requesting that the 
following described tract of real estate be zoned from General Commercial District (C-2) 
to Thoroughfare Commercial District (C-5). 

Layman's Description: SW corner of Elm Springs and Oak Grove Roads 

Legal description: Part of the SW NW 5.23 acres FURTHER 
DESCRIBED FROM 2009-28228 AS: Part of the Southwest Quarter (SW 
1/4) of the Northwest Quarter (NW 1/4) of Section 33, Township 18 North, 
Range 30 West, Washington County, Arkansas, being more particularly 
described as follow: Commencing at a found iron pin at the Southwest 
Corner of the S/W 1/4 of the NW 1/4; thence South 87 degree, 21 
minutes, 08 seconds East 559.94 feet to a found iron pin; thence North 02 
degrees, 45 minutes, 20 seconds East 347.06 feet to a found iron pin; 
thence North 02 degrees, 43 minutes, 40 seconds East 552.99 feet to a 
set iron pin; thence South 86 degrees, 57 minutes, 06 degrees East 
214.32 feet to a found iron pipe and the point of beginning; thence North 
02 degrees, 44 minutes, 46 seconds East 417.40 feet to a set mag nail; 
thence South 87 degrees, 06 minutes, 59 seconds East 550.42 feet to a 
set mag nail; thence South 02 degrees, 47 minutes, 04 seconds West 
410.86 feet to a set mag nail; thence North 87 degrees, 47 minutes, 52 
seconds West 550.17 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 5.23 
acres. 

I,Q ..... 



to the Springdale City Council that the area described herein should be rezoned from 
General Commercial District (CM2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District (C-5) 
for the purposes of that Zoning Ordinance would be more property carried out by such 
rezoning, and that unless granted, citizens of Springdale will suffer irreparable harm and 
damage, and will be substantially deprived of the use of their property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS: 

SECTION 1: That Ordinance No. 3307, the Amendments thereto, and the Zoning 
Plat pertaining thereto of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, should be and the same is 
amended as follows: 

From General Commercial District (C-2) to Thoroughfare Commercial District 
(C-5) 

SECTION 2: That all ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3: EMERGENCY CLAUSE: It is hereby declared that an emergency exists 
and this ordinance, being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and welfare 
of the citizens of Springdale, Arkansas, shall be in effect immediately upon its passage 
and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF 2014 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

z:;rj!? --~ 
Emest Cate, City Attorney 

2 

t-
~ 



~ · Feel 
100 200 

N 

APPLICANT: STEENBERGEN FAMILY, LLC 
REZONING REQUEST: 

C-2TOC-5 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE 
PLANNING OFRCE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
3/4/2014 

81 



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 3307 THE SAME 
BEING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, AND THE PLAT PERTAINING 
THERETO BY REZONING CERTAIN LANDS FROM 
NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE DISTRICT (0-1) TO GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C-2) AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY: 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, 
Washington County, gave notice required by law and set a hearing date of MP..rch 4, 
2014 for hearing the matter of a petition of Jimmy and Mary Allred requesting t11at the 
following described tract of real estate be zoned from Neighborhood Office District (0-1) 
to General Commercial District (C-2). 

Layman's Description: 1503 Carley Road 

Legal description: Part of the Northwest Quarter (NW 1/4) ofthe 
Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section Three (3), Township Seventeen 
(17) North, Range Thirty (30) West, and being more particularly described 
as follows to-wit: From the Northwest (NW) Corner of said forty-acre tract, 
run South 0 degrees 03 minutes 03 seconds East 1107.75 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; and running thence North 89 degrees 59 
minutes 40 seconds East 206.25 feet; thence South 0 degrees 03 minutes 
03 seconds East 211.53 feet; thence South 89 degrees 48 minutes 27 
seconds West 206.25 feet; thence North 0 degrees03 minutes 03 
seconds West 212.20 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; and containing 
1.0 acre, more or less. 

AND WHEREAS, after notice as required by law, the Springdale Planning 
Commission held a hearing and after hearing arguments for and against such rezoning, 
recommends to the Springdale City Council. that the area described herein should be 
rezoned from Neighborhood Office District (0-1) to General Commercial District (C-2) 
for the purposes of that Zoning Ordinance would be more properly carried out by such 
rezoning, and that unless granted, citizens of Springdale will suffer irreparable harm and 
damage, and will be substantially deprived of the use of their property. 

1 

0'1 
~ 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS: 

SECTION 1: That Ordinance No. 3307, the Amendments thereto, and the Zoning 
Plat pertaining thereto of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, should be and the same is 
amended as follows: 

From Neighborhood Office District (0-1) to General Commercial District (C-2). 

SECTION 2: That all ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3: EMERGENCY CLAUSE: It is hereby declared that an emergency exists 
and this ordinance, being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and _welfare 
of the citizens of Springdale, Arkansas, shall be in effect immediately upon its ~· 1ssage 
and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2014 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

;f:di;J-~ 
Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

2 

Q 
N 



~ ' 
N 

Feet 
100 200 

=·=·=·=·=· 
APPUCANT: JIMMY • MARY ALLRED 

REZONING REQUEST: 
0-1 TO C-2 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE 
PLANNING OFRCE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
3/4/2014 

It 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE AT 
589 WHITE ROADt THE CHURCH OF NWA AS SET 
FORTH IN ORDINANCE NO. 4030 

WHEREAS, Ordinance #4030 amending Chapter 130 (Zoning Ordinance) of the 
Springdale Code of Ordinance provides that an application for a conditional use on 
appeal must be heard first by the Planning Commission and a recommendation made 
to the City Council; and 

WHEREASt the Planning Commission held a public hearing on Tuesday, March 
18, 2014, on a request by Colby Fulfer for The Church of NWA for a Use Unit 42 
(Church/Synagogue) in a General Commercial District (C-2). 

WHEREASt following the public hearing the Planning Commission by a _vote of 
six (6) yays and no (0) nays recommends that a conditional use be granted t:::: Colby 
Fulfer for The Church of NWA for a Use Unit 42 (Church/Synagogue) in a General 
Commercial District (C-2) with the following conditions - City of Springdale Noise 
Ordinance must be followed. 

NOWt THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE that the City Council hereby grants a conditional use to Colby 
Fulfer for The Church of NWA for a Use Unit 42 (Church/Synagogue) in a General 
Commercial District (C-2) with the following conditions - The City of Springdale Noise 
Ordinance must be followed. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF t 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

;?4-~ -~ 
Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

N:\Piannlng\Debbie\Conditional Use\Resolution.doc 

N 
N 



23 

. . . . 
: .. I ... 

I 
I 
I 

~: :JI ·- . 
I 
I 

• I , . 
.' I .. . 

I .. . 
: 
I 
I . 
I • ; I 
I 

..:. 
C4 ... 
~ -

~ 
i ~ 

.I 

~ . ,,: 

f 
: ,·: 
• • I 
I 
I • 

. 
I 
I . 
I 

~ 
N 

Feet 
0 100 200 

H H H H H 

APPUCANT: The Church of NWA 
FILE #: C14-02 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST: 
USE UNIT 42 (CHURCH) 

I 

'~ ., 
~ \.~. . ......... ... &.. ... ~~1.1£... ·· · -~'J 

·c. - .......... ___ -.w"~p-~ .. --~ .... J 
'lT..._ . . -

-~ .. ·-- P'!P.$ .e 1':' .............. 

r .· t. 

CI7Y OF SPRINGDALE 
PLANNING OFFICE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
2/4/2014 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WAIVER OF STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS, DRAINAGE, CURBS, GUTTERS AND 
SIDEWALKS AS SET FORTH IN ORDINANCE NO. 3725 
TO JIM CASH IN CONNECTION WITH A LARGE SCALE 
DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 5190 HIGHWAY 112 

WHEREAS, Ordinance #3047 provides for the waiver of street improvements, 
drainage relating thereto, curbs, gutters and sidewalks to be first heard by the Planning 
Commission and a recommendation made to the City Council, with any waivers to be 
granted by the City Council only; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a request for waiver of street 
improvements to Jim Cash in connection with a large scale development and the 
Planning Commission recommends approval of the waiver request. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, that the City Council hereby: 

Option 1: Grants a waiver of street improvements to Jim Cash including 
improvements related thereto, drainage, curbs, gutters and sidewalks in connect •• m with 
a large scale development. 

Option 2: Denies a waiver of street improvements to Jim Cash including 
improvements related thereto, drainage, curbs and gutters sidewalks in connection with 
a large scale development. 

Option 3: Approves payment in lieu of improvements to Jim Cash in connection 
with a large scale development with an estimated cost to be submitted by the 
developer's engineer for confirmation by the Planning Department. 

Option 4: Denies a waiver and allow a Bill of Assurance for a period not to 
exceed years for street improvements to Jim Cash including improvements 
related thereto, drainage, curbs, gutters, and sidewalks to be built in connection with 
a large scale development. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

AlTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

&;/~·~ 
Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

N:\Piannlng\Debble\Walver of subdivision requirements - fotm\Resolution - subdivision requlrements.doc 
'<:~' 
N 



Zoning Districts Page 1 of 1 

.·'1 

. I 
' 

' 
. lf.l t.'!; • ~ • • S-
i .. ~ . l'.. -~r. 

I . . f,,,' . •· . . ' "' . • . . . '. 
I ..,.ff ' ::·~· ....... ,., --.•. ,, , n .. , .• '</··.·:.. i ,~ • · . ~~ . 

. ''' ., >o <f'~v ' ' . . . · .. '· .. .. • •O... ·.· . • . ~ ... . , \ 11~,.-~, ... ~ ... •;': . . .. t · 1! -~ ·; :.-:. ...... ,· ..... ~. 'l('l'-1.;. • ~. !: ~ . ·... Jl -:;... ,. . . . ~)-~\i2r.~, ~~,f~ ; ~·. I~~~~~~:_;~~~·...::._;,,;_::~.- ~.·- _:_S: .... _, _tL~-~:. -· ·-- .. ... ___ ..:.·- -·-

·I 

http:/ /gis.springdalear .gov/tlexviewers/zoningmap/index.html 317/2014 

I(') 
~ 



ORDINANCE NO. __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 7 OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale, 
Arkansas, contains regulations pertaining to off-street parking and loading 
requirements; 

WHEREAS, Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale, 
Arkansas, needs to be amended to update the requirements as to off-street parking, 
parking areas, storage areas, entrance/exit drives, surfacing, etc.; 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, 
for the City Council of the City of Springdale, Arkansas, to amend Article 7 of the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale, Arkansas; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Springdale Planning 
Commission on March 4, 2014, after notice was given of said hearing as required 
bylaw. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS: 

Section 1: Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Springdale, 
Arkansas, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and is hereby replaced with a new 
Article 7, the language of which is attached hereto and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

Section 2: All other provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of 
Springdale, Arkansas, not specifically amended by _this Ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Section 3: Emergency Clause. It is hereby declared that an emergency 
exists and this ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety 
and welfare of the citizens of Springdale, Arkansas, shall be effective immediately 
upon its passage and approval. 

ErnestCa/20 14 Misc/Ord130(7) 

I,C 
M 



PASSED AND APPROVED this day of _____ _.. 
2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

AITEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

;;!:9-fo :C~ 
Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

ErnestCa/2014Misc/Ord130(7) 

I' 
N 



ARTICLE 7: OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 

Sec. 1. Purpose and intent. 

This article is designed to prevent or alleviate the congestion of the public streets 
and to promote the safety and welfare of the public. This article establishes 
herein minimum requirements for the off-street parking, loading and unloading of 
motor vehicles appropriate to each land use and its Intensity in relation to other 
land uses. 

Sec. 2. Applicability. 

2.1 General conditions. The requirement to provide and maintain the required 
off-street parking space and loading areas shall be the responsibility of the 
operator and owner of the use and the operator and owner of the land on 
which off-street parking and loading areas is required to be provided. 

2.2 Zoning districts. These requirements shall be provided in all zoning districts. 
Such parking and loading shall be provided off the street right-of-way for each 
use of land within the City and as demand is created for each use. 

2.3 New construotiont expanslont new use. With construction or expansion in 
capacity of a building, structure, or parking area or if another use is 
established on the lot, off street parking shall be provided in accordance with 
this Article. 

2.4 Existing spaces. Parking spaces used in connection with an existing or 
continuing use or building on the effective date of this ordinance, up to the 
number required by this ordinance shall be continued and may not be counted 
as serving a new structure or addition. 

Sec. 3. Parking dimensions. 

3.1 Standard 90° parking space. An off-street parking space shall consist of a 
nine feet (9') by nineteen feet (19') space located off the street right-of-way; 
adequate for parking an automobile with room for opening doors on both 
sides; together with properly related access to a public street or alley and 
maneuvering room. 

3.2 Access drive width. If the off-street parking spaces do not abut on a street, 
alley or easement of access, there shall be provided an access drive of at 
least ten feet (1 0') In width in the case of a dwelling and at least fifteen feet 
(15') in width in all other cases leading from the street to the parking. 

3.3 Angle parking spaces. Where different parking angles are utilized for off
street parking the following widths, depths and maneuvering areas shall be 
followed: 

1 

QC 
N 



Width Depth 
(ft.) (ft.) 

Parallel 9 22 
30° Angle 18 17.3 
45° Angle 12.7 19.8 
60° Angle 10.34 21 
90° Angle or Right Angle 9 19 

+: t 

J : • 

2 

Maneuvering 
Area (ft.) 

11 
12 
12 
12 
24 

i : + 
I 

--~-

(~) 

I 
I 
I 

I 12.0 

I 
I 
I 

d.n 
lfl~(rl) 

i 
I 
I 
I 

' ! x 
• I 

..J 90Degrees 

n! <6 
0 

19. 
(~) 

c:l\ 
M 



3.4 Compact parking spaces. Spaces for compact parking may be permitted for 
up to twenty percent (20%) of total spaces in a parking lot which contains at 
least ten (10) parking spaces, which shall be clearly marked either on the 
pavement or by separate marker. The width and depth of each compact car 
space shall be eight feet (8') wide and sixteen feet (16') deep. 

3.5 Minimum distance and setbacks. Except for permitted entrance and/or exit 
drives, every off-street parking area shall be set back from the street right-of
way line a minimum of five feet (5'). 

Sec 4. Location of off .. street parking. 

4.1 Maximum Distance. All parking spaces provided pursuant to this article shall 
be on the same lot with the building or within three hundred feet (300') thereof 
the distance to any parking area as herein required shall be measured 
between the nearest point of the off-street parking facility and the nearest point 
of the building said parking area or facility is to serve. 

4.2 Satellite Lots. When detached parking facilities or satellite parking lots are 
provided, they shall be located on property which is zoned to allow the 
principal use which this parking will serve or they must be approved by the 
board of adjustment. Parcels of land used as access to or from parking and/or 
loading areas for any land use shall conform to this requirement. 

4.3 Limitation of Detached or Satellite Parking Lots. Off site parking shall not 
exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total number of spaces required by 
this article and shall not require the crossing of a collector or arterial street. 
The board of adjustment may authorize variance from this limitation for cause, 
which shall be an identifiable hardship with the submission of a written 
agreement by all parties involved identifying the spaces assigned and verifying 
no conflict by current users and recognizing the impact on future usage of the 
site. All off-site parking shall be noted on the official zoning map so as to 
assure maintenance of the requirement. 

4.4 Relationship to Adjacent Properties. No off-street parking area, exclusive 
of access drives, shall be located within three feet (3') of any other property. 

Sec 5. Ownership 

The ownership of land upon which off-street parking is provided shall be the same 
as the ownership of land on which the principal use is located except in the C-3 
Downtown District or by formal written agreement for the use of excess off-street 
parking executed and filed for said purpose. A conditional use permit is required for 
the parking on lot(s) not of the same ownership to count toward fulfillment of the 
parking requirements. 

3 

Q 
ff') 



Sec 6. Accessibility 

6.1 ADA Requirements. Accessibility for persons with disabilities in parking lots 
and building approaches shall be as required by the current ADA and as may 
from time to time be amended. 

6.2 Accessible spaces required. The following table shall be used to determine 
the minimum number of accessible parking spaces to be provided for persons 
with disabilities. 

Total Parking Spaces Minimum Number of 
Accessible Spaces Required 

1 to 25 1 

26 to 50 2 

51 to 75 3 

76 to 100 4 

101 to 150 5 

151to200 6 

201 to 300 7 

301 to 400 8 
401 to 500 9 

501 to 1,000 2% of Total 

Over 1,000 20, plus 1 for each 100 over 
1,000 

Sec. 7. Number of off-street parking spaces required. 

7.1 Floor and Lot Area Defined. For the purposes of applying requirements for 
off-street parking, floor area shall be defined as net floor area with the outside 
dimensions of a building, excluding halls, lobbies, and stairways, etc. The 
definition shall not include floor space within the building reserved for parking 
or loading of vehicles, and basement space or separate space used only for 
building maintenance and utilities. 

7.2 Uses Not Listed. For all uses not covered in the standards below, the 
Planning Commission shall make a determination of the parking demand to be 
created by the proposed use, and the amount of parking then determined shall 
be the off-street parking requirement for the permitted use. 

7.3 C-3 Downtown District 
a. New Structures. New structures and additions shall meet the parking 

requirements based on the proposed use. 
First Floor less than 3,000 sf None 
First Floor more than 3,000 sf 1 space/500 sf 
Upper Floors- Residential 1 space/unit 
Upper Floors - other 1 space/1 ,000 sf 

4 

~ 
ff'l 



b. Existing Structures. The parking requirements of this section shall not 
apply to existing structures in the C-3 Downtown District. 

c. Razed Structures. Parking requirements shall be calculated based on 
the square footage of the new structure minus the amount of the square 
footage of the building footprint of the original structure. 

7.4 Standards. The number of off-street parking spaces required for each use as 
set forth below. Separate off-street parking space shall be provided for each 
use located on a lot but may be combined and used jointly provided the sum 
total of parking space requirements for all uses are provided. 

NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES REQUIRED 

Land Use PARKING RATIO 

RESIDENTIAL 
Single-Family Dwelling Two (2) spaces for each dwelling unit outside the primary 

structure or garage, maximum allowed paved surface 
area shall not exceed forty percent ( 40%) of the total area 
of the front yard 

Two-Family Dwelling Two (2) spaces for each dwelling unit outside the primary 
structure or garage, maximum allowed paved surface 
area shall not exceed forty percent (40%) of the total area 
of the front yard 

Multi-Family Dwelling Three (3) spaces for each dwelling unit for the first twenty 
(20) dwelling units; two and one quarter (2.25) spaces for 
each dwelling unit for the next frfty (50) dwelling units; and 
one and three quarters (1.75) spaces for each dwelling 
unit for each dwelling unit over seventy (70) dwelling units 

Manufactured Home Two (2) spaces for each manufactured home outside the 
primary structure 

Residential Care facility One (1) space for each three (3) residential units 
Nursing Home One (1) space for each three (3) residents 
Rooming house One (1) space for each guest accommodation 
Boarding house 
Bed and Breakfast One (1) space for each sleeping/rental unit plus 1 space 

for the owner 
Fraternity, sorority and One (1) space for each two (2) students residing on the 
dormitory premises, plus one (1) space for each housemother or 

manager and each employee 
Hotels and Motels One (1) space for each bedroom plus one (1) parking 

space for each two (2) employees; plus one parking 
space for each two hundred (200) square feet of total floor 
area used for ballrooms, private meeting rooms and other 
similar places of assembly. Restaurant spaces per 
requirement below. 

--

5 

N 
f') 



INSTITUTIONAL 
Church Sanctuary One ( 1) parking space for each four ( 4) seats based on 

maximum seating capacity in the principal assembly 
room; provided, however, that churches may establish 
~int parking facilities for the required spaces not to 
exceed fifty percent (50%) of the required number of 
spaces, with businesses, institutions and agencies within 
a three hundred feet (300') of the facility without the 
crossing of a collector or arterial street. A written 
agreement by all parties Involved is required identifying 
the spaces assigned and verifying no conflict by current 
users and recognizing the impact on future usage of the 
site. 

Community Center, One (1) space for each five hundred (500) square feet of 
library, museum, civic net floor area 
club, lodge 
Detention facility One (1) space for each five hundred (500) square feet of 

net floor area 
Auditoriums, Arenas, One ( 1 ) space for each four ( 4) seats 
Theatres (and similar 
places of public 
assemb!Yl 
Lodge halls, Exhibition One (1) space for each two hundred (200) square feet. of 
halls, Clubs (and similar net floor area 
places of public 
assembly) 
Schools and Institutions One (1) space for each three hundred (300) square feet of 
-Nursery, Kindergarten net floor area and one (1) space per employee plus on-
and Day-Care Centers site loading and unloading spaces shall be required at a 

rate of one(1) for each ten (10) children accommodated. 
Schools and Institutions One ( 1} space per classroom plus one ( 1} space per 
-Elementary (Grades employee plus stacking space for buses and automobiles 
1-5)/ Middle 
[{Grades 6-7) 

School shall be required on site. 

Schools and Institutions Six (6) spaces per classroom plus stacking spaces for 
- Secondary School buses and automobiles shall be required. 
'Grades 8-12) 
College, University, One (1) space for each three hundred (300) square feet o1 
Business College or net floor areas, or 1 space per four (4) students, 
Trade School whichever is _greater 
Hospital One (1} space for each bed, plus one (1) space for each 

resident doctor, plus adequate reserved space for visiting 
doctors, plus one ( 1) space for each three (3) employees 

'------ -

6 

f') 
f') 



Offices 
Business and 1 space per 300 sq. ft. of net floor space. For structures 
Professional Office (and larger than ten thousand (10,000) square feet, the above 
similar use of establishment) parking requirement shall be provided and the following 

I percentage shall be taken to the remaining net floor area: 
10,001-20,000 sq. ft.- 95% of parki119_re_g_uirement 
20,001-30,000 sq. ft. - 90% of _Qarkii'!Q_ re_guirement 
30,001-40,000 sq. ft. - 85% of parki'19_ re_g_uirement 
40,000 SQ. ft. and u~ - 80% of parking requirement 

Medical Clinics 1 space per 300 sq. ft. of net floor space 
COMMERCIAL USES 
General Business and One (1) space per two hundred (200) square feet of net 
Retail Sales (except as floor area up to ten thousand (10,000) square feet, the 
otherwise provided herein) above parking requirement shall be taken of the 

remaining net floor area: 
10,001-20,000 sq. ft. - 95% of _Qarking requirement 
20,001-30,000 sq. ft. - 90% of _Qarkin_g_ re_guirement 
30,001-40,000 sq. ft. - 85% of parking requirement 
40,000 sq. ft. and up - 80% of_parking requirement 

Drive-Through In addition to the other parking space requirement, 
Commercial Facilities holding or stacking spaces for each service window. 

Each stacking space shall be no less than nine feet (9') 
wide by twenty feet (20') lo119_. 

Bowling Alleys Four ( 4) spaces per lane 
Restaurants (and similar 1 space per each four (4) occupants at the maximum 
establishments serving food permitted occupancy allowed under building code and 1 
and beverages) space per employee based on the largest shift 

Personal Service One (1) space for each employee plus one (1) space per 
Establishments (Barber, each station 
Beauty Shops, similar uses) 

Food Service 1 space for each two hundred (200) square feet of net 
Supermarket and building area; or use the reduction permitted under 
Convenience Type General Business and Retail sale 
grocery store 

Automotive Services Four (4) spaces for each service bay or one (1) space for 
passenger cars/light each three hundred {300) square feet of gross building 
trucks (fueling station only, area whichever is greater 
garages, automobile washing 
facilities& similar uses) 

Automotive Services One (1) space for each one thousand (1,000) square feet 
heavy trucks and of gross building 
equipment (fueling station 
only, garages, automobile 
washing facilities and similar 
uses) 

7 

"''t' 
~ 



Fueling Station and One ( 1) space per employee at maximum shift plus one 
Convenience Store (1) space per two hundred fifty (250) square feet of net 

floor area. Spaces at the pumps shall be counted as one-
half(~) space toward the overall ~uirement 

Furniture Stores One (1) space for each one thousand (1 ,000) square feet 
of gross building 

Mortuary or funeral One ( 1) parking space for each four ( 4) seats based on 
parlor maximum seating capacity in the principal assembly room 
Theatre, auditorium, One ( 1 ) space for each four ( 4) seats 
stadium or arena 
Other Recreational One (1) space for each two hundred (200) square feet o1 
establishments lgross floor area 
Swimming Pool One (1) space for each six (6) persons lawfully permitted 

in the pool at one time 
Industrial Use 
Manufacturing, One (1) space per 6000 square feet of gross floor area 
Processing and 
Wholesaling (and similar 
uses or establishments) 

Warehouse and One ( 1) space for each one thousand two hundred 
storage (1,200) square feet of gross floor a~a. __ 

------~ -

7.5 Combined facilities. Off-street parking facilities required for two (2) or more 
uses located on the same building site may be combined and used jointly 
provided, however, that the total number of off-street parking spaces shall not 
be less than the sum of requirements for the various individual uses computed 
separately in accordance with the process set forth in this article. Those uses 
proposed for occupancy within an established development shall not occupy 
the site prior to the determination that the ordinance standard parking spaces 
available to the property for all uses meet the provisions of this section except 
that the number of spaces required for a previous legal use of any portion of 
the development shall be considered to be provided even if the spaces do not 
exist. Nonconforming parking rights may be carried forward to count as part of 
the parking requirement of a use replacing a previously established legal use. 

Sec. 8. PARKING AREA DESIGN AND MAINTENANCE 

8.1 Access to Parking Spaces. Each required off-street parking space shall open 
directly to an aisle or driveway of such width and design as to provide safe and 
efficient means of vehicular access to the parking space. 

8.2 Maneuvering Areas. All parking areas except those serving one and two 
family dwellings on local streets shall be designed so that cars shall not be 
required to back into the street. 

8.3 Surface and Drainage. All off-street parking areas shall be surfaced as 
follows: 
a. Single-family and two-family dwelling shall provide a durable surface with 

suitable drainage. 

8 

ttl 
f'f'l 



b. In all commercial, industrial, institutional and mixed use districts, all areas 
intended to be utilized for required parking spaces and associated 
driveways shall be paved with a durable surface including, but not limited 
to, hot asphalt, bituminous or concrete. 

c. Storage areas for heavy construction equipment that would damage the 
pavement may be exempt from the paving and surfacing requirement with 
an acceptable surface as follows: 

i. May be located on gravel surfacing using best management 
practices so long as all appropriate stormwater Impacts are 
mitigated, and all applicable buffers are in place when abutting 
pubic or private rights-of-way and residential zones. 

ii. Graveled areas for heavy equipment are for said equipment only, 
and are not to be used for parking of commuter vehicles, 
commercial, vans, trucks, or other typical four-wheeled 
transportation vehicles that should be placed in surfaced parking 
lots. 

iii. Heavy Equipment refers to heavy-duty vehicles, designed 
specifically for executing construction task, most frequently 
involving earthwork operations. They are known as, heavy 
machines, heavy trucks, construction equipment, engineering 
equipment, heavy vehicles, or heavy hydraulics. 

iv. Equipment yards and storage areas in industrial zoning districts 
may be permitted as gravel areas provided such areas are 
delineated and physically separated from general public parking 
areas 

v. The equipment and storage areas shall conform to the City 
specifications for street sub-base and base course, per plans to be 
approved by the City Engineer. 

vi. General public parking and access areas in all cases shall be 
paved In accordance with City specifications. 

vii. All vehicles must be operational and have a current 
registration/license. 

viii. No heavy mechanical work is allowed. Light maintenance such as 
fluid changes, with the use of proper best management practices, 
tire changes, and other minor repairs are permitted. 

ix. Inoperative vehicles are not permitted to be stored at the site. 
x. Access roads shall be sufficient to carry the equipment without 

sustaining undue damage to the roads and prevent the tracking of 
materials onto the public street. 

xi. Mud, run-off, erosion and drainage, shall be controlled at all times 
and contained on-site. 

xii. Dust shall be mitigated during dry conditions. 
xiii. Storage of oil, gas, or other fluids/materials associated with the 

maintenance of heavy equipment must comply with state law 
regulating the storage of hazardous materials. 

xiv. Storage of construction related material such as aggregate, sand, 
soil or debris is prohibited. 

9 

'C 
ff') 



xv. Best management practices shall be taken to prevent leaks and 
spills. Any leaks and spills shall be immediately addressed. 

xvi. Variances to these requirements require a restrictive covenant, 
enforceable by the City, to be recorded with the title of the property 
limiting the use of the property accordingly. 

d. Farm dwellings and farm operations' are exempt from the paving 
requirement. 

e. City parks shall be exempt from the parking requirement if approved by 
the City Council. 

f. Heavy equipment storage in areas other than an industrial area by 
variance granted by the Planning Commission as follows: 

i. The equipment and storage area may not exceed one-half(%) acre 
in size where all vehicles shall be stored. 

ii. The storage area shall be setback from property lines in 
accordance with the setbacks required for structures in the zoning 
district in which the storage area is located. 

iii. No more than the permitted number of pieces of heavy equipment 
may be stored at any one time. 

iv. Heavy equipment may be stored and removed on a daily basis, 
subject to the hours of operation of 6:00 a.m. to 6 p.m. Monday
Friday, and 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Saturdays, Sundays and 
Holidays. 

v. All vehicles shall be screened from direct view through vegetation, 
or approved fencing/walls or other approved means. 

vi. All vehicles must be operational and have a current 
registration/license. 

vii. No heavy mechanical work is allowed. Light maintenance such as 
fluid changes, with property best management practices, tire 
changes, and other minor repairs are permitted. 

viii. Inoperative vehicles are not permitted to be stored at the site. 
ix. Access roads shall be sufficient to carry the equipment without 

sustaining undue damage to the roads and prevent the tracking of 
materials onto the public street. 

x. Mud, run-off, erosion and drainage, shall be control at all times and 
contained on-site. 

xi. Dust shall be mitigated during dry conditions. 
xii. Storage of oil, gas, or other fluids/materials associated with the 

maintenance of heavy equipment must comply with state law 
regulating the storage of hazardous materials. 

xiii. Store of construction related material such as aggregate, sand, soil 
or debris is prohibited. 

xiv. Best management practices shall be taken to prevent leaks and 

8.4 Gravel driveway and parking areas. The Planning Commission may 
authorize a portion of off-street parking spaces to be provided on pervious 
surfaces if the Commission finds that such spaces will be used only 
Intermittently, either for special events or for seasonal peak parking demands 
or overflows in patronage of the principal use or uses as follows: 

10 

r--. 
ff') 



a. Seasonal Peak Parking 
i. The Planning Commission must approve a number or percentage 

of required parking spaces that may be provided on pervious 
surfaces and time limitations. 

ii. The City Engineer is authorized to determine acceptable pervious 
surfaces. 

iii. Parking spaces, aisles, etc. must be marked by flags, 
biodegradable dyes or paints, or some other method that does not 
kill grass or plants 

iv. Pervious parking areas must be adequately drained. 

b. Special Event Parking 
i. Can not be used for more than twenty (20) days in a calendar year 
ii. Can not occur for more than ten (10) days in any thirty (30) day 

period 
iii. Setback at least fifty (50) feet from any off-site residentially zoned 

lot or residential development area. 
iv. Occur on the same lot or lots approved for the principal use to 

which they are accessory 

c. The number of days per year and the number of days within a thirty (30) 
day period that special event parking is permitted may be increased with 
Board of Adjustment approval as a special exception. 

d. All commercial and industrial gravel drives and parking area allowed shall 
be maintained to meet the following standards: 

i. The surface of the driveway or parking area shall consist of a 
uniform layer of gravel evenly distributed from edge to edge, and 
shall be free of bare spots and vegetation. 

ii. The depth of the gravel shall be a minimum of -4 inches. 
iii. The material used for a gravel driveway or parking area shall be 

rock or crushed stone not more than 1 inch in diameter and shall 
not contain dirt, stick, construction debris or other foreign material. 
Sand, rock powder or other similar material less the one-eighth inch 
in diameter is not prohibited, but shall not be included in the 
measurement of minimum gravel depth. 

Sec. 9 Off-Street Loading 

In addition to all other requirements, on the same premises with every building, 
structure or part thereof hereafter erected, established or enlarged and occupied for 
manufacturing, storage, warehouse, goods, display, department store, wholesale, 
market, hotel, laundry, dry cleaning or other uses involving the receipt of distribution 
by vehicles of materials or merchandise, there shall be provided and maintained 
adequate space for standing, loading and unloading in order to avoid undue 
interference with public use of the street or alley. 

11 

QC) 
~ 



9.1 Size of Off-Street Loading Spaces. Such space, unless otherwise 
adequately provided for, shall include a twelve (12) foot by thirty (30) foot 
loading space and fourteen (14) foot height clearance. Where off-street 
loading space does not abut on a street, alley or easement of access there 
shall be provided an access drive of at least ten feet ( 1 0') in width leading from 
the street to the load area. Where the off-street loading spaces face a public 
street, the loading space shall be seventy feet (70') in length. 

9.2 Location. Such loading spaces may occupy all or any part of a required 
setback, but such space may not be located closer than twenty five feet (25') 
to any residential district unless wholly within a completely enclosed building 
or unless enclosed on all sides abutting the residential district by a wall or said 
fence at least eight feet (8') in height. 

9.3 Number of Loading Spaces Required. For every building or structure 
hereinafter constructed in any district for nonresidential purposes, or where 
material or merchandize is received or distributed by vehicles, an off-street 
loading space shall be provided and maintained on the same lot. 

9.4 Substitution. Parking spaces may not be substituted for a loading space or a 
loading space substituted for a parking space. 

9.5 Standards. 

Loading I 

Floor Area Spaces 
(SQ. ft.) Required 
5,000 ·,25,000 1 
25 000 - 40,000 2 
40,000 - 1 00,000 3 
100,000 ·160,000 4 
160,000. 240,000 5 
240 000 • 320,000 6 

For each 
additional 90,000 1 added Sj:>ace 

Sec. 10 Use of Right-of-way 

No portion of any public street right-of-way shall be considered as fulfilling or 
partially fulfilling the off-street parking requirements of this article. No parking .. bays .. 
shall be allowed, except for residential service on residential streets. All commercial 
off-street parking areas and all residential off-street parking lots abutting streets shall 
be arranged so that ingress and egress is by forward motion of the vehicle. For the 
purpose of parking in the rear yard, any public dedicated alley may be used in 
computing the maneuvering area. 

12 

0'1 
~ 



Sec. 11 Entrance/Exit Drives 

11.1 Slopes. For all subdivision plats approved after the adoption of this 
amendment; all vehicular entrance and/or exit drives for all residential uses 
shall not exceed a maximum slope of fifteen percent (15%) within the 
required setback area as determined by the zoning ordinance. For all 
su,bdivision plats approved prior to the adoption of this amendment; all 
vehicular entrance and/or exit drives for all residential uses shall not 
exceed a maximum slope of twenty percent (20%) within the required 
setback area as determined by the zoning ordinance. All vehicular 
entrance and/or exit drives for all residential and nonresidential uses along 
a street with minor collector or higher classification, as shown on the 
master street plan shall not exceed a maximum slope of ten percent (10%) 
within the required setback area as determined by the zoning ordinance. 

11 .2 Standards. 

a. Minimum width of drive for two-way traffic: Twenty-four feet (24'). 

b. Minimum width of drive for one-way traffic: Fifteen feet (15'). 

c. Minimum width of drive through service lane: Nine feet (9'), with 
appropriate stacking lanes to avoid conflicts with internal traffic flow. 

d. Maximum width of drive: Forty feet (40'). 

e. Minimum radius to the face of the curb: Twenty-five feet (25'). 

f. Minimum distance between drives on adjoining properties: Fifty feet 
(50'). 

g. Minimum distance between drives on single tract: One hundred fifty feet 
(150'). 

h. Minimum distance of drive from the project curb line at the street 
intersection: 

Local streets: Forty feet ( 40'); 
Minor collector street: Sixty feet (60'); 
Major collector street: Eighty feet (80'); 
Arterial and Boulevard streets: One hundred twenty feet (120'). 

Sec. 12 Lighting 

Adequate lighting shall be provided if the parking facilities are used at night. This 
lighting shall be installed and maintained in a manner not to shine, reflect or cause 
glare into abutting premises or roads and highways. 

13 

Q 
"'t' 



Sec. 13 Reduction of parking area. 

No automobile off-street parking facility shall be reduced in area or encroached upon 
by buildings, vehicle storage or any other use where such reduction or 
encroachment will reduce the area below that required. 

Sec.14. Parking Garages 

Parking garages may be provided for satisfying the off-street parking requirements 
so long as it otherwise meets the provisions of this article. Exterior design of the 
parking garage must be compatible with the design of the area in which it meets the 
requirements of this article. 

14 

..... 
"'':t 



RESOLUTION NO., __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 4.10 OF THE 
PERSONNEL AND PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR 

THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS 

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2014, the City Council for the City of Springdale, Arkansas, adopted a 
resolution amending Section 4.10 of the Personnel and Procedures Manual for the City of 
Springdale, Arkansas, to create "On-Call" pay for certain employees; 

WHEREAS, certain employees of the Springdale Fire Department should be included in the list 
of employees entitled to "On-Call" pay pursuant to Section 4.10 of the Personnel and 
Procedures Manual for the City of Springdale, Arkansas; 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, 
ARKANSAS, that: 

Section 1: Section 4.10 of the Personnel and Procedures Manual for the City of Springdale, 
Arkansas is hereby amended to read as follows: 

4.10 Additional Compensation for Certain Employees: 
In addition to regular pay, Including any holiday compensation, certified full-time paramedics, 
of the Springdale Fire Department shall receive an additional salary compensation, to be 
determined by the City Council. Those full time firefighters who are members of HAZMAT shall 
receive additional compensation in an amount to be determined by the City Council. 
Police officers who have attained any certificate, except the Basic Certificate, under the 
Arkansas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards, shall receive an additional compensation 
each month for each certificate earned above the "Basic Certificate," and said compensation 
amount shall be set by the City Council. 

Animal Control Officers, employees of the Information Technology Department, employees of 
the Public Works Signalization Division, aM;--designated employees of the Police Department 
entitled to "On-Call" compensation shall be: 1) Criminal Investigation Division Sergeant; 2) 
Criminal Investigation Division Detective; 3) In-House Narcotics Detective; 4) Drug Enforcement 
Agency Detective; and 5) 4th Judicial Drug Task Force Detective. The designated employees of 
the Fire Department entitled to "On-Call" compensation shall be: 1) Fire Marshal or Acting Fire 
Marshal: and 2) Back-up Response Battalion Chief. 

All additional pay set out in this policy Is paid bi-weekly, and such compensation is set out on 
the employee's paycheck. 

Section 2: All other provisions of Section 4 not specifically modified herein shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this __ day of 2014 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 
ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

ZJ-j3?-~ 
Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

N 
~ 



March 3, 2014 

Mayor Doug Sprouse; 

Post Office Box 1521 
417 Holcomb SIIect 
Springdale, AR 72765-1521 
Phone(479)7S1-4S10 
Fax (479) 750-8104 

The Fire Department would like to be considered to add two positions for "on-call 
pay" within our organization. The positions would be for our Fire Marshal, and then a 
back-up B/C. Both of these positions are currently being filled, however, they receive no 
compensation unless they are called in in which they obtain overtime. They get nothing 
for being on call for 2417. 

The Fire Marshal position is currently the position that fills our role for fire 
investigation 2417. Our current Fire Marshal Duane Miller is basically on call 2417 to 
respond to fires that are deemed necessary to conduct a fire investigation. B/C Miller 
does not get any relief unless he is gone out of town. In those instances, we ask our Asst. 
Fire Marshal Pat Lee to fill in the "on-call" position. We have one of those individuals 
on call2417, 365 days a year. This would equate to a total expenditure for this position 
for on-call pay to be $5,475 per year. 

The other position for "on-call" pay being recommended is a back-up B/C 
position. Currently we run a one B/C model and if that B/C happens to be on a fire, he 
not only has to handle the fire, but all of the other issues within the city. We have had 
several incidents that have left the city inadequately covered. The addition of an on-call 
B/C would allow the on-duty B/C to focus on the task at hand, while allowing another 
B/C to cover the city and ensure that we have adequate resources within our city limits 
should another call come in. This will not only increase the citizens' safety, but the 
firefighters' safety as well. The coverage is usually supplied by myself: Asst. Chief 
McDonald, or Division ChiefVaughan who fill that role. This would allow us to define 
that position and allow everyone to know who that coverage is going to come from. If 
we staffed this on-call position, it too would require 2417, 365 days a year coverage for a 
total amount of$5,475. 

The total on-call pay being requested from the fire department for these two on
call positions is a total of $10,950. Thank you for your consideration into this matter and 
I look forward to answering any questions you may have. 

Mike Irwin 
Fire Chief 

~ 
~ 



Springdale Fire Department 
Policy & Procedures Manual 
Volume 1 -Administration 
Section 1 02 - Personnel Policy 
1 02.3 - On-Call Pay 

It is the policy of the Springdale Fire Department tQ ,provide additional 
compensation to designated employees, who-rue,,·required to serve in on-
call status. ..:> · ~ · · · 

.· ... , 

On-call is compensation for an emplo~_ -who must ~ain available to be 
called back to work on short notice if Ute need arises. ··Tl1e.se on-call 
positions are for personnel to respond to-'!"ork on short n·~b. to an 
emergency or work situation in .order: · .:·· .. · :. -'. · · . . . . . . . 

To avoid significant serviee diSruption . . :·: 
.... 

To avoid placinQ,:employees: or th~ Public in ·uns~fe situations; or 

To protect ·~/ ~;-~ide e~;;~~-·s ~o property; or 
~ . 

equipment/ :or:·: . . _, . ,,.: 

To·:,:e~P~·rldto in~~~~~- -~~ -8mwgt1ncy scene based on Springdale 

A.r~ Departm~·polide&- .on investigations. 
·. : ·.. - ~- . 

"... -;: 

The two position$ for on~l pay shall be the position of Fire Marshal and 
an On-Call (back~e~)- ~-attalion Chief. 

,.,_. ... : ... 

Fire Marshal: 

This position shall be filled by a certified department investigator and 
shall be filled on a 24n basis. Normally this position shall be filled by 
the Battalion Chief of Prevention, however, when unavailable, it will 
be filled by qualified candidates within the department. 

~ 
-.:1' 



The individual shall respond if called to Station 1 to pick-up needed 
equipment and respond to the scene to conduct the necessary 
investigation. 

The individual shall have a response time to station 1 not to exceed 
45 minutes. 

The individual shall be held to all requirements of the Springdale Fire 
Department reporting for duty policies. ,~, 

'·· .• 

On-Call Battalion Chief: 
. -,·_ . 

This position shall be filled by .. a.~rtified Battalion Chief or Acting 
Battalion Chief in the Springdale·::F;e Depertment. 'fhi$:,:position shall 
be filled on a 24n basi$. Normally :this·:.P9Sltion shall bErfllted by a 
Battalion Chief, however,:. Whfim unavaneble, it will be filled by a 
qualified Acting Battalion ChiSf·•T$.pecifi~.ifl:the Springdale Fire 
Department~.~~· ··:.·.. ··· ·:::.:: .· : · .. :· .. :· :. 

. :··:''' ... . : ... ~·'64' ' ::. . .· ... : : . '. ·, . ,. · .. 

The indivicAJBI shall ··~pond tbSWfon 1 to ptck up a response 
vehicle if nofprl)vided With a ho~ storage unit. If a home storage 
unit:is ~v..ided;·~y·-fiaten fr~ .. home and respond if needed. 
. . • • • ·. .- .-.~ ·. ' . ~:,:· : . . •• ~~: • . .!'_. • • 'l. • · .• :-. ' • ' 

:·The individual-ball have a resptlnse time to become available for call 
wHhin 15 minut8J~ ··.: ·''· 

The i~dlvldual sha~·:be held:to all requirements of the Springdale Fire 
Departm.eilt reporti~ for duty policies. 

' .. .. -_' . . · ~:.·:;·'-· (: 

·· . .. ... 

The on-call rate shall be paid as a $15.00 per day rate and shall be 
paid on the individuals normal pay check showing as on-call pay. If a 
person is called back to duty while on on-call status, each person 
shall receive their pay at the overtime rate of 1 1/2 time the normal 
rate of pay if they have exceeded the normal work hours. 

II) 
"'!' 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, 
ARKANSAS, EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN FOR THE 

CITY COUNCIL AND THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE. 

WHEREAS, a city emergency operations plan is needed to guide the city In the event of a 
disaster, and to ensure that the City of Springdale has clear directions and guidance for all of 
the city; 

WHEREAS, the fire department along with city staff has conducted training and collaboration in 
developing this plan based on current local, state, and federal guidelines and; 

WHEAREAS, city has identified types of disasters common to this region and has molded the 
plan to be incorporated into the county plan as well as the state plan and; 

WHEREAS, the City Council will utilize this plan for direction as well as measuring success in the 
event of a disaster; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, 
ARKANSAS, that City Council expresses its support for the City of Springdale Emergency 
Operations Plan. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day of 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED: 

~·~ 
Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

\oC 
"'it 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 
CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR 
AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID BE1WEEN THE 
SPRINGDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT AND THE LOWELL 
FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale and the City of Lowell both staff and maintain 

fire stations for the safety and protection of the lives and property within their respective 

jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale and the City of Lowell, in order to provide the 

maximum protection by providing the fastest service response to its residents, desire to enter into 

an agreement whereby each entity may render automatic mutual aid to each other for certain 

defined incidents; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale and the City of Lowell wish to enter into an 

agreement to memorialize their agreement to provide automatic mutual aid, and to set 

forth the terms and conditions of providing mutual aid; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized to execute an Agreement for Automatic Mutual Aid, a copy of which is 

attached to this Resolution. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTFST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

a~~~ 
Ernest B. Cate, CITY A ITORNEY 

EmestCa/20 14Misc/RESOmutualaid 

l
"'11:1' 



AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID 
BETWEEN 

SPRINGDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
AND 

LOWELL FIRE DEPARTMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1 of 2014, by 
and between SPRINGDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT, a municipal corporation, hereafter 
referred to as SPRINGDALE, and the LOWELL FIRE DEPARTMENT, a municipal 
corporation, hereafter referred to as LOWELL 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, SPRINGDALE and LOWELL both staff and maintain fire stations 
for the safety and protection of the lives and property within their respective jurisdictions; 
w;td 

WHEREAS, SPRINGDALE and LOWELL in order to provide the maximum 
protection by providing the fastest service response to its residents, desire to enter into an 
agreement whereby each entity may render automatic mutual aid to each other for certain 
defined incidents; and 

WHEREAS, each entity is required to have a minimum of four (4) safety 
equipped firefighters on the scene of an incident prior to making an interior attack or 
entering into an environment that is an immediately dangerous to health and life (IDHL); 
and 

WHEREAS, each has the ability to provide mutual aid when not committed to 
another emergency; 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority granted by the State of Arkansas 
under Interlocal Cooperation Act, A.C.A. § 25-20-101 et seq. (Repl. 2002 and Supp. 
2007) the mutual promises, covenants and conditions herein contained, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Agreement, the following tenns shall have 
those meanings as set forth herein: 

a.) Automatic mutual aid as used in this Agreement shall mean the automatic 
response of the closest identified available resource via emergency dispatch center 
request to an adjacent fire jurisdiction regardless of jurisdictional boundaries. 

b.) The term incident(s) as used in this Agreement are limited to an incident 
specifically identified and set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto, and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 

2. AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID AREA: SPRINGDALE and LOWELL agree to 
provide automatic mutual aid to each other within that geographical area, hereafter 

00 
~ 



referred to as area, identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto, and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

3. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: Upon receipt of an emergency call, 
SPRINGDALE and LOWELL, if available, shall respond one (I) engine company 
(minimum type two engine) with a minimum of three (3) personnel that have been trained 
to a minimum ofFFI, FFII, Haz-Mat awareness and Operations, and EMT into the area. 
When responding, each agency shall insure that: 

a.) All personal protective clothing and equipment shall be used by all 
participating firefighters on the scene of a fire or emergency incident. 

b.) The command and tactical frequency assigned by Command shall be utilized 
on an incident; and, 

c.) The unit first arriving at the scene shall assume command of the incident until 
relieved by an equal or superior officer of the agency having jurisdiction. 

d.) The agency first arriving may cancel any further response to the incident if 
that agency is capable of handling the incident and the responsible jurisdiction duty 
officer is so notified. 

4. TRAINING: SPRINGDALE and LOWELL shall minimally train together 
quarterly on Standard Operating Procedures which apply to each organization. Standard 
Operating Procedures and the Incident Command System shall be utilized on all 
incidents. 

5. HOLD HARMLESS: Both SPRINGDALE and LOWELL agree to indemnify 
and hold each other free and harmless from any and all claims, liability, loss, damage or 
expenses from liability for acts or omissions of the other, its officers, employees, and 
agents in connection with the performance of this agreement. 

6. DURATION; TERMINATION: This agreement shall remain in force and 
effect indefinitely unless terminated by either of the parties provided the other party is 
given thirty (30) days notice in writing of such termination. This Agreement may be 
subject to further negotiations in the event either party adds or deletes a fire station or 
resources. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first above written. 

Mayor of Springdale Mayor of Lowell 

Springdale Fire Chief Lowell Fire Chief 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Denise Pearce, Springdale City Clerk Ernest Cate, Springdale City Attorney 

Lowell City Clerk Lowell City Attorney 

0\ 
"'Il' 



... .,..,:_·.-: 
" ............. -. _ ....... .. . 

.....,~~ e pu•., 

' '· 

:······ .: 

. . 
SVSNY>IliY 1311YG9NilldS .:10 .ui:l 

GIY 1Yn~nw 1UM01 

OS 

..... 

\ 



1 

AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID 
BETWEEN 

SPRINGDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
AND 

LOWELL FIRE DEPARTMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this I of February 2014, by and between 
SPRINGDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT, a municipal corporation, hereafter referred to as 
SPRINGDALE, and the LOWELL FIRE DEPARTMENT, a municipal corporation, 
hereafter referred to as LOWELL 

WITNESSETH 
WHEREAS, SPRINGDALE and LOWELL both staff and maintain fire stations for the 
safety and protection of the lives and property witbin their respective jurisdictions; and 
WHEREAS, SPRINGDALE and LOWELL in order to provide the maximum protection 
by providing the fastest service response to its residents, desire to enter into an agreement 
whereby each entity may render automatic mutual aid to each other for certain defined 
incidents; and 
WHEREAS, each entity is required to have a minimum of four (4) safety equipped 
firefighters on the scene of an incident prior to making an interior attack or entering into 
an environment that is an immediately dangerous to health and life (IDHL); and 
WHEREAS, each has the ability to provide mutual aid when not committed to another 
emergency; 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority granted by the State of Arkansas under 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, A.C.A. § 25-20--tOl et seq. (Repl. 2002 and Supp. 2007) 
the mutual promises, covenants and conditions herein contained, the parties hereto agree 
as follows: 
1. DEF1NITIONS. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have 
those meanings as set forth herein; 
a.) Automatic mutual aid as used in this Agreement shall mean the automatic 
response of the closest identified available resource via emergency dispatch center 
request to an adjacent fire jurisdiction regardless of juris<:fictional boundaries. 
b.) The term incident(s) as used in this Agreement are limited to an incident 
specifically identified and set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto, and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 
2. AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID AREA: SPRINGDALE ·and LOWELL agree to 
provide automatic mutual aid to each other within that geographical area, hereafter 
referred to as area, identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto, and incorporated herein by 
this reference .. 
3. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS; Upon· receipt of an emergency call. SPRINGDALE 
and LOWELL, if available, shall respond one {1) engine company (minimum type two 
engine) with a 

···.~.:. .. 

-'II') 



minimum of three (3) personnel that have been trained to a minimum of FFJ, FFTI, Haz
Mat awareness and Operations, and EMf into the area. When responding, each agency 
shall insure that: 
a.) All personal protective clothing and equipment shall be used by all participating 
firefighters on the scene of a fire or emergency incident. 
b.) The command and tactical frequency assigned by Command 
shall be utilized on an incident; and. 
c.) The unit first arriving at the scene shall assume command of the incident until 
relieved by an equal or superior officer of the agency· having jurisdiction. 
d.) The agency frrst arriving may cancel any further response to the incident if that 
agency is capable of handling the incident and the responsible jurisdiction duty officer is 
so notified. 
4 . TRAINING: SPRINGDALE and LOWElL shall minimally train together quarterly on 
Standard Operating Procedures which apply to each organization. Standard Operating 
Procedures and the Incident Command System shall be utilized on all incidents. 
5. HOLD HARMLESS: Both SPRINGDALE and LOWELL agree to indemnify and hold 
each other free and harmless from any and all claims, liability, loss. damage or expenses 
from liability for acts or omissions of the other, its officers, employees, and agents in 
connection with the performance of this agreement. 
6. DURATION; TERMINATION: This agreement shall remain in force and effect 
indefinitely unless terminated by either of the parties provided the other party is given 
thirty (30) days notice in writing of such termination. This Agreement may be subject to 
further negotiations in the e·vent either party adds or deletes a fire station or resources. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first above written. 

Mayor of Springdale 

Springdale Fire Chief 

A TrEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

k ,,.mu,,,,, 
Springdale City Cler ~''''o~ELt, -4~~,, 

~~i. \: ••• ··· '~~ ~ ·~., y • --;r--, ~C' ··.-.'fiC£4/• ~~ 
,r .1'' 1ft_ ~ ~ .• Q'~" •• tJl-:; 

( "'i("' . "~·~~.. ~1P~ 
(;).;ell City Cl~: SEAL ;,~ 

~~- - ~~ ~--'• ·~.., ~- .,~-. ·~~ 
~o··. ···~~ ~,.:;<'-1. ••••• ~~ ,, .. 

,,,~, OWEL.\. ~\'\"' 
''''•mumh 

Spri~City Attorney 

/'( :.-..-
/ v 

Lciw~ity Attorney 

u 

N 
V) 



March 3, 2014 

Mayor Doug Sprouse; 
Councilman Eric Ford; 

Post Office Box I 521 
417 Holcomb Street 
Springdale, AR 72765-1521 
Phone (479) 751-4510 
Fax{479)7S0-8104 

We have been in recent discussions in the Northwest Arkansas Metro Chiefs about 
becoming truly a regional concept in Northwest Arkansas. With that, as we continue to 
see joint efforts in Haz-Mat, Urban Search and Rescue (USAR), and a renewed effort to 
work together, automatic aid has began to surface as a true possibility. 
We currently have an automatic aid agreement with Fayetteville for a certain area of 
their city, as well as they have a certain area in our city. It works well, and basically 
what it means is that one of their fire apparatus is assigned as a responder to that area, 
just as we are. This was in place before my arrival, and in discussing with the senior 
staff, little if any problems have arisen with this agreement, and it does seem to be pretty 
equitable as far as responses. 
The reason for the letter is that Lowell and Springdale Fire Departments have been in 
recent discussions about automatic aid, and as we both see our call volumes increase, we 
think we can offer some help and reliefto each other. They are wanting us to enter into 
an automatic aid agreement with them for their city limits north to Momoe Avenue on 
structure fires, and we are looking at adding them to our response area to 264 highway. 
The reason for the letter is that currently this is a mutual aid agreement and this will 
eliminate a step required in calling for the assistance, but will automatically assign the 
help to those agreed upon areas. This can also be looked at with Tonitown as well as 
Cave Springs, which may help our ISO ratings as well. If you have automatic aid 
agreements, they can help ISO ratings, however if it is only mutual aid agreements is 
does not help. 
This is something that our council would have to approve, so I wanted to discuss it with 
both of you prior to asking it to be placed on any conunittee agenda. Thank you and 
please let me know your feelings on this subject. We believe that the number of calls 
would be fairly equal between both entities, and therefore, and true help for both 
departments and cities. 

Mike Irwin 
Fire Chief 
Springdale Fire 
Department 

f'f'l 
l() 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 
CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WITH BENTON 
COUNTY, ARKANSAS. 

WHEREAS, the Springdale Fire Department has historically provided 

emergency medical services to residents living in certain unmcorporated areas of 

Benton County, Arkansas; 

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. §14-266-101, et seq., gives the City of Springdale the 

authority to enter into agreements to provide emergency medical services; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale, Arkansas, and Benton County, Arkansas, 

wish to enter into an agreement regarding emergency medical services in certain 

unincorporated areas of Benton County, Arkansas, and regarding the payment to the 

City of Springdale for providing those services during the calendar year 2014; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized to execute an Agreement for Emergency Medical Services, a copy of which is 

attached to this Resolution. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

~b,~ 
Ernest B. Cate, CITY ATTORNEY 

ErnestCa/20 14Misc/RESOems 

~ 
an 



AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into between Benton County, a political subdivision of the 
State of Arkansas, and the City of Springdale, Arkansas, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Arkansas, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR", pursuant to ACA § 14-266-101, and for and 
in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth: 

1. In exchange for the consideration to be paid by Benton County described herein, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide area coverage for emergency medical services to an area of 
unincorporated Benton County described in attachment "A." The services to be provided are as 
follows: 

(a) Emergency response by trained personnel to matters reasonably requiring 
such response, including but not limited to traffic and other accidents, other incidents resulting in 
injury to persons, and other emergency medical response. 

(b) One-way transportation for emergency medical care by advance life 
support ambulance (as that term is defined under Arkansas law and/or the regulations of the 
Arkansas Department of Health) to an emergency medical facility. 

(c) Emergency care while en route to the emergency medical facility by 
qualified medical personnel. 

2. 
year2014. 

The services described herein shall be provided by CONTRACTOR during calendar 

3. The ability of the County to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of its EMS 
delivery system is greatly dependent upon the availability of valid data and statistical analysis that 
measures system performance including both clinical and financial outcomes. The contractor shall 
provide detailed and periodic reporting as follows: 

A. Operational Reporting Requirements: The contractor shall provide within 30 days 
after each quarter, reports detailing its performance during the preceding quarter as it relates 
to emergency medical services provided pursuant to this agreement. At a minimum the 
contractor will include the following in its operational quarterly reports: 

• Total responses 
• Total transports 
• Total patients transported 
• Total responses and transport activity by ambulance unit 
• Total cancelled calls (prior to arrival) 
• Total patient refusals 
• Distribution of responses by time of day and day of week 
• Distribution of incidents by location (ambulance service zones) 
• Description of incidents by call type 
• Response time summary for all responses 

ll'l 
ll'l 



• Response time summary by ambulance service zones 
• Response time summary by ambulance unit 

B. Financial Reports: The contractor shall organize and report its financial records in a 
manner to facilitate the direct comparisons between dispatch incident numbers and patient 
account records. The financial records will be provided to the County on a quarterly basis 
and organized to capture the following as it applies to emergency medical services provided 
pursuant to this agreement: 

• Total expenses and revenues 
• Total average charge per patient 
• Total average patient charge for mileage 
• 30, 60, and 90 day accounts receivable 
• Distribution of payments by all payment groups (Medicare, Medicaid, private 

insurance, direct payment, non-collectables/bad debt} 
• Quarterly collection rate (percentage} for all ambulance billings 
• Total ofuncollected accounts with 180 days of aging 

4. In exchange for the services provided hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall be paid by 
Benton County the sum of $68,774.37. Said amount shall be paid in quarterly installments upon 
CONTRACTOR rendering a bill to Benton County reflecting the amount to be due per quarter. 

5. CONTRACTOR may also require payment of user fees by individuals receiving the 
services contemplated hereunder or their insurers as may be allowed by law. CONTRACTOR 
agrees that it will charge the same amount to persons receiving services under this agreement, and 
their insw'ers, if applicable, that it charges to persons receiving similar services within its City limits. 
Benton County shall have no liability to CONTRACTOR for any user fees it is unable to collect. 

6. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all expenses of personnel and materials 
related to carrying out its obligations hereunder. CONTRACTOR shall pay any and all applicable 
taxes regarding its operations, including specifically taxes related to its employees. 
CONTRACTOR shall also pay for any required insurance for their employees for workers 
compensation. 

7. CONTRACTOR covenants and agrees to perform the services provided by this 
agreement to the best of its ability. It may enter into mutual aid agreements with other providers of 
emergency medical services as it sees fit to cany out this contract in the same manner as the services 
it provides within its city limits or elsewhere. 

8. Either party shall be entitled to terminate this agreement on thirty days written notice. 

9. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement for Emergency Medical 
Services to the contrary, in the event no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted or 
are otherwise unavailable in any fiscal period for any payments due under the agreement, including 
any extensions or renewals thereof, Benton County will notify CONTRACTOR of such occurrence 

\0 
ll'l 



and the agreement shall terminate on the last day of the fiscal period for which appropriations were 
received. 

10. This agreement is drawn to be effective in and shall be construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Arkansas. No amendment or variation of the terms of this agreement shall be 
valid unless made in writing and signed by the party to be charged. 

WITNESS the hands and seals of the parties as of the day of January, 2014. 

BENTON COUNTY, ARKANSAS 

By: 
HON. ROBERT D. CLINARD, Benton County Judge 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS 

By: 
HON. DOUG SPROUSE, Mayor 

Attest: HON. DENISE PEARCE, City Clerk 

....... 
1/'l 



8S 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONTRACT FOR FIRE 
DEPARTMENT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IN THE 2012 

BOND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the City of Springdale approved a bond measure In August of 
2012 to provide 9 million dollars for the purpose of fire department Improvement 
projects, and 

WHEREAS, under this bond measure the City of Springdale is planning to 
construct three fire stations, and 

WHEREAS, the Police and Fire Committee desire to utilize construction 
management {CM) services commonly referred to as "CM at Risk'', and 

WHEREAS, using the procurement procedures required by State Law, the 
program management team made recommendations and the Pollee and Fire 
Committee selected Commerce Construction Company, Inc. to perform 
construction management services for the fire station projects; and 

WHEREAS, a contract has been submitted for review to cover the terms and 
cost for pre-construction services as well as the terms for construction services; 
and 

WHEREAS, upon bidding the project an amendment will be submitted for 
approval with the agreed upon guaranteed maximum price (GMP) of the projects, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that: 
The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a construction 
management contract with Commerce Construction Company, Inc. In amounts 
not to exceed the maximum fees listed. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of March, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

&.fo~~ 
Ernest 8. Cate, City Attorney 

Q\ 
'l'l 



lnlt. 

I 

'AlA Document A133'"- 2009 
Standard Form of Agllement.Between Owner and Construction Manager as 
Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price 

AGREEMENT made as of tlte Iwmtv=Ninth ~ ofM!I._in the year Two 1bousmd 
'fhirt9cP 
(In words, indicate day, month awl year.) 

BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name. legal status and address) 

CitvofS~e 
201 s.;tiu;· Street 
Springdale..Arbnsas '72764 

and tbe Ccmtruction Manager. 
(Name, legal stat:us and Qildress) 

~~Cmstructim Cqppmy 
69.5 N .. 40 Street 
~e. AJkansas 72762 

for the fullowing Project: 
(Name imd address or location) 

Citv of Springdale Fire Station tmgrades 

The Arclritcct: 
(Name. legal status and address) 

Millcc Boskus Lack Arcbitects. P .A. 
2397 N. Green Acres Road 
Fayetteyill.e. Arkansas 72703 

The Owncc's Designated Rqnseotative: 
(Name. address and other irformation) 

The Construc:tian Manager's Designated Representative: 
(Name. address and other il(ormation) 

This document has important 
legal consequences. CDniUitation 
with In altomey 

18 ancourapd with respect to 
Its complatlon or modification. 

AlA Document A201'~~~-2007, 
General Conditione d the 
Contract for Construction, Ia 
adopted In this~ by 
relenlnce. Do not uee with other 
general conditions unlen this 
document II modified. 

AlA DIICUIIIent A1U,.- 2101 Cfom*t1 Atzt'-CMc-JOn). Cop)ttght 0 11191, 2003 and 2008 by The Amatlcan lnai!Ua Df ~. M ltgl* -IYecl. 
WARNING: This NA• Document Ia pmec:c.cl b)' U.S. COpyrfght Lnr and lntwMtiOn .. TI'HUN. Unaulhortnd ntprodut:tlon or dlatltbldlon of this AlA• 1 
Doc:ument, or any portion of It, may raaullln- cJvl MIS crlmlftel pMdlse, end will be ,_cu~ec~ to the 1nallnum extent poutble under the law. 
Thill document wa1 jln)duced by AlA sollwa18 lt14:3D:20 on 01!121112013 under Order No.5360090163_1 whlcl'l axplraa on 10111112013, and Ia not fer ruale. 
User NOIH: (2004174670) 

= \C 



lnlt. 

Ds:nnis Moore 
Cmsmerce Constructim Company 
69'S N. 40th Street 
S'oringdale. ArlranPf! 72762 

The Architect's Designated Representative: 
(Name, ad4rus and olher i'l(ormation) 

RoJrz A. Bosk,ps 
Miller Bo8kUs Lack Arehitects. P .A. 
23.97N. Ur.CenAqes.Rnad· . 
FayeUQylUC. Arlcan!!!lf! 72'703 

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as filllows. 

AlA Document A13S.,.- lOIII (fonMI'Iy A121-cMc-2001). Cop)lllgtll 01981, 2003 and 2009 by The Amlltcln lnltillltll of Archltllcts. Allrlfl* -IWid. 
WARNING: Tbl& AJA.8 Document Ia protec:t.d by U.S. Copyright Lew and lntemat.lonal Treaties. UnauthllfiQd reproduction or dlwtbutton of ttlla AIA8 2 
Document, Of any poltkln of It, m-r ntullln allY- civil and c:rlntlnll p.naltiK, and will be proM~:Uled to ttle mulnlum alltent poaalbla ullder the IIW. 
Thla c1ocurnerW- prodUced by AlA~ lit 14:30'.20 on 0512812013 unclarOtller No.!i3e0090183_1 wtllch aiCPinta on 10/1812013, and Ia not for ...... 
UMI'Notea: (2004174870) 

...-1 
\C 



lnJt. 

TABLE OF ARTIClES 

f GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBIL.mES 

3 OWNER'S RESPONSIBIUTIES 

• COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

5 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

e COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

7 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

8 INSURANCE AMP BONDS 

9 DISP\JTE RESOLUTION 

10 TERIIINATION OR SUSPENSION 

11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEIIENT 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 The Conthli:t Documents 
The Contract I>ocun:lc!nts comist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Ccmtract (Gencnl, Supplementary and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to the cxecutioo of this Agreement. other docum.cnts 
listed in this Agreemcot, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agrec:mcnt, aD of which form the Cmtract 
and are as fully a part efthc Cootract as if attadled to this Agreement c.- repeated herein. Upon the Owner's acceptance 
of the Constructioo Manager's Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Contract Documents will also include the 
doc:ummts described in Scctioo 2.2.3 and identified in the Ouaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and revisions 
prepaml by the Arclritect and fumished by the Owner as described in Section 2.2.8. The Contract rqrescnts the entire 
and integrated agrcetnart between the parties hereto and supersedes pri<r negotiatioos, representations or agreements, 
either writtm c.- oral. If anything in the other Cmtract Documents, othrz than a ModificatiCil, is incoosistalt with this 
Agreement, this Agrcematt sba1I govem 

§ 1.2 Rtlatlonlhlp d the Plltltl 
The Canstructioo Managc:r accepts the relationship of trust and confidcmce established by this Agreement and 
covenants with the Owna- to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Constructioo. Manager's skill and judgment 
in furthering the intemts of the Owner; to furnish efficient constructioo administration, managemcot services and 
supervision; to fUrnish at an times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the Work in an 
expeditious and eoon<micaJ manna- coosistcnt with the Owner's interests. The Owner agrees to fumisb or approve, in 
a timely manner, informatioo. required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the Construction 
Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 1.3 Gtnerll Concltlont 
For 1he Prcconstruction Phase, AlA .llocumcnt A20111L2007, Gena Cmditions of the Contract fur Constiuction, 
shall apply only as specifically provided in dlis Agreement. For the Coostruction Phaac, the gcncnl conditions of the 
caotw:t sba11 be as sctb1hinA201-2007, which documartis incorporated herc:m byrefureoce. The term 
"Contractor" as used in A201- 2007 shall mean the Coostruction Manager. 

ARTICLE 2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBLmES 
The Cmstrudioo Manap' s Prcconstructioo Phase respoosibilities are set forth in Sections 2.1 and 2.2. The 
Construction Manager's Cmstructioo Pbue responsibilities are set forth in Section 2.3. The Owner and Construction 

NA ~ A133• • 2tOt (fonnMty A111""CCIc -1001). COp)1rlglt C 1911, 2003 and 2008 byThaAmertcan ntllute of .An:hltlcla. M r11t* _,.._ 
w~: This AlA• Doculnent Is Pft*l:t•d by U.S. Copyright L• end lnt81'Mtlonal T...UU. Unaulhorlnd Nprvductlon or dlstrtbutlon of this AlA• 3 
Doeument, or any portiOn of It, m8)' !MUll In .. veN civil and criminal pen11Jt1e1, and will be prvsecuted to the mellfmum uterrt paalbll under th• lew. 
Thll documentwae produced by AlA IOftwml at 14:30:20 on 05/2812013 under Older No.531100901113_1 whlctluplm on 10/1812013, 1nd II notfor181811. 
U..NoiM: (2004174870) 

' ~ 

M 
\0 



lnlt. 

Manager may agree. in consultation with the Architect, for the Cons1ruction Phase to commence prior to completion of 
the Preconstruction Phase, in wbicb case, both phases will proceed concurrently. The Constnu:tion Manaaer shall 
identify a representative au1btr.ized to act on behalf of the Construction Manager with respect to the Project. 

§ 2.1 Preconltructlon Phut 
§ 2.1.1 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluatim of the Owner' s program, schedule and 
construction budget requirements, each in tmns of the other. 

§ 2.1.2 Consultation 
The Constnwtioo Manager shall schedule and conduct DWJtings with the Architect and Owner to discuss sw:h malta's 
as procedures, progress, coordinatioo, and scheduling of the W~'k. The C<mtruction Managcr shall advise the Owner 
and the Architect on proposed site U8e and improvements, selection of mataials, and billding systems and equipment. 
The Cmstruetion ~ sbaD also provide rerommendatiODS consistent with the Project requirements to the Owna
and Architect on constructability, availability of materials and labor; time requirem.c:ots fur procuremmt, instalJation 
and constnwtion; and .factors related to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or 
materials, preliminary budgets, lifc..cycle data, and possible cost reductioos. 

§ 2.1.3 Whc::n Project requirements in Sectioo 3.1.1 have been sufficiently identified, 1he Construction Manager sba1J 
prepare and p~iOdiCally Qpdate a Project schedule fur the Architect's review and the Owner's acceptance. The 
Constructioo M!mapr ShiU Obtain the Arc:bitcct's approval fur 1he portioo of the Project schedule relating to the 
peifo.nnance qfthc Arcb.iteCt's services. The Project schedule shall coordinate IIDd integrate the Construction 
Maniager's-iervices, 1he Architect's services, other OwnCI' consultants' services, and the 0wnCI''s responsibilities and 
i~tify items tb8t could Mfeict the Project's timely completion. The updated Project schedule shall include the 
fbllowing: submission of the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal; componm.ts of the Wort; times of 
commc:nC:cmcnt and COU:JPletioo required of each Subcontractor; mlcring and delivery of products, inclucting those 
that must be ordertid wd1 in advance of constructioo; and the occupancy requirements of the Owner. 

§ 2.1.4 Phaied Conetructlon 
The CM*uctioo ~shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated or filst.-track scheduling, 
procuremcilt, cr pJwed CODBtruction. The Constructioo Mmlger shall take into considc:ration cost reductioos, cost 
infurmation, coostructability, provisioos for tempcnry fAcilities and procuremmt and coostruction scheduling issues. 

§ 2.1.5 Prtllmfrwy Colt Estlmltel 
§ 2.1.5.1 Based on the prdimiDary design and other design criteria prepared by the Atcbitcct, the Construction 
Managa- shall prepare preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program require:mcnis using area, 
volwne or similar conceptual estimating techniques fur the Architect's review and Owner's approval. Hthe Architect 
or Constructim Manager suggests a1tcma.tive materials and systems, the Coostruction Manager shall provide cost 
evaluations of those altemati'Y'e materials and systems. 

§ 2.1.5.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Developmmt and 
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prqce and update, at appropriate intervals agreed to by the 
Owner, Constructim Manager and Architect, estimates of the Cost of the Wmk of increasing detail and refinement 
and allowing fur the further development of the design mtil such time as the Owner and Cmstructim Manager agree 
on a Guaranteed Maximtm Price for the Work. Such estimates shall be provided for the Architect's review and the 
Owner's approval. The Cmstru<::tim Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect when estimates of the Cost of the 
Wcrk exceed the latest approved Project budget and make recammcndations fur corrective actim. 

§ 2.1.1 Sutlc:ontrlcton and Supplltra 
The Ccostructim Manager sba1l develop bidden' interest in the Project. 

§ 2.1.7 The Construction Manager sba1l prepare, fur the Architect's review and the Owna-'s acceptance, a 
proc:urc:mmt schedule fur items that must be ordered wdJ in advance of construction. The Construction Manager shall 
expedite and coordinate the ordaiog and delivery of mataials 1hat must be ordered well in advance of construction. H 
the Owner agrees to procure any items prior to the estabtisbment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall 
procure the items oo terms and conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager. Upon the establisbmc:n.t of the 
Guanmtced Maximwn Price, the Owner shall assign all contracts fur these items to the Construction Manager and the 
Constructim Manager shall thereafter accept responsibility for than. 

NA ~ A1U•-20111for-'Y A11t""C'Co-2001). ~ 01181, 2003 1nd 2009 byTt. ~ lnlll* of An:hltlcts. All rill*~ 
WAitNING: ThlaAJA1 Document Ia pll'lltel:tld illy U.S. Copyright Law and lnllrnatlonal Trutlaa. Unauthorized ,.pii'Oductlan or dlstrlllutlon of thll NA

1 4 
Document, or any portion of It, mey ,.autt In IIYerw civil .,.d c:rtmlnal pan•lll•, and will bl p111Mc:uted to tt1e maximum utent panlbla under the J•. 
Thll documlltWII produced illy AJA IICftwlre It 14:30:20 on o&2812013 under Onier No.5360080163_1 which uplrw on 10/18/2013,1nd._ not tar ...... 
UMrNOIIs: (2004174870) 

I \ 

~ 

ff') 
'-C 



lnlt. 

§ 2.1.8 Extent of RHponslbiAty 
The Constructioo. Manager shall exercise reasonable care in preparing schedules and estimaWs. The Coo.structioo. 
Manager, however, does not warrant or guarantee estimatr8 and schedules except as may be included as part of the 
Guaranteed Maximmn Price. The Cmstructian Manager is not required to ascertain that the Drawings and 
Specifications arc in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, orctiuances, codes, rules and regulations, or ]awful 
orders of public aUiborities, but the Coostruction Manager is expected to haW general kJ1owkdgc of 1hose items and 
shall promptly report to 1he An:hitect and Owner any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the 
Constructim Manager as a request for infonnation in such form u 1be Aichitect may require. 

§ 2.1.9 Noticll ll1d CGihplilnce with Laws 
The Constructioo. Managa- &ball comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations. and 
lawful orders of public authoritiCII applicable to its pcrfunnance unda' this Contract, and with equal employment 
opportunity PfOgramB, and other programs as maybe required by govcmmmtal and quasi governmental audlorities fur 
inclusion in 1he Contract Documents. 

§ 2.2 Guaranteed Maximum Prfce Propotll and Contract Time 
§ 2.2.1 At a time to be mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the Construction Manager and in consultatim with the 
Architect, the (Anstruction ltfanager sbal1 prepare a Guaranteed MaximlDD Price proposal fur the Owner's review and 
acceptance. The Guanmtced Maximum Price in the proposal shall be the sum of the Construction Manager's estimate 
of the Cost of the WOrk, including contingencies described in Section 2.2.4, and the Construction Managa-'s Fee. 

§ 2.2.2 To the extent 1hat the Dtawings and Specifications are anticipated to require further development by the 
Architect, the Constructioo Managa-sball provide in the Guarant=d MaximlDil Price for such fur1hc:r development 
consistent with the Coo.tract Documents and reasoo.ably inferable therdram. Such further development does not 
include sudl things as cbanacs in acope, systems, kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equjpmcnt, all of which, if 
required, sbal1 be incorporated by Change Order. 

§ 2.2.3 The Construction Managa- shaD. include with the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal a vnitten statement of 
its basis, which shall include the fOllowing: 

.1 A list of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thtLeto, and the Conditions of the 
Coo.tract; 

.2 A list of the clarifications and assumptioo.s made by the Construction Manager in the pJq)81"8tion of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, including assumptions 1mder Section 2.2.2, to supplement the 
infunnation provided by the Owner and contained in the Dtawings and Specifications; 

.3 A statement of the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price, including a statemcut of the estimated Cost 
of the Work organized by trade categories or systems, allowances, contingcucy, and the Construction 
Manager's Fee; 

.4 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion upm which the proposed Guaranteed Ma:xitmm Price 
is based; and 

.5 A date by which the Owner must accept the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

§ 2.2.4 In preparing the Cmstruction Manager's Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Construction Manager 
shall include its contingalcy fur the Consrructim Manasa''s exclusive use to cover those costs considered 
reimbursable as the Cost of the Work but not included in a Change Order. 

§ 2.2.5 The Constructioo. Manapr shaD meet with the Owner and Architect to review the Guaranteed Max.immn Price 
proposal. In the event that the Own« and Architect discover any inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the informatioo. 
presented, they shall promptly notify the Construction Managcz-, who shall make appropriate adjustmcuts to the 
Guaranteed Maxim\UD Price proposal, its basis, (X' both. 

§ 2.2.1 If 1he Owner notifies the Construction Manager that the Owner has aa:cpted the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
proposal in writing before the date specified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price proposal &ball be deemed effective without further acceptance from the Cmstructian Manager-. Following 
acceptance of a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner and Constructicn Manage.r shall execute the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price Amendment amending this Agreement, a copy of which the Owner shall provide to the Architect. The 

AlA DocuMent A13J•- 2001 {Jomlllty A111•CIIc- 2001). Cop~C 1881,2003 811112009 by The American lrld1uell of Ardlllllctl. All rights -rved. 
WARNING: Thla AlA• Document le pratectad by U.S. Copyright lnt and lntematlonel Trwatlea. Uneuthortzed rwproductlon or dletrtbutlon of tfllaldA• 5 
Document, or any portion of It, may ,..ult In ..,_civil and criminal penaltlea, and will ba proAcuted to ltll malmum extant poulble under the l.w. 
This document- produced by AlA aoftware at 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under OrdW No.53800110163_1 whlctlllCPinla on 1011812013, end II not for ....... 
u .. NoiM: (200417<1870) 

~ 
) 

"'~:~' 
\C 



lnlt. 

Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendmmt sbal1 set forth the agrml upon Ouaran1eed Maximum Price with the 
information and assumptions upoo which it is based. 

I 2.2.7 The Coo.structioo Manager sbal1 not incur any cost to be reimb\ned as part of the Cost of the W OJk pi<r to the 
commencement of the Construction Phase, 1Dlless the Owner provides pri<r written authorization for such costs. 

§ .2.2.8 The Owner shall authorize the Arcllitcct to provide tbe revisiODS to the Drawings and Specifications to 
incotporate the agrccd-upm assumptions and clarific:aticm contained in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment. 
The Owner shall promptly furnish those revised Drawings and Specificationa to the Conslructi.on Manap as they are 
revised. The Construction Manap shall notify the Owner and Architect of any inconsistencies between the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and the revised Drawings and Specifications. 

§ 2.2.91he Construction Manap shall include in the Guaran.teed Maximum Price all sales, consumer, use and similar 
taxes for theW OJk provided by the Construeti.cm. Manager that are legally enacted, whethc:r m- not yet effi:ctive, at the 
time the Guaranteed M-.xiunun Price Amendment is executed 

§ 2.3 CGMtnrc:tion Phllt 
§ 2.3 .. 1 Gtni~ 
I 2.3.1.1 For purposes of Section 8.1.2 of A201-2007, the date of c:ommcncement of the Work shall mean the date of 
COCDJDalCCDlCD.t of the Conltruction Phaae. 

§ 2 .. 3.1.21be Constructioo Pbase shall commence upcm. the Owner's act:eptance of the Construction Managa-'s 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Jl'oposal or the Owner's issuance of a Notice to Proceed, whicheva" occurs earlier. 

I 2.3.2 Admlnl.ntlon 
§ 2~3~ 11hosc: portions of the Work that the Coostruction Mauagc:r does not customarily pafurm with the 
Construdim MllnaF,r' s own personnel sba.U be perfunned uodc:r subcontracts or by other appropriate agreements 
with 1he Coostruction ~«. The Own« may designate specific pc:rsons from whom, <r entities from wbic:b, the 
Construction Manaaer shall obtain bids. The Conslructioo Managc:r shall obtain bids from Subemtractors and fnm 
supplic:rs of ~s or equipment fabricated espccially for the Work and shall deliver such bids to the Architect. The 
Owner shall then detc:nni!le, with the advice of the Construction Manager and the Architect, which bids will be 
accepted. The Ccmtruction Manas« sba1l not be required to cmtract with an}'ODC to whom the Cmstruction Managa
has reasonable objection. The rgsmal>lmess of the obiectioJl m,n be detgmined by the Ownq. 

§ 2.3.2.2 Hthe Guaranteed Maximum Price has been cstablisbed and when a specific bidder(!) isrecommalded to the 
Owner by the Coostruction Manager, (2) is qualified to pafurm that portion of the Work, and (3) has submitted a bid 
that conforms to the requircmcnts of the Con1ract Documents withwt rescrvatioos or exceptions, but the Own« 
requires that anothc:r bid be accepted, then the Constructicm Manager may require that a Change Older be issued to 
adjust the Contract Time and 1he Guaranteed Maximum Price by the difference between the bid of the person or tnti.ty 
rcc:ommalCkd to the Owner by the Cons1ruction Managc:r and the amount and time requitanent of the subcontract tr 
other agreanent actually signed with the penon or entity designated by the Owncl'. 

§ 2.3~3 Subcontracts or other agreements shall c:anform to the applicable payment provisims of this Agreement. and 
shall not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the prior COI1SCilt of the Ownc:r. lfthe Subcontract is 
awarded on a cost-plus a fee basis, the Ccmtruction Maoap sball p-ovide in the Subcootract for the Owner to receive 
the IIIUDC audit rights with regard to the Subcontractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Coostruetion Manager 
in Section 6.11 below. 

§ 2.3.2.4 If the Coostruction Manager rcecxnmends a specitic bidder that may be considered a "rdated party" 
according to Section 6.10, then the Construction Manager sball promptly notify the Owner in writing of such 
relationship and notify the Own« of the spec:i.fic nature of the contemplated transaction, ac:cording to Section 6.10.2. 

§ 2.3.2.51be Consbuctioo Manager sball schedule and CClllGJct meetings to discuss such matters as ]li'OCCdures, 
progress, coordination, scheduling. and status of the Work. The CODStruction Manag« shall prepare and promptly 
distribute minutes to the Owner aod Architect 

AJA ~ A1U,.- 20011 (foi-'Y A121 "'CMc-21101). Co!¥lght 0 1981, 200311111 200!J by The Americ8n lnlha of An:tlltllc*. Nl llgtD ,_IWIL 
WARNING: This AlA.• Document Is pnMKtecl t1r U.S. Copyright Lllw .ncllrtlemMianel TrNtlle. IJnauttlorlud Nprocluctlon or diMrtbullon of ttH AJA• 6 
Dow~Mnt, or MIY poftlon of ll, IMY f'ftullln uv.,. d¥11111111 criftlln.ll peMitlq, and will be ,_cuted to the mulmum extent .,_Ibis under the lew. 
Thll clocumelltwu produced by AlA IOilWin et14:30:20 on 0!12B/2013 under Order No.5310080183_1 wllk:h expires on 10118121113, and II not for resile. 
U..r Nata: (2004174870) 

i 
l 

~ 
\C 



lnlt. 

§ 2.3.2.6 Upon the execution of the Guuantecd Maximum Price Amcndmeut, the Construction Mmaga- shall prepare 
and submit to the Owntz and Architect a construction schedule for the Work aud submittal schedule in accordance 
with Section 3.10 of A201-2007. 

I 2.3.2.7 The Constructioo Manager shall rcccri the~ of the Project. On a monthly basis, or otbcnvise as 
agreed to by the Owntz, the Coo.structiao Manap shall submit writttn progress reports to the Owner and Architect, 
showing percentages of completion and oCher information requirccl by the Owner. The Construction Manager sball 
also keep, and make available to the Owntz and Architect, a daily log containing a record for each day of weather, 
portioos of the Work in progress, number of workers on site, idc:ntificatim of equipment on site, problems that might 
affect DJ'OIZJ'eSS of the work, accidents, injuries, aod othtz informatim required by the Owner. 

I 2.3~8 The C<mtiuctioo Maoagcr sball develop a system of cost control for the Work, including regular monitoring 
of actual costs for activities in progress and estimates fur UllCOIDpleted tasks and proposed changes. The Construction 
Managrr shall identify variances between actual and estimatz:d costs and rqJort the variances to the Owner and 
Ardlitect and shall provide this information in its montbly reports to the Own« and Architect, in accordance with 
Section2.3.2.7 above. 

§ 2A Profl1tional Servic:ll 
Sectioo 3.12.10 ofA201-2007 shall apply to both thePm:onstructioo and CODBtruction Phases. 

§ 2.5 Hlmdous Mlllrilll 
Section 10.3 of A20.1 .-.2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Constructim Phases. 

ARTICLE 3 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 3.11nformatlori and S.rviC:el Requlle of the Owntr 
§ 3.1. t The Owner aliall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requircmmts for and limi1ations 
on the Pr()ject, including a writtm p-ogram which shall set forth the Owner's objectives, constraints. and criteria, 
including sdledule, space rcquiremcnts and relatiDDBhips, flexibility and expandability, special cquipmalt, systems 
sustaiDabilit¥ and site ~fB. 

§ 3.1.2 Prior to the execution of the Gwmmteed Maximum Price Amcodmmt, the Construction Manager may request 
in writing that the Owner provide reasonable evidence that tbe Owner has made financialiiD'IIDgCIDCilt to fulfill the 
Ownel''s obligaticms Wider the Ccntract. Thereafter, the Construction Manager may mly request such evidence if(l) 
the Owner fails to make payments to the Construction Manager as the Contract Documents require, (2) a c:lumge in the 
Wen mataially chanacs 1he Contract Sum, or (3) the Constructim Mmager identifies in writing a reasonable conc:em 
regarding the Owner's ability tomah payment when due. The Owner sball fimish sudt evidence as a condition 
precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the Work aft'ectecl by a material cbange. 
After the Owner fUmishes the evidence, the Owner ahaU not materially vary suc:.h financialiii'J1ID8CIIlents without prior 
notice to the Construction Manager and Architect. 

§ 3.1.3 The 0wnel' shall establish and periodically update the 0wnel''s budget fer the Project, including (I) the budget 
for the Cost of the Work as defined in Sedioo 6.1.1, (2) the Owner's olher costs, and (3) rcasmable COiltingcocies 
related to all of these costs. Iftbe Owner significantly inaeases or deaeases the Owner's budget for the Cost oftbe 
Work, the Owner shall notifY the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect, in consultation 
with the Coostruction Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the Project's scope and quality. 

§ 3.1.4 Structurll and Envii'Oitlnentll Ttltl, Sump and Rlpartl. During the Preconstructioo Phase, the C>wn« shall 
tumisb the following information or services with reasonable p'OIIlptness. The Owner sUil also tbmisb any other 
information or services Wider the Owner's control and relevmt to the Constructim Manager's performance of the 
Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Constructim Manager's writtm request fur such .infurmation or 
services. The Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information and services furnished by 
tbC Ownel' lNt sball exercise pl'q)m precautions relating to the. safe pedormance of the Work. 

§ 3.1.4.1 The Owner sball furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the 
parties, such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests. tests for air and water pollutim, and tests for hazardous 
materials. 

AlA DIICUIII ... A1U"' -ltDI (fonnerly A121"'CMo -ltDa). Copyright 0 1981, 2003 and 2008 byTha AmetiCin lnslltuiB of An:N1rlcta. All rlghll ,.., .... 
WAANING: This AlA• Documant Is proiKWd by U.S. CoPJrltrht ~and lllterNtlonll Tf'NIIM. UMuttlcNtiiCI ..,oductlon M distribution of thla Allo• 7 
Docunlent, 01 MY poltion of It, !MY IWIIIt In ..,.,. c:MI anti crlrnlnaJ .,._...., Mtl will .,. proucu&acl to the mufmUIII utWII ~ unur 1M law. 
Thil diiQUI!IIInt w11 produced by AlA IOftwlre at 14:30:20 on 0!112812013 under Order No.53tl0090 183_1 which uplres on 10118/2013, •nd Is not for ,. ..... 
U..NGM: {2004174870) 

\Q 
\Q 



lnlt. 

§ 3.1.4.2 The Owner sbaU furnish surveys describing )ilysical charactc:ristics, legal limitations and utility locations b 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The surveys and legal informatim shall include, as applicable, 
grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent 
drainage; rights-of-way, restrictims, easemarts, c:nc:roachrnent zooing. deed restrictioos, boondaries and contours of 
the site; locatims, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees; 
and infOrmation concerning available utility SCJVices and Jines, both public and private, above md below grade, 
including inverts and depths. All the infonnatian m the S1U'Ve)' shall be refetenced to a Project benchmark. 

§ 3.1.4.3 The Owner, when such services are requested, shall fUmish services of geotechnical engineers, wbich may 
include but are not limited to test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluatioos 
of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground conosion tests and resistivit;y tests, including necessary operations 
for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropria1e recommmdatiOD.B. 

§ 3.1.4.4 During the Construction Phase, the Own« shall furnish information or services required of the Own« by the 
Cmtract Documents with reasonable promptness. The Owner sba11 also furnish any other infonnation or services 
under the Owner's control and relevant to the Constructim Manag«'s performance of the Work with reasonable 
promptness aft« receiving the Cmstructian Manager's written request for such information or services. 

§ 3.2 Owner'• Dealgnalld Rlp1118ntattve 
The Owner sball idcnti1Y a rcp~esentative authorized to act on behalf of the Own« with respect to the Project The 
Owner1s repracmtati~ ahall renda' decisims pranptly and furnish infmnatim expeditiously, so as to avoid 
unreasonsble delay in the services <r Work of the Constructioo MIIDAger. Except as otherwise provided in Section 
4.2.1 of ~01-2007, the Ardlitect does not have such authority. The term "Owner'' means the OwnCI' <r the Owner's 
autbaizcd rcuc:sentative. 

§ 3.2.1 Legal Requlrtmenta. The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing 
services, D9,t otbqwise prqvid,c9 by typical c:oostruction tnfi!Apqm;nt seryices tbat may be rcuonab1y neoessaJy at any 
time far 1he Project to meet the Owntr' s needs ami interests. 

§ 3.3 Archlflct 
The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as descn'bed in AlA Docummt 
B193:rv ~. St.ad-.Milemt ef}J«f1emeat BeWI«<l 9vJMF aa4J.dreltneat, 8201 nL2007. General Cmditiops o{the 
Cgotract for ConBtruction. including any additional sc:cvices requested by the Consbuction Manager that are 

necessary for the PrecOnstruction and Coostrw:tion Phase services under this Agreement +M 9wB• Mall p!'e'Jide the 
CllRIIWeti8Jl ~a eepy eftlte Mleeuted II!J! n ..t 1Jelwee tM OMler 8lld tile.~ BMIBY Nfther 

medii8Mi88fl te the •• • 

ARTICLE 4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSlRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 4.1 Compenlltion 
§ 4.1.1 Fm the Construction Manager' s Preconstruction Phase services, the OwnCI' shaU compensate the Cmstruction 
Manag« as follows: 

§ 4.1.2 For the Cmstructim Manager's Preconstruction Phase services described in Sections 2.1 and 2.2: 
(Insert amount of, or ba.Jis for, compensation awl include a list of reimbursable co,rt items, a.t applicable.) 

$1&,otX' Htu. ff etu..eo ON\..l tF CDMt1e~c.ot.lGTRUCfiDN d:'· ooe-& NoT 
~0 'fl"\e uO!> POft ,!t+.l'f ~N J! 

§ 4.1.3 If the Preconstruction Phase services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within (~)months 
of the date of this Agreemmt, through no filult of the Construction Manager, the Cmstruction Manager's 
compeosatim fur Preconstruction Phase services sba11 be equitably adjusted. 

§ 4.1.4 Compensation baaed m Direct Personnel Expense includes the direct salaries of the Construction Managl2'' s 
pasonnel providing Precmstrudim Pbase services on the Project and the Constructim Manager's costs few the 
mandatcxy and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as cmployme:Dt taxes and other statutory 
cmpl~ benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, employee retirement plans and similar contributions. 

NA DocumMit A1 33.,. - 20DI4fol'ftiM'ty A121.,.CMc • 2011S). Cop)'llght 0 1891 , 2003 end 2009 by The AmeJicen lnelltulie of Ardlltacta. Nl rlthts niMr¥811. 
WARNING: Thl• AJA• Document Ia Pf'C*c:tlld by U.S. CopY!fght L-end lntwnetlonal Trutla. UnluthoriZMI Nprodudlon or dlwb1butlon of ltlla MA• 8 
Document, or any portion of It, may result In ••v•N c:lvlland crlmlnlll penaltlu, 1nd will ba proucuted to the mulmum utent poAibll underth•l-. 
Thll ~- p!OdUC.S by AlA tol\wlre et 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Onler No.5360090163_1 which explrw on 1011812013, end II not for resale. 
Uler Notn: (2004174&70) 

1"-
\Q 



lnlt. 

§ 4.2P.,nentl 
§ 4.2.1 Unless othc:rwisc qrccd. payments for services shall be made mmthly in proportion to services performed. 

I 4.2.2 Payments are due and payable upon prcscrrtation of the Construction Manager's invoice .• ~ WIJ!aid ( 
) daya .._the ia'leiee date fihall'-r iaMFe8l at the !lite • ..-llelaw, .. ill the llla•ee thereefat the legal f8te 
~ hl!lltime te time at the priaeiplll plaee ef'snsiaa eflhe ~-Mrnp. 
(lltiJ8III ,.,. Bjfltsnfltly sr ..,.,. ill,.,_l.., _.If'S"') 

-44 

ARTICLE 5 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 5.1 For the Construction Mlnaga-'s pcrlormance of the Work as described in Sectioo 2.3, the Owner shall pay the 
Constructi.m Manqer the Contract Sum in current funds. The Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work as defined in 
Section 6.1.1 plus the Conatruction Manager's Fee. 

§ 5.1.1 The Coostruc::tion Manager-'s Fee: 
(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the CC»Utruction Manager's 

Fee.) ~/)( (t,) /. OF THE. 'Pf,AJ.... CDNT~T ~ · 

§ 5.1.2 The method ofadjustmmtoftheCoostructionMimga-'sFeefor c:banges in the Work: 

&IX(t;)% Of THe c~a, 0~~ ~OUt-.ll 

§ 5.1.3 Limitatioos, if any, on a Subc:ontractor's ova-head and profit for inaeases in the cost of its portion of the Work: 

Tt:N Do)~ Pel'tc.eNT 
§ 5.1.4 Rental rates for Construction Managcr·owned equipm.ent shall not cxcecdbcrcent (Sfo) of the standard rate 
paid at the place of the Project. 

§ 5.1.5 Unit prices, if any: 
(ltkntify and state the unit price; state the quantity limUations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.) 

ltlm Unfiiii1CI Llrnln&n. Price per Unit ($0.00) 

NO~c 

§ 5.2 Gunnteed MIXImlln Price 
§ 5.2.1 The Constmction Manager guarant.ces that the Cmtract Sum shall not exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
set forth in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Am.c:ndmmrt, 88 it is amen.dcd from time to time. To the ex:tmt the Cost of 
the Work exceeds the Gwlrsnteed Maximum Price, the Cmatruction Maoagcl' sball beer such costs in excess oftbe 
Guaranteed MaximlDD Price without reimbursemmt oc additional compcosation from the Owner. 
{111sert specific provisions if the Construction Manager is to participate in 019' savings.) 

C.Hf' OOE5 NOT INCUlt't ~ ¥(!:QUI~ ~f Oftt'JRS ~'i ~'1!.'3 -AN'f 
~vl~ WJt?eil.lHf. G=tt-'\P~ ~ ~I'UT ~T~U~E.N "[tte. 0~1--lE~ ~ .. , 
AND cot.nr-vcro~ ~.'i6$ di 
§ 5.2.21hc ~teed MaxiuniD~ee is subject to additions and deductims by Cbsnge Order 88 provided in the 
Contract Documents end the Date of Substantial Completion shall be subject to adjustment as provided in the Cootract 
Documents. 

§ 5.3 Changn in the Work 
§ 5.3.1 The Owner may, without invalidating the Cmtract, order changes in the Work within the gmcral scope of the 
Contract consisting of additions, deletions a- otbcl' revisiODB. The Own« sball issue such changes in writing. The 
Architect may make minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 of AlA Document A201-2007, General 
CooditiODll of the Contract for Construction. The Cmstruction Manag« shall be entitled to an equitable adjustmmt in 
the Cootract Time 88 a result of changes in theW ork. 

AlA~ A1U"'-- (lv-'Y Atl1-cllc -IOU). CopY~Wt 01991,2003 and 20011 by The Amellcan ..... of Ard'lltacll. All lilt* ,_.IWCI. 
WARNING: This AJA• Oocum•nt Is prot.cted by U.S. Copyright L.w 1nd lnternulonal Theil••· Un1uth01'1Ud reproduction or dlltrlbutlon of lhil AJA1 9 
Document, 01' eny portion of It, -r result In NV.,. clvllllld crfniiNI penattln,llld will be pro.ecuted to the mDialum atll'lt possible under the t.w. 
Thill documemwu produced by AlA IOftwlrw lit 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Older No.53800110183_1 which uplrw on 10/1812013. 1nd It not far reule. 
u..r Nolft: (2004174870) 

00 
\C 



lnlt. 

§ 5.3.2 Adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price on account of changes in the Worlc subsequent to the execution 
of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendmtnt may be determined by any of the methods ·listed in Sectioo 7 .3.3 of 
AlA Document A20 1-2007, Galeral Cooditioos of the Cmtnact for Coostructim. 

§ 5.3.3 In c:alculatmg adjustments to subcontracts (except those awarded with the Owner's prier consent on the basis 
of cost plus a fee), the lama "cost" and "fee" as used in Section 7.3.3.3 of AlA Document A201-2007 md the te:nn 
"costs" as used in Sectioo 7.3. 7 of AlA Docwnalt A20l-2007 shall have the mc:anings assigned to them in AlA 
DocummtA201~007 and shallnotbemodifi.ed by Sectio.os 5.1 and 5.2, Sections 6.1 through 6.7, and Section6.8 of 
this Asrecmmt. Adjustments to subcontracts awarded wi1h the Owner's prior consent oo the basis of cost plus a fee 
shall be calculated in accordance with the terms of 1hose subcontnlas. 

I 5.3.4 In calculating adjustmmts to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the tams "cost" and "costs" as used in the 
above-referenced prQVisions of AlA Document A201-2007 shall mean the Cost of the Work as defined in Sectio.os 6.1 
to 6.7 ofthisAgreaneutand1hetenn "fee" shall mean the Construction Managa-'s Fee as defined in Section 5.1 of this 
Agreement 

§ 5.3.5 If no specific provision is made in Section 5.1.2 fur adjustment of the Cmstructian Managa-'s Fee in the case 
ofcl:taqes in the Work, t:l" if the extent of such cban&es is such, in the aggregate, that application of the adjustmmt 
provisians of Sectioo 5.1,2 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Cooatructioo Manaac:r, the Cooatructim 
Manager's Fee shall be equitably adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the ooginal Work, 
and the Guaranteed~ Price shall be adjusted accordingly. 

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
I a.1 Coats to ae ~ 
I 8.1.11be term Cost of the Work shall mean costs necessarily incurred by the Coostruction Manager in the proper 
pcrfurmance of the Work. Surb. costs sball be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project 
except With prior consent of the Owner. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set fOrth in Sectio.os 6.1 
throu8h 6.7. 

§ 6.1J Where any cost is sul!ject to the Owner's prior approval, the Coostructioo Manager shall obtain this approval 
prior to incurring the cost. The parties shall endeavor to identify any sucll costs prior to executing Guaranteed 
Maximum Price Amendmmt 

§ 6.2 Llbor Costs 
§ 8.2.1 Wages Qf construction workers directly employed by the Cc:mtruction Manager to pcrfmn the construction of 
the Work at the site«, with the Owner's pi« approval, at off-site workshops. 

§ 6.2.2 Wegea or salaries of the Coostructioo Manager's supervisory and administrative persoonel whco statimcd at 
the site with the Owner's prior approval. 
(If it;., intentletl that the lWZges or salariea of certain personnel stationed at tlu! Construction Manager's principal or 
other offices sluzU be included in the Cost of the WorA; ide1ttify in Sectionll.5, the peT8f»ttlel to be i11Cluthd, --Mietllo 
for all or only part of their time, and the rates at which tlteir time will be charged to the Work.) 

§ 11.2.3 Wages and salaries of the Construction Manager's supervisory or administrative personnel mgagcd at 
factories, workshops cr on the road, in expediting 1he production or transportatioo of materials or cquipmmt required 
for the Work, but ooly fer that portioo of their time required for the Work. 

§ 6.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by the Construction Managa- for taxes, insurance, contn"butio.os, assesSIDCDts and 
benefits required by law or collective bergainin& agrecm.cnts and, fur personnel not covenld by such agreanaits, 
customary benefits such as sick leave. medical and health benefits, holidays, vacatiooa and pc:nsicms, provided such 
costs are based on wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Sectio.os 6.2.1 through 6.2.3. 

§ i.2.5 Bonuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation and any other discretiOIWY payments paid to anyone hired by 
the Ccmlnlction Manager or paid to any Subcontractor ar venda, with the Owner's prier approval. 

AIADac....atA1S1,. -tOII(fonMrlr A1211WCMc-ton). ~01891,2003 and 2008 byThtArnerlc.n lrwttllMof Archltleta.M 1111* NMI'WM. 
WARNING: Thl• 1JA• DocL.ment .. proiKted by U.S. Copyright L.w 1111d lntemltlontl TrNU••· Uneuthorind rwproductlon or dlatbuttan of thl• AlA• 10 
DDcunlant. cw .ny poltiDn of ll, mey JMUitln -- dvll Mel cflmlnel peneltles, end wll be pi"OMCUtad to the Dllldlllum extent poAible under the lew. 
Thll IIDcument wu produc;:ed by AlA .ottwe,. el: 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Onler No.5380090183_1 which expl"' on 1011812013, .nd Ia nat far .... 111. 
User Molls: (2004174870) 

0\ 

"' 



I nit 

§ 6.! Subcontract Coati 
Payments made by the Construction Maoagcr to Subcontractors in accordance with the requiremalts of the 
subcontracts. 

§ 1.4 COlli of M118rilla and Equipment Incorporated In the Completed Conttruc:tlon 
§ 6.4.1 Costs, including transpMatioo and st«age, of mattrials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in 
the oompleted constrw:tioo. 

§ 6.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section 6.4.1 in excess of those actually installed to allow for 
reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner's p-opezty at the oompletioo 
of the Work <r, at the Owner's option, shall be sold by the Constructioo Manager. Any amounts realized tom such 
sales shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 

§ 6.5 COlts of Other Maltrfaf1 and Equipment, Temporary Facllltl• and Rellted Ham• 
§ 6.5.1 Costs of transporeation, storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 
temporary .filciJities, m.acltinczy, equipment and haDd tools not customarily owned by construction WO!Xm that are 
provided by the Caostruction Manager at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of 
materials, supplies, tc:mpcnry fiu:ilities, machlnczy, equipmcut and toolS that are not fully cllllSUIIlCd shall be bued on 
the cost or value of the item at 1be time it is first used on the Project site less the value of the item when it is no longer 
used at the Project site. Costs for items not fUlly consumed by the Construction Manager shall mean fiUr market value. 

§ I.S.2 Rental ~ fur temporary facilities, madlinery, cquipmmt and band tools not customarily owned by 
coostruction wcr~ that arc provided by the Construction Manager at thc site aod costs of transportation, installation, 
minor repairs, di~antJing and ranoval.. The total rental cost of any Coostructioo Manager-owned item may not 
exceed the pun:base price Of any comparable item. Rates ofConstructioo Manager-owned cquipm.t:llt and quantities of 
equipment shall be subject to the Owner's p'i<X' aPJX'oval. 

§ I ,U Costs of removal of debris from the site of the Work and its p-opcr and 19 disposal. 

§ 8.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, filcsimile transmi•ions and long-dis1ance telephone calls, postage and 
parcel deli'W'Z}' charges, tdephone service at the site and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 

§ 6.5.51hat portion of the reasooable expenses of the Construction Manager's supervisory or administrative 
personnel incmred while traveling in clisclulrge of duties connected with the Work. 

§ 6.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a .mutually acceptable location, subject to the 
Owner's prior approval. 

§ 8.6 Milcellaneous Costs 
§ 6.8.1 Premiums for that portion of inswlmce and bonds required by the Contract Documents that can be directly 
attributed to this Con1ract. Self-insurance for either full or partial amounts of the covenges lllqUired by the Contract 
Documents, with the Owner's pri<X' approval. 

§ 6.6.2 Sales, use cr similar 1aXes imposed by a governmental authority that arc related to the Work and for which the 
Constructi.oo Manager is liable. 

§ 8.1.3 Fees and ISSCSsments for the building permit ll!1d for other permits, licenses aod inspections for which the 
Coostruction Manager is required by the Contract Documems to pay. 

§ 8.6.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Con1ract Documents, except those related to defective or 
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 13.5.3 of AlA Document A201- 2007 or by 
other provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not &11 within the scope of Section 6.7.3. 

'Nil hy the C811:11aet r 4'ti:Nlar ·~ pl'888811 •.J!!a~ "'l:;..~~·•rem• •~~e 'dfeF .. •ee ap• 'cht&MIIIBI emB~ ···~--li-'!-':o;;;; ...... ....._ol)>_:;-.;;o.. .. __ "/."' .... 
I ' ' ~.............. . ... lopi)IIOipoal H . .. -. J)~ the eest e ..... ia aee8fidaBee ~ :Qt t1v 91-.er•s &8118111:&. 48\lr.._, ~Mil88111R111:181.1MP==-pa)'IBIII:l8 MlleMieeet8tRalle WI • .. H8tlltiBg i'em Nell 1Nl18 ere 

HA Docqnent A13S .. - 2001 (fonnertr A121"'CMc-2003). Copyright e 11191, 2003 end 20011 by The Am~n 1n1111u1a of AtchllllCta. All rtglda -rvw. 
WARNING: Thll AJA• Document '- prvtected by U.S. Cof)Jr1ght L.w 1nd lntemltlon•l T,..ltlls. UMuthortzecl reproduction or dlalrlbutlon of thla AJA• 11 
Document, or 1ny portion af It, m11y result In •ev- clvU md crimiMI penaltln, 1nd wtn be pl'CIMcuted to the mullllum utent pDAible under th•l-. 
This document waa procluced by AlA toflwant at 14:30:20 an 0&/2.812013 under Order Na.5380090163_1 which llqJitM on 1011812013, and Is not for 1111 .... 
U.erNotea: (2004174870) 

= t--



lnlt. 

I 

eflepl ~888, ju4gmeati!IIM &ettlemmte MaH aet lMl iae~Med ill the eal8lllatiea efthe ~-Meeser's 
JZee ~ sH,jeeHe !"~ Gualaateell ~ Pftee. lfwelue~.tti•, fe• a4 eeate are ..Wed 'by 4lle lllllheet.ee ef 
, Seeuea ~· 17 ef.is:Jr, '988UIII:eals~91 299=7 er edt• )M'8YieiBM eftlte Geatmet );)efillleM&; fJH& they rb'l a.et ee 
Hle11Kil!ll Ill the CBIIt ef the Werli. 

§ 8.8.8 Costs for electronic equipment and software, directly related to the Work with the Owner's pior approval. 

§ 1.6.7 Deposits lost for causes otha- than the Coostrudion Managa-'s negligence or &ilure to fUlfill a specific 
responsibility in the Contract Documents. 

llftaiag i'88l dillpl:lfes . · 1M1iBJ Ma;ei'II:B)'B' fe811, MheFtlat~ leBa •after the aeMiell . . eitllld --· eelltB, ~ . -tlft.ell hy the C'.eBs~Neliee ~~~ 41&11 a.et 1M! 5 ..... ~--:.."-"'-·-~ .... a... .. ·.,..,.-• .-~,-. ~-.11le.~. . VBAiW efdte Werk IIPwt fthill ~t • . .,,. 81 
e · 'thhelll -~--Wy..... 

§ 1,,, ~eat •. the ~spt=ier appEewl, apeas811 iB:eufNtl ia aeeetllaee w::• ~-::• ~:: 
~:~,M8Bil81 ~ey fer MeeRee aH tmlpOUB)' JiYiBg a:Jl99Jall888~ ~980 ,.,.sa ... el~feF'fNWft 
§1.7 Other Cotta MCI f.melDend• 
§ 6.7. 1 Other costS incurml in the perfonnance of theW o.rk if, and to the extent, approved in advance in writing by the 
Owner. 

§ 8.7.2 Costs incurred in takU;Jg action to prevent tbreataled damage, injury or Jos.s in case of an cmc:rgency affecting 
the safetyofpcrsons and property, asprovidcdinScction 10.4 ofAIADocumentA201-2007. 

§ 6.7.3 Cases ofrepltiring or co:rrectins damaged or nooconfotming Work executed by the Cmstruction Manager, 
Subcontractors or supplirzs, provided that such damaged cr nonconforming Work was not caused by negligence or 
failure to fillfi1l a specific rcspcmsibility of the Cmstruction Managa- and only to the ex.talt that the cost of repair or 
cmrection is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, supplim, or othm. 

§ 6.7.4 The costs described in Sections 6.1 through 6. 7 sball be included in the Cost of theW ode, notwithstanding any 
provision of AlA Document A201-2007 or other Conditions of the Contract which may require the Constnwtion 
ManagCF to pay such costs, unless such costs arc excluded by the provisions of Section 6.8. 

§ 6.8 Coltl Not To Be Rllmbul'lld 
§ 6.8.11hc Cost of the Wen shall not include the items listed below: 

.1 Salaries and otba-compensation of the Construction Manager's personnel stationed at the Construction 
ManagCF's principal office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in 
Scctim 6.2, or u may be provided in Article 11; 

.2 Expenses of the Constructim Manager's principal office and offices other than the site office; 

.3 Overhead and gmeral expenses, except as may be c:xp.rcssly included in Sections 6.1 to 6. 7; 

.4 The Coostructioo Manager's capital expc:nscs, including interest oo the Cmstruction Mmager's capital 
employed for the Work; 

.5 Except as provided in Section 6.7.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the negligence or &ibre of the 
Calstructi.m Manager, Subcontractors and suppli.c::rs or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any 
of them or for whose acts any of them may be Hable to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Cmttact; 

.6 Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Sections 6.1 to 6. 7; 

. 7 Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by the Ownu, that would cause the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded; and 

.8 Costs for services incurred during the Preconstruction Phase. 

§ 6.9 Dilcountl, Rebates and Refunds 
I 11.9.1 Cash discounts obtained oo payments made by the Constructicm. Manager shall accrue to the Owner if (1) 
befcrc making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received 

AlA Doc_,.M A1SS .. - 2001 (tom.lr A1J1 ""CCk-2001). Cop)'llght C 11181, 2003 and 2009 by The Amertcen lns1llula of An:hllllcll. All rtgtds ,...,..._ 
WARNING; This AlA• Doeumam Is prot.clld by U.S. CopyriGht L-and lntemelfonar T,.atl ... Unauttlorlud,.productlon or distribution of thlll AJA• 12 
Doeumant, or .ny portion of It, may ,..ullIn HYa,. chill .,d crlnllnal penalllas, and will M pra.aeutad to tha mulm~am utant poalbla und•r the law. 
Thill documert WIB produced by AlA softwa,. at 14:30'.20 an 0512812013 under Order No.53110090183_1 which e1Cpi181 an 1011812013, and Is not far resale. 
UMrNatM: (2004174070) 

~ 

r:--



lnlt. 

payment from the Owner, oc (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Constructim Manager with which to make 
payments; othel'wise, cash discounts sba1l accrue to the Cmstruction Manager. Trade di!ICOUD.ts, rebates, refunds and 
amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Coostruction 
Manager shall make provisi<m so that they can be obtained. 

§ 6.9.2 Amounts tbat accrue to the Owner in accoohmce with the provisions of Section 6.9 .1 shall be credited to the 
Owner as a deduction fiom the Cost of the Work. 

§ 8.10 Related Party Transactions 
§ 1.10.1 For purposes of Section 6.10, the tenn "related party" shall mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other entity 
having common OWDa'8bip oc management with the Construction Manager; any entity in which any stockholder in, or 
management employee ot; the Construction Manager owns any interest in excess of ten perc:ent in the aggregate; or 
any penon or c:Dtity which bas tbe right to control the business or affairs of the Conslruction Manager. The term 
"related party'' in~ any member of the immediate family of any person identified above. 

§ 8.10.21! any of the costs to be reimbursed arise ftom a transaction between the Construction Manager and a related 
party, the Cons1ruction ldanaga: shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated 1ransaction, 
including the identity of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is 
COil$UDUDilted or cOst ineumd.lfthe Owna:, after such notification, authorizes the proposed transaction, then the cost 
incutred irball be included~ a cost to be reimbursed, and the Consbuction Maoaga' shall procure the Worlt, 
equipment, goOds or serVice &om the related party, as a Subc:ontracb, aocording to the tams of Sections 2.3.2.1, 
2.32.2 and Z.3.2.3. lftbe Owner fit.ils to authorize the traosaction, the Construction Managa- shall procure the Wade, 
cquipmmt. goods or serVice ftom some person ar entity other than a rdatcd party according to the terms of Sections 
2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. 

§ 8.11 Accounting Rtcordt 
The ConStructiOn Manager shall blep fUll and detailed records and accounts related to the cost of the Work and 
excrciac suc:h controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate all 
costs inCum:d The accounting and control systCms shall be satisfactoty to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner's 

auditors shall, during regUlar business hours and upon reasooable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted 
to aUdit and CQPY, the Construction Manager's records and accounts, including complete documentation suppa:ting 
accounting entries, boob, correspondence, instructi0118, drawings, receipts, subeon~ Subcontractm's proposals, 
purclwe orders, vouchers, mc:monm!fa and other data relating to this Contmct. The Construction Manager shall 
preserve these records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period as may be required by 
fidaw. at which poipt they will be tumed over to the city in their entirety. 

ARTICLE 7 PAYMENTS FOR CONSfRUCnON PHASE SERVICES 
§ 7.1 Progrna Payments 
§ 7 .1.1 ·Based upon Applicatims for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Construction Manage~" and Certificates 
for Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the 
Construction Manager as provided below and elsewhere in the Contxact Documents. 

§ 7 .1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the 
month, oc as follows: 

§ 7 .1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not lata' than the fifth CSdl.) day ofa 
month, the Owner sball make payment of the certified amount to the Construction Manager not lata: than the day ef 
the IB88tlt:Jf•h'\pplieati81lferPayllletis:reeeif/ed.,theA.,._a:iWtheapplieMieadateiM4Her~e;,.,.aeet 
lihaY IJellllltle., the Owaer ael'atr thnn ( ) Mye aAer the 1 ... -ehiteet 1'88eiws the .\tJp.lieati811: fer: ~•t..lS 

wormg claw aft« receipt of the certified Application for Payment from the architect 
(Federal, stt* or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.) 

§ 7.1.4 With eadl Application for Pa)'Dlent, the Construction Managa: shall submit p~lls, petty cash accounts, 
receipted invoices or invoices with cheek vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner or 
Architect to demonstrate that cash disbursements already made by the Constructim Manager on account of the Cost of 

AlA DocUIMIIl A1JS,.-2001 (fonne!IJ A121,.CIIIc-2003). C~ C 1091, 2003 end 20011 by The Amerl~n N1i1UIB of Archl.cta. All Jltlla -rved. 
WARNING: Thl• AJA• Document • pratect.d by U.S. Copyrtght uw end lntemetloniJ TrHtln. U111uthortnd ,.production or dlstllbution of th• AlA• 13 
Docum•nt, or eny portion of It, may result In --clvh and crtmlnlll penaltle•, •nd will be pro .. cut.d to tt1e maximum extent poalble under the lliw. 
This documlnt _. produced by AlA~~ It 1-4:30:20 on 0512812013 U'lder Order No.53800901113_1 whk:h uplrws on 1011812013. 1nd II not for reule. 
User Nates: (2DCM17~70) 

N 
t--



lnlt. 

theW ork equal or Cltceed progress payments already received by the Construction Manager, less that patioo of those 
payments attributable to the Constructico ManagCJ"'s Fee, plus payrolls fur the period cova-ed by the present 
Application for Payment 

§ 7.1.5 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the mcst recent sdlcd:ule of values submitted by the 
Cmstructioo Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents. The sc:hedule of values shall allocate the entire 
Guaranteed Maxilmm Price among the various portions of the Work. except that the Catstruction Manager's Fee 
shall be shown as a siogle separate item. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and suppmcd by such 
data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require. This schedule. unless objected to by the Architect, &haJJ 
be used as a basis for reviewing the Construction MJnasCI" s Applications for Payment. 

I 7.1.& ApplicatiODS for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion ofdle Work as of the end of 
the period covered by the Application for Payment The pc:rcentage of completion shall be the lmscr of (1) the 
~tagc oftbat pertion of the Work which has actua1ly been completed, or (2) the percentage obtained by dividing 
(a) the t.Xpa1Se that has actua11y been incurred by the Cmstruction MIIDilF onacccunt of that portim of the Work fir 
which the Construction .Managa-bas made or intends to make actual paymmt prior to the next Application ftr 
Payment by (b) the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of 
values. 

§ 7.1.7 Subject to othcr)li'OVisiODS of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progresspaymmt shall be 
computed as follows: 

.1 Take tbat portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed W orlc as 
dettnnined by multiplying the percentage of completion of each portim of the Work by the share of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that pmioo of the Work in the schedule of values. Palding 
final ~tion of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work, amounts not in dispute sball be 
included as provided in Sectim 7.3.9 of AlA Document A201-2007; 

.2 Add that portion of the Guaranteed Maximmn Price properly allocable to materials and equipment 
delivered and suitably stored at the site for subscqumt inooqxntioo in the Wcxk, or if approved in 
advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upcm in writing; 

.3 Add the Const:rudion M.anaga''s Fee, less retainage of.fitt..pc:n:cnt (L%). The Construction 
Managec'sFee sbaU be computed upon the Cost of the Wcxk at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the 
Conatructioo Manager's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in tbat Scctioo, shall be an amowrt that bears the 
same ratio to that fbr,~sum fee as the Ccst of the Work bears to a muonable estimate of1he probable 
Cost of the Work upcm its completion; 

.4 Subtraotretainage of .m.._pcrccm ( 1.,%) from that porticm of the Work that the Construction Manager 
seJ.f.pe:rfmms; 

.5 Subtract the aar.91C of previous payments made by the Owner; 

.8 Subtract the ahm11Bll, if any, indicated by the Ccmstruction Manager in the documentation required by 
Section 7 .1.4 to substantiate prior Applications for Paym.cnt, or resulting from errors subsequently 
discovered by the Owner's auditors in such documentation; and 

.7 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Architect has withbd.d «X" nullified a Ca"tificate fix" Payment as 
provided in Section 9.5 of AlA Doc:ument A201-2007. 

§ 7 .1.8 The Owner and Construction Manager shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and 
approval of payments to Subcontractas and (2) the percentage ofretainagc held oo Subcontracts, amd the Coostructim 
Manager shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements. 

§ 7.1.9 Except with the Owner's prior approval, the Construction Manager shall not make advance paym.ents to 
suppliers fur materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site. 

1 7.1.10 In taking action on the Construction Manager's Applications for Paym.ent, the Architect shall be entitled to 
rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information fiunished by the Construction Manager and shall not be 
deemed to represent that the Arcbitcct bas made a detailed examination, audit or arithmetic: verification of the 
documentation submitted in accordance wi1h Section 7.1.4 or othCJ" suppMing data; that the Architect bas made 
c:xhauBtivc or con1inuous cm·site inspections; or tbat the Architect bas made exammations to aacertain how or fur what 
purposes the Construction Manager has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contnct. Such C~taminations, 

AlA Docum.nt At33 .. -1001 (formerllf A1Z1,.CMc • 2003), Copyright C111101, 2003 1nd 20011 by The Amerlcln fnstilufll of Arctlllilcta. All rtgiiiii'Witv .... 
WM.NING: This AIA1 Doc\lment Ia protKted by U.S. Copyright Lblllld lnMrnltlonll T~. UIIIUthOrlnd r.pi'Oductlon 01' dlttrlbutlon of this AIA

1 14 
Document, or eny portion of 1t. may rwult In aev1n1 r:lvll and crlnllnal p•naltln, and will be proaec:uted ta U. molmum extant piMI•Ibll under the law. 
TIW docUment- produc:ld by AlA~ .. 14:30'.20 on 05f2112013lnllf Onler No.5380090183_1 which uplrn on 10118/2013,111d II not for rwale. 
u ... Noea: (2004174870) 

~ 
t--



lnlt. 

I 

audits and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner's auditors acting in the sole intcr'm 
of the Owner. 

§ 7.2 Final P~YSMnt 
I 7 .2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, &ball be made by the Owner to the 
Construction Manager when 

.1 the Canstruc:tion Manager has fully pertUmcd the Contract except for the Cmstructim Manager's 
responsibility to cc:rrect Work as provided in Scctioo 12.2.2 of AlA Document A201-2007, and to 
satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment; 

.2 the Construction Manager has submitted a final accounting fur the Cost of the Work and a final 
Applicati~ fir Payment; and 

.3 a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect. 

The Owner's final payment to the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the 
Architect's .final Certificate for Payment, or as fOllows: 

§ 7.2.2 The Owner's a~ditors will review and report in writing on the Calstruction Manager's final accounting widrin 
30 dt)'ll afta" dc1ivcry of the final acoounting to the Ardlitcct by the Canstluctian Manager. Based upon such Cost of 
the W<rk u the Owner•s ll\Jdit(rs rqKrt to be substantiated by the Constructiao Manager•s tinaiiCOOUllting, and 
prQVided #lc other conditiOIUI ofScction 7.2.1 have been met, the Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the 
written repcri of the Owner! a auditors, either issue to the Owner a final Certificate fur Payment with a copy to the 
COnstructim Manager, <r notify the Construction Manager and Owner in writing of the Architect's reasms for 
withbolding a certifi~ as provided in Section 9.5.1 of the AlA Document A201-2007. The time periods stated in 
this ScctiansuptrBCdc ~Oie stated in Section 9.4.1 of the AlA Document A201-2007. The Architect is not responsible 
for verifying the accuracy of1he Construction Manager's final accounting. 

f 7.2.3 Ifthe Owner'saudiiorsreporttheCost of the Work u substantiated bytheCmstructioo Manager's final 
accountiJlg to be less than claimed by the Constructim Manager, the Constructim Maoa&cr shall be entitled to request 
mediation of the disputed ammmt without seeking an initial decision pursuant to Section 15.2 of A201-2007. A 
request for mediatian· sball be made by the Con.struction Manager within 30 days after 1he Ccmttuction Manager's 
receipt of a oopy of the Ardtitect's final Certificate 1br Payment. Failure to request mediation within this 30-day 
period shall result in the substanti*d amount rep<rted by the Owner's audit«s beooming binding oo the Construction 
Manager. Pcudiog a final rtBOlution of the disputed amount, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager the 
amount certi1ied in the Architect's final Certificate for Payment 

§ 7 .2.4 It; subsequent to final paymcnt and at 1he Owner's request, the Constmctim Manager incurs costs described in 
Sectioo 6.1.1 and not exclu&!d by Section 6.8 to COinlCt dcfecti-w or noncanforming Work, the Owner shall reimburse 
the Construction Manager such costs and the Cmstruction Mana1er's Fee applicable thereto em the same basis u if 
such costs had been incurred pri<r to .final payment, but not in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If the 
Ccmstrw:tion Manager has participated in savings as provided in Section 5.2.1, the amwnt of such savings sball be 
recalc:ulatcd and appropriate credit given to the Owner in determining the net amount to be paid by the Owntc to the 
Construction Manager. 

ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE AND BONDS 
For ali pbases of the Project, the Construction Manl.gcr lll44he 9Mt• shall purchase and .maintain insurance, and the 
Cmstructim Manager sbaU provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AlA Documart A201-2007. 
(State bonding requirements, if any, and limits of liability for in.nlrance required in Article 11 of ..4lA.. Document 
.4201-2007.) 

Type of Insurance or Bond Umlt of Liability or Bond Amount ($0.00) 

ARTICLE 9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
§ 9.1 Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Managtz shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions 
set furth in this Article 9 and Article 1 S of A20l-2007. However, fur Claims arising from or relating to the 

AlA DDCIIIIIInl A133,.- ZOGI CfDrmltl1 A121""CCIc- 200S). Copyright 01881, 2003 .nd 2009 by The Amerlcln lnlllutl d An:Ntldl. Nl111'* r-.NM. 
WARNING: This AJA• Doc:um•nt II protected by U.S. Copyright L-and International Treatln. Un1uthorlnd rspraduc:tlon or dlslllbutlon of th .. llJA• 15 
Document, or sny portion of It, 1M)' n11Uit In severs dvll .nd c:rlmlnat penaltln, snd will be~ to the maxlnlwn utent ponlble undef the 18W. 
This documentwu produced by AlA 801lware at 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Ordw No.5380090183_1 which upiree on 1011812013, and 11 not for ,_le. 
u..r Molls: (2004174670) 

<o:t 
t--



lnlt. 

Constructioo Manager's Precoostructioo Phase sa-vices, no dccisioo by the Initial Declsioo Mak« shall be required as 
a conditioo precedent to mccliatioo or binding dispute resolution, and Section 9.3 of this Agrcemart sbal1 not apply. 

§ 9.2 For any Claim subject to, but not resolved bymcdiatioo pursuant to Section 15.3 of AlA Document A201-2007, 
the method ofbinding dispute resolution shall be as fol1ows: 
(Check the appropriate box. If the OM.aer cutd Construction Manager do not select a method ofbtndillg dispute 
resolution below, or do not mb.sequently agree in lWiting to a binding dispute resolution method other titan litigation, 
Clainu -will be resolved by litigation in a courl rf competent jurisdiction.) 

Arbi1ratioo pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2007 

] Utigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

[ !.J Other: (Specify) 
ShglW! ao,y:4iswfe arise out of or perfllining to the performance of the Agreement. such dis,pute 
slwliiritiatcd and decided so1clv in a Circuit Court locateci in Wasbingtnn Coun.ty. Axbnsas. 

§ 9.31nftlll Decielon Mlklr 
The Ardlitect will serw M the Initial Decision Maka' pursuant to Section 15.2 of AlA Document A201-2007 fur 
Claims arising from m- relating tO the Constructioo Manag«'s Constructioo Phase services, tmless the pries appoint 
below another individual, not a party to the .Agrcrment, to Sei"VC as the Initial Decision Maker. 
(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, addres8 and other contact ilifonnation of t'M Initial Decision Maker, if 
otllu than the .Architect.) 

AR11CLE 10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§10;1 Tennination Prior to Eltlblletvnent of the Guarantied Maximum Price 
§ 1'0.1.1 Prior to the exccuti011 of the Ouarantced Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner may tcnninate this 
Agreement upon not less than sevm days' written notice to the Cmstruction Managa for the Owner's convenience 
and without C&U8C, and the Constructioo Manager may terminate tbis Agreement, upoo not less than aeven days' 
written notice to the Own«, for the IaSOilB set furtb in Section 14.1.1 of A201-2007. 

§ 10.1.2 In the eventoftcrminationoftbis Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1.1, thcConstructioo Manag~ shall be 
equitably compensated for Pm:oostruction Phase secviccs perfurmed prior to receipt of a notice of tcnnination. In no 
event shall the Construction Manager's compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in Section 
4.1. 

§ 10.1.3 If the Owner~theCon1ractpursuant to Section 10.1.1 after the commencemc:ntoftheConstructian 
Pbase but pria: to the exccu1ion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price AmeDdment, the Owner llhall pay to the 
Ccmtructioo Manager an amount calculated as follows, which unwnt shall be in additioo to any ~ticm paid 
to 1he Coostructioo. Manager under' Sectioo 10.1.2: 

.1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Maoaga to the date of tmmnation; 

.2 Add the Constructioo Manager's Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date oftcnninatioo at 
the rate stated in Section S.l or, ifthe Constructioo Manager's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that 
Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of 
termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Wmk upon its completion; and 

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for Construction Phase services. 

The Owner shaD also pay the Cobsttuction Managa tair compmsation, citha' by purchase or rental at the electioo of 
the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Canstructioo MaDager which the Owna elects to retain md which is not 
otherwise included in the Cost of the Work UDder Section 10.1.3.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take le&al 
assignment of subcontracts and purchase oo:1crs (including rental agreements), the Constructioo Manag« sball, as a 

IU..I)oQ-.t A13S,.-20ft (fDnMitr AU1WICIIc- IIQ). Cclpyllglt 0 1891, 2003 .ncl2008 by The Ameflc8n Nl1ulll of~ M ltghla-.-!. 
WAilNING: Thl8 AlA• Doc11111ent '- prot.ctld by U.S. Copytlght Law and lnt8mlltlonal TNatln. Unauthortud NproductJon or dllllrlbutlon of thle AlA• 16 
Doc11111en1, or any portion or It, mil)' IWUit In swan civil and crtmlnal penattlea, and will be prosecuted to the matmum utent p-Jble undw the •-· 
Thill dclalnMimwaa produced byAIAICiftwMI at 14:30:20 on 01512812013 unclerOrder No.53800110183_1 whldl pPII'eaon 1011812013, .nd Ia not for......_ 
UMrNot.: (200417-4870) 

ll'l 
t-



lntt. 

c:onditim of receiving the payments referred to in tbis Article 10, execute and dclivm- all sudl papers and take all sudl 
steps. including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Cons1ruction Manager, as 
the OWnez may require fur the purpose of iWJ.y vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Constructim 
Manager under such subcon1Dcts cr purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purcbuc mfers and rmtal agreements mtc:red 
into by the Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assigmnart to the Owner as descn"bcd above. 

If the Ownrz accepts assignment of subcontracts, pun:hase orders or rental agreements as described above, the Owner 
will reimburse or indannify the Construction Manager fir all costs arising under' the subcontract, purdJase order- cr 
rental agreement, if thoac costs would have been rcitnbunable as Cost of the Work if the contract had not been 
terminated. If the Owner dlooses not to accept assignment of any subcontract, pmcbase crder or rmtal agreemmt 1hat 
would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been tennin•Md, the Coostnwtion Manager will 
tmminate the subcontract, purdlase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the Construction Manager the 
costs necessarily incuiml by the Coostruction Manager because of such tenninatiao. 

§ 10.2 Tennl.,on Subsequent to EetabUshlng Guarantied Malmum Prtce 
Follo'\Ving execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and subject to the provisions of Section 1 0.2.1 
and 102.2 below, the Con1ract may be terminated as provided in Article 14 of AlA Document A1J)I- 2007. 

§ 10.2.~ If the Ownrz terminates the Cao1ract after executiao of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amaldment, the 
amount payable to the Constmction M.anagerpmsuant to Sections 14.2 and 14.4 of A201-2007 shall not exceed the 
~aunt the COnstruction Manager- would otherwise have received pursuant to Sections 1 0.1.2 and 10.1.3 of this 
Agreement 

§ 10.2.2 If the ~on Manager tc:nninates the Caatract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment, ·tile amount payable to the Coo.struction Manager UDda- Section 14.1.3 of A201-2007 sba1l not exceed 
the lllllOUilt the Cmstructi.on ManagCI" would otherwise have received under Sections 1 0.1.2 and 1 0.1.3 above, except 
that the Constructi~ Mmaga-'s Fee shall be calculated as if the Work had been fiilly completed by the Construction 
Manager, Utilizing as necessary a RBSODable estimate of the Cost of the Work for Work not actually completed. 

I 10.) ~pension 
The WOrk may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AlA Document A201-2007. In such case, the 
~~Price and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Sectioo 14.3.2 of AlA Document 
A201-2007, except that the term "profit" shall be understood to mean the Construction Manager's Fee as described in 
Sections 5.1 and 5.3.5 of this Agreement. 

ARTlCLE 11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 11.1 Terms in this Agreemmt sb8ll have the same meaning as those in A201-2007. 

§ 11.2 OwneNhlp and Ute of Documents 
Section 1.5 of A201-2007 sbaU apply to both the P.recanstruction and Construction Phases. 

§ 11.SGoveming Law 
Section 13.1 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Constructim Phases. 

§ 1 U AsligiUIIent 
The Owner and Construction Manag«, respectively, bind themselves. their agents, successOR, assigns and legal 
representatives to this Agreemmt Neither the Owner nor the Construction Managrz shall assign this Agrcemmt 
without the written cooaeo.t of the other, except that the Owner may 8S8ign this Agreement to a lc:ndcr providing 
financing fer the ~ect if the lender agrees to assume the Owner's rights and obligations undrz this Agrccmcnt. 
Except as provided in Section 13.2.2 of A201-2007, neither party to the Con1Iact sbaJl assign the Contract as a whole 
without written consent of the other. H either party attempts to make such an assigomc:nt without such consc:nt, that 
party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible fur all obligations under the Contract. 

§ 11.5 Otbrz p-ovisians: 

AlA Daounlent AUa• -2001 (fo-'J A121""CMc- 20DS). CopJIIIOht 0 11191, 2003 and 2000 by The American lndtllle of Archllllcls. All rfthla -r¥M. 
WA"NING: This AJA• Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Uw and lnlefNtlonaJ Trutle&. Una\lltlortzld 111produetlon or dllltl'fbutlon of this AJA1 17 
Ooclllhtlnt, or any polllon of It, may mullin •v-dvlland crlnllnal penllltlu, and will be prosecuted to the -lmunl extent poMibl& under the law. 
Thll document was pJOduced by AlA softwll111 at 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Oldtr No.5380090183_1 which 8llllil'lll on 1011 B/2013, and Is not for 1'88Bie. 
U.r Nota: (2004174670) 

"" r-



I nit. 

ARTICLE 12 SCOPE Of THE AGREEMENT 
I 12.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Canstruc1ion 
Manager and supenedes all prior negotiations, tepeaen1ations or agreements, either written or Ot1il. This Agreement 
may be IUl1t'mted Ollly by written instrument signed by both Owner and Coostruc:tion Manager. 

§ 12.2 The following documarts comprise 1he .Agreemmt: 
.1 AlA Document A133-2009, Standard F01m of Agreement Between. Owner and Construction Manager 

as Constructor wba-e the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guulmteed 
Maximum Price 

.2 AlA Document A201-2007, <Jenetal Conditioos of the Cco:tmct for Cmslructim 

.3 AlA Document E20111L2007, Digital Data Protocol &hibit, if completed, or the following: 

.4 AlA Document E202,.,._2008, Building lnfurmation Modeling Protocol &hibit, if completed, or the 
following: 

.5 Other documents: 
(List other dOCU1IIImtS, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 

This ~tis entered into as of the day and year first written above. 

[)bo a..__ 4-u 
OWNER (Signature) COtm'RUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

'De-~""~' M,\)/, V'('«J 
(Printed name anJ Iitle) (Printed name and title) 

AlA Document A133'~~~- JODI (t'onnelty A121 "'CMc - 2GOS). Copynght C 1fl91, 2003 and 2009 by TIM! Amerlclln lnltl1utlt of Archllecta. All rill* ,...Mid. 
WARNING: This AJA• Document 11 prottcled by U.S. Copyrtght Law and lntemllloiUII Trutln. Unauthorized reproduction or dlllllbutlon of thll AlA• 18 
Document, or any portion of It, may ,..utt In HVI,. ciVIl and c:rlmlnal penalties, 1nd WIM be p.._cuted to the mulmum utent ponlble IInder the IIW. 
Tt-a doeumentwaa produced by AlA IDilwere et 14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Order No.5380090163_1 which upkel on 1Q/11W013, and Ia not b resale. 
Uur NoM: (21104174670) 

I 
i 
I 
I 

r
r-



Certification of Documents Authenticity 
AlA• Document D401TM - 2003 

I, Rogec A. Boskus. AlA, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledae, information and belie( that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this ca1ificati011 at 14:30:20 co 05128/2013 under Ordtr No. 
5360090163 1 from AiA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original ttat of AlA • Document A133111 - 2009, Standard Fonn of .Agrccmart Between Owner and 
Coos1ruction Manager as Cooslructor when: the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price, as published by the AlA in its software. other than changes shown in the at1ached final 
document by undencoriDg added text and striking avec deleted text. 

(Signed) 

(Tftle) 

(Dated) 

AlA~ IM01"'- 2001. CowtohtO 1Hhnc12003 byThiAmerlcln Instil* of An:Meds. M rill* rwen~ICI. WARNING: Tills AlAe Document Is 
protected by u.s. Copyright LIW 1nd lnlllm.tlonel fl'lltlea. Uneulhorlnd r.produdlon or dlltrtbutlon of thll NA• Documant, or eny portion of It, mey 1 
tHV1t In sav.n ci'IU IIIII crlmlnll peMIUH, end will be prDMCutiCIIO the lnDimWIIIXUnt pu.IIUIIe undv th• IIW. Thla doeumert- prvduced by AlA 
I01lWire .t14:30:20 on 0512812013 under Older No.53800110183_1 wtlid'l axplrn on 1011812013, ~d Ia not for Nllla. 
u.. Natea: (200417<1870) 

00 
r---



lftlt. 

I 

'AlA Document A201'"- 2007 
General Conditions of the Contract for Consttuction 

for the foiiCJt!lfl)g PROJECT: 
(Name and loeiltion or oddrua) 
Citv of &p:jngdaJe Fire Station Upgrades 

THE OWN~: 
(Name, legal status and address) 
City of Spripgct!le 
201 SPimg ·stieet 
SPfiiu!4a•r..:· Amm'!"' 72764 

THE ARCHITECT: 
(Name, legaht~ and tiddresa) 
Mills;tlkf1gw xa ~ r.A 
2397 tt 'Q#cp.Aaes ':Road 
F~ Atbgas 12703 

TABLE OF AR'OCLES 

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 OWNER 

3 CONTRACTOR 

4 ARCHITECT 

5 SUBCONTRACTORS 

8 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 

7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 

8 TIME 

9 PAYMENTSANDCOMPLEnON 

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS 

12 UNCOVE~NGANDCORRECnONOFWORK 

13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

14 TERMINAnON OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 

15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

This document has Important 
legal consequences. Conaultlltlon 

with an atlomey 
Is encouraged with respect to 
ita completion or modlflcatlon. 

AlA DocUIIIMit A201,..- 2007. Cop)'lfght C 1911, 1916, 1918, 11125, 1937, 19111, 1958, 11161, 1983, 1886, 1970, 11178, 1887, 111117 and 2007 by The Amartcan 
lndtuel of A~cll. All ftghts NMrved. WARNING: TillS AJA8 Document II piiMcted by U.S. Copyrtgbt Law and lne.m.tloMI TIHlleL Unauthortnd 1 
~uctlon or d'-lrtbutlon of this AJA8 Documant, or any portion of lt.IN]f rault In .. v_ civil and crtmlnall*laltles, and will be proNCUttld to the 
mllldmum uanl possible under lhallw. This document wu produced bV AlA SDftware at 16:59:38 on 0512812013 under Order No.53800901113_ 1 which aplm 
on 10111112013, and 11 not for ruate. 
U.r H-.: (2050324577) 

e"' 
t"-



lnlt. 

INDEX 
(Tqrics and numbers in bold are aectioo headings.) 

AeeepCance ofNoaecmfol'llllq Work 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Accqrtance ofWork 
9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.3 
Aeee11toWork 
3.16, 6.2.1, 121 
Accident Prevention 
10 
Acts and Omissions 
3.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.8, 3.18, 4.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 10.2.5, 
10.2.8, 13.4.2, 13.7, 14.1, 15.2 
Addenda . 

1.1.1, 3.11.1 
AdditiODIJ). ~ C1aints for 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 6.1.1, 7.3.7.5, 10.3, 15.1.4 
MditlOuliJilpdODI ud Tesdq 
9.4.2, 9.8.3, 12.2.1, 13.5 
AdditioiW Insund 
11.1.4 
Additioul Time, Oabill for 
3.2.'4, .3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 8.3.2, 15.1.5 
Adlllilliltration of the Contnct 
3.1.3,. 4.2, 9.4, 9.5 
AdvertiSement or Invitation to Bid 
1.1.1 
~cEfl'ect 
4.2.13 

~-3.11, 7.3.8 
All-risk Insurmc:c 
11.3.1, 11.3.1.1 
Applleati.ODI for Paymat 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.S.1, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.10, 11.1.3 
Approvals 
2.1.1, 2.2.2, 2.4, 3.1.3, 3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 
4.2.7, 9.3.2, 13.5.1 
ArbitrldiOD 
8.3.1, 11.3.10, 13.1.1, 15.3.2, 15.4 
ARCHITECT 

" Architect, Definition of 
4.1.1 
Ard:litect, Extent of Authority 
2.4.1, 3.12.7, 4.1, 4.2, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1.2, 7.3.7, 7.4, 9.2, 
9.3.1, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.8, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1, 
13.5.1, 13.5.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1 
An:bitart, Limitatims of Authority and Rc:spoosibility 
2.1.1, 3.12.4, 3.12.8, 3.12.10, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.10, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 5.2.1, 7.4, 9.4.2, 
9.5.3, 9.6.4, 15.1.3, 15.2 
Architect" a Additional Services and Expenses 
2.4.1,11.3.1.1, 12.2.1, 13.5.2, 13.5.3, 14.2.4 

Architect's Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 4.2, 3.7.4, 15.2, 9.4.1, 9.5 
Arcbit.ect's App-ovals 
2.4.1, 3.13, 3.5, 3.10.2, 4.2.7 
Arcllitec:t's Authcxity to Reject Work 
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.1.2, 12.2.1 
Architect' s Copyright 
1.1.7, 1.5 
Architect's Decisions 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.212, 4.2.13, 4.2.14, 6.3, 
7.3.7, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.5.2, 15.2, 15.3 
Architect's Inspections 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Architect's Instruc.tioos 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 13.5.2 
Architect's Jntapretatims 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Architect's Project :Rc:prcsaltative 
4.2.10 
Architect's Relationship with Cmtractor 
1.1.2. 1.5, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.24, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 3.5, 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.9.3, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 
4.1 .2, 4.1.3, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 7. 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4. 9.5, 
9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3,11.3.7, 12, 13.4.2, 13.5, 15.2 
Architect" a hlatianship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4,4.2.6, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 11.3.7 
Ardlitect's Reprcsartati.oos 
9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1 
Architect's Site Visits 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Asbestos 
10.3.1 
Attamcys' Fees 
3.18.1, 9.10.2, 10.3.3 
Award of Separate Contracts 
6.1.1, 6.1.2 
Award of SubcOJltraets and Other Coatractt for 
Portl0111 of the Work 
5.2 
Basic DefiuitiODI 
1.1 
Bidding Requiremmts 
1.1.1, 5.2.1, 11.4.1 
Binding Dispute Resolution 
9.7, 11.3.9, 11.3.10, 13.1.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6.1, 15.3.1, 
15.3.2, 15.4.1 
Boller Uld MacbiDery lmuraee 
11.3.1 
Bonds, Lien 
7.3.7.4, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Boad1, PerforDIUlce, aDd Payment 
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.3.9, 11.4 
Building Pamit 
3.7.1 

AIADocuiRentAI01,. _ _,, C~01811, 1815, 1818, 1926,1837,1951, 1958,11161, 1983, 1988, 1870, 1976,19117,11197 and2007 byTheArrleric:an 
..,lltltula of Ald1ltlcbl. All rtgta .,....,..., WARNING: This AIA8 Document Is protactacl by u.s. Copyright L-and lntamatlonal TreatiH. Unauthorlzacl 2 
reprvcluctlon or dlstrlllut lon f!A thllltU.8 ~.or an, portion of II. may rMUit 1n ...,_ civil and crtlftlnal panaltles, and .til be JKOMCutacl to tha 
maximum axlent poalbla under Ula law. Tills d0Clllll8nl wu producad by AJA ..,.._ ... at 15:69:38 on 0512812013 under Otder No.5380080153_1 whlc:tt uplrea 
on 1011812013, and Is not for resale. 
Ua•NDIIH: (20503.24577) 

= QC 



lnlt. 

Capitalization 
1.3 
Ca:ti.ficate of Substantial Completion 
9.8.3, 9.8.4, 9.8.5 
Certificate• for Paym.eat 
4.2.1, 4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 
9.10.1, 9.10.3,14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.3 
Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval 
13.5.4 
Ca1ificates oflnsurance 
9.10.2, 11.1.3 
Clumge Orden 
Ltl, 24.1, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.8.2.3, 3.11.1, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 
5.2.3, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.2, 7.3.2, 7.3.6, 7.3.9, 7.3.10, 8.3.1, 
9.3.1.1, 9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.3.1.2, 11.3.4, 11.3.9, 12.1.2, 
15.1.3 
Clwage Orders, Definition of 
7.2.1 
CHANGES IN mE WORK 
2~.J·, 3.11, 4.2;8, 7, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3.1, 9.3.1.1, 
11.3':9 
qaia, Defi.ni1ion of 
15.1.1 
CLAIMS AND DISPVTES 
3.2.4, '6,1.1, 6.3, 7.3.9, 9.3.3, 9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4 
Claims and Timely Asserticn of Claims 
15.4,1 
ClalQII for Aclilttio.ql Cast 
3.2.4, 3"7,4, 6.1.1, 7.3.9; 10.3.2, 15.1.4 
Cl~~~Ji¥! for Additicmal Time 
3.2.4, 3.7.46.1.1, 8.3.2, 10.3.2, 15.1.5 
Coacealed or ·UIIbown Condltlolu, CJalma for 
3.7A 
ct.uns for Damages 
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.1.1, 
11.3.5, 11.3.7, 14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.6 
Claims SUbject to Arbitration 
15.3.1, 15.4.1 
CleaaiDgUp 
3.15, 6.3 
~tofthe Work, ConditiObS Relating to 
2.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 
6.2.2, 8.1.2, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 11.1, 11.3.1, 11.3.6, 11.4.1, 
15.1.4 
CoiiUIWicement of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.2 
Communlcatiom Fadlltatfna Contract 
AdmbailtratiOD 
3.9.1,4.2.4 
Completion, Conditioos Relating to 
3.4.1, 3.11, 3.15, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 8.2, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 
9.10, 12.2, 13.7, 14.1.2 
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND 
9 
Completioo, Substantial 
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
13.7 

Compliance with Laws 
1.6.1, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 10.2.2, 
11.1, 11.3, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6,14.1.1, 
14.213, 15.2.8, 15.4.2, 15.4.3 
Concealed or Unknown ConditiODB 
3.7.4, 4.2.8, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Conditions of the Contract 
1.1.1, 6.1.1, 6.1.4 
Con8c:ot, Written 
3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 
9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.3.1, 13.2, 13.4.2, 15.4.4.2 
CODiolidatiOD or Jobacler 
15.4.4 
CONSTRUCflON BY OWNER OB.BY 
SEPARATE CONTilACTORS 
1.1.4, 6 
CoDitrucUon ChiiJlle Direedve, Definition of 
7.3.1 
CODitnlcti011 ChaDge Diretthet 
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1.1, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.3, 
9.3.1.1 
Construction Sdtedules, Cm1ract«'s 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2 
Contiqent Atdgmnent of S11beontraett 
5.4, 14.2.2.2 
ContinaJna Contract PerforJIWlee 
15.1.3 
Contract, Definition of 
l.Ll 
CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR 
SUSPENSION OF THE 
5.4.1.1, 11.3.9, 14 
Contract Administration 
3.1.3, 4, 9.4, 9.5 
Contnu:t Award and Execution, Conditions Relating 
to 
3.7.1, 3.10, S.2, 6.1, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 11.4.1 
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of 
1.5.2, 22.5, 53 
Contract Docameatt, Definition of 
1.1.1 
CODtract Sum 
3.7.4, 3.8, 5.2.3, 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 9.1, 9.4.2, 9.5.1.4, 9.6.7, 
9.7, 10.3.2, 11.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.4, 15.2.5 
Contract Sum, DefiDitioo of 
9.1 
Contnu:t Time 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 7.2.1.3, 7.3.1, 7.3.5, 7.4, 
8.1.1, 8.2.1, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 12.1.1, 14.3.2, 
15.1.5.1, 15.2.5 
Contract 11me, Definition of 
8.1.1 
CONTRACfOR 
3 
Contractor, Definition of 
3.1, 6.1.2 

AIADoi:I.IIIIMlAH't,.-2007. Cop)1rlght0 1911, 11115,1918, 11125, 1t37, 1951, 1958, 1M1, 1983, 11188.1970, 18'78, 11187,1Hhnd 2D07byTheArnerlc:al 
ntllula of ArchiiBc:tl. All ltghta .... Mid. WARNING: Thta AJA.e Document Is protected by U.S. ~pyrlght Lew and lntemltlonal Trwatler;. Unauthorized 3 
reproduction or dlatlttlutlon all tl* AlA• Document, or MY portion of ll. tNy rault In_.,. dvlllllld crlmln81 .,.... .... Mid will be proM cUlM to U.. 
malmum extent posslbl• underthalaw. This doc:IRnentwtl prodUced by AJA IIOftwa,. It 15:58:311 on 05128/2013 under Order No.5380090183_1 which uplres 
on 1011812013, and Ia not for JeHie. 
User NOIIM: (2050324577) 

~ 
QC 



lnlt. 

Coatractor's Coaltnletion Schedules 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2 
Cootractm''s Employees 
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 10.3, 
11.1.1, 11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Coatraetor's U.biUty ID1111'1lDce 
11.1 
Cootractm'' s Rdatimsbip with Separate Contractors 
and Owner's Forces 
3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 6, 11.3.7, 12.1.2, 12.2.4 
Contractor's Relationship wdh Subcontractors 
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.18.1, 3.18.2, s, 9.6.2. 9.6.7, 9.10.2, 
11.3.1.2, 11.3.7, 11.3.8 
Cmtractor's Rdati(XlS}llp with the Architect 
1.1.2, 1.5, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 32.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 3.5, 
3.7.4. 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 4.1.3, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 
7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 
11.3.7, 12.13.5, 15.1.2, 15.2.1 
CoDtractor's ~~tlf.i~s 
3.2.1, 3:2.2, 3.5, 3.12.6,-6.2.2, 8.2J, 9.3.3, 9.8.2 
em~·s ltesp<mibility for Those Performing the 
Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 5.3.1, 6.1.3, 6.2, 9.5.1, 10.2.8 
Contnwtor's Review ofCon1iact Docmncnts 
3.2 
Cmtractor's Right to Stop the WOJk 
9.7 
Contractor's Right to Ttnninate the Contract 
14.1, 15,1.6 
C<Dtractm's Sutmiuals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12.4, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8.2, 
9.8.3, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.3, 11.4.2 
Contractor's Superintco.dcnt 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Contract«'s Supervision and Construction 
Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.5, 7.3.7, 8.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3 
Contractwd Liability lnsuraJK:C 
11.1.1.8, 11.2 
Coordinatioo and Correlation 
1.2, 3.2.1, 3.3.1, 3.10, 3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1 
Copies Fumish.ed of Drawings and Specifications 
1.5, 2.2.5, 3.11 
Copyrights 
1.5, 3.17 
Cmection ofWork 
2.3, 2.4, 3.7.3, 9.4.2, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.1, 12.1.2, ll.l 
Correlation ud Intent of the CODtr~~et Document~ 
1.2 
Colt, Definitioo of 
7.3.7 
Costs 
2.4.1, 3.2.4, 3.7.3, 3.8.2, 3.15.2, 5.4.2, 6.1.1, 6.2.3, 
7.3.3.3, 7.3.7, 7.3.8, 7.3.9, 9.10.2,10.3.2,10.3.6, 11.3, 
12.1.2, 12.2.1, 12.2.4, 13.5, 14 

Cnttina ud Patebiag 
3.14, 6.2.5 
Damage to Caostruction of OWner or Separate 
CmtracUn 
3.14.2, 6.2.4, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 11.1.1, 11.3, 
12.2.4 
Damage to the Work 
3.14.2, 9.9.1, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4.1, 11.3.1, 12.2.4 
Damages, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7,10.3.3, 11.1.1, 
11.3.5, 11.3.7,14.1.3, 14.2.4,15.1.6 
Damages for Delay 
6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1.6, 9.7, 10.3.2 
Date of Commeneemeut of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.l 
Date of Sabltaatial Completion, Definiticm of 
8.1.3 
Day, Dcfiniticm of 
8.1.4 
DccisiODB of the Architect 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 15.2, 6.3, 
7.3.7, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.5.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1, 15.2 
Dedliom to Withhold CertUicatioa 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1.1.3 
Defective cr Noru:mforming Work, .Ac:ceptance. 
Rejection and Correction of 
2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.5, 9.5.1, 9.5.2, 9.6.6, 9.8.2, 
9.9.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.1 
Dcfinitims 
1.1, 2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.5, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1, 
15.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.1, 9.1, 9.8.1 
Delays ud Extmstons or 11me 
3.2, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4.1, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 
Disputes 
6.3, 7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2 
Doe1UIIelltlllld Sulplel at the Site 
3.11 
Drawinp, Definition of 
1.1.5 
Diawings and Specifications, Usc and Owncnhip of 
3.11 
Etfc:ctivc Date of Insunmc:e 
8.2.2, 11.1.2 
Emergeada 
10.4, 14.1.1.2, 15.1.4 
Employees, Contractor's 
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2. 
10.3.3, 11.1.1, 11.3. 7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Equipment, I..abcr, Matc:rials or 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13.1, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 

AIADoculllentAl01•-H07. Cop)ttghtC1911,1915,1918, 1825. 1t37,1951,1958,11181,11183,19ee.1810,1878,11187,1987 Mid 2007 byTheAmetlcan 
1naUtu1e of Archllllc:fs. Nlltghls ..... rved. WARNING: This AlA• Document Ia piDIKtld by U.S. Copyrtght L•w 1111d lntem.tiDIMII Tl'l.tr.a. U!Miuthortnlf 4 
IWpi'Oductlon or distribution of this ltJA• Docii!Mnt, 1111r •ny PDitiDn or It, '"1 ,..ult In--clvH Mel CJtlniiMII...,......,IInd will be~ to the 
mulmum ..tent ~·lble und•rtha llw. Thll documentwu produced by AJA IOftware at 15:St:3tl on 05/2812013 undlll' Order No.63110080183_1 which Ppll'll 
on 10f1812013, and Ia not for,..., •. 
User Noles: (2050324577) 

M 
QC 



lntt. 

Execution and Progras of the Work 
1.1.3, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 2.2.3, 2.2.S, 3.1, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, 
3.7.1, ~.10.1, 3.12, 3.14, 4.2, 6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.5, 8.2, 
9.5.1, 9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1 .3 
Extmsions of Time 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3, 7.4, 9.5.1,9.7, 10.3.2, 
10.4~1. 14.3, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 
Fallve of Payment 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 
Faulty Wort 
(See Defective or NOilCOllforming Work) 
FiDal ComPt~OD aiid FiDal Payment 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9~8.2, 9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.3.1, 11.3.5, 
12.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Financial Arrqem~. Owner's 
2.2.1, 13;2,2, i4.1.1.4 
Fire and Ex•ded Coverage lnsw'ancc 
11.3.1.1 
GENERAL PllOVISIONS 
1 
GcmndDg Law 
13.1 
~(See Warranty) 
Hazardoui Material~ 
10~4~ 1"0.3 
Idcnt!.fi~atiOD of Subcontractors and Supplicn 
S.Z.1 
IJMienmlfication 
3.17, 3.:lB, 9.10.2, ~0.3.3, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 11.3.1.2, 
11.3.7 
lnfor...-a~»n and Services Required of the OWDer 
2.1.2, u , 3.2.2, 3.12.4, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.4, 13.5.1, 
13.5.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.3 
IDitlal Decldon 
15.2 
IDltial Dedllon Maker • Ddblidoll of 
1.1.8 
Initial Decision Maker. Decisions 
14~2. 14.2.4, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5 
Initial Decision Makcl", Extent of Authority 
14.2.2, 14.2.4. 15.1.3, 15.2.1. 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 
15.2.5 
llljvy or Damage to Penon or Property 
10.2.8, 10.4.1 
Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7 .1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.5 
Instructicm to Biddtn 
1.1.1 
Instructicm to the Contract« 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.8.1, 5.2.1, 7, 8.2.2, 12, 13.5.2 
IDitnuDentl of Senlce, Definition of 
1.1.7 
Insurance 
3.18.1, 6.1.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2,11 

Imurance. Boiler and MKWna'y 
11.3.2 
Iasuruee, Coatraetor's LiabiHty 
11.1 
Insurance, Effective Date of 
8.2.2, 11.1.2 
lluuruee, Loll ol Use 
11.3.3 
ln•urance, Owaer's Liability 
11.2 
IDIU1'1111Cet Pnperty 
10.2.5,11.3 
Insurance, Stored Materials 
9.3.2 
INSURANCE AND BONDS 
11 
Jnsunmce Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy 
9.9.1 
lnteDt of the Contract Documents 
1.2.1, 4.2.7, 4.2.12,4.2.13, 7.4 
Interest 
13.6 
lllterpretatiOil 
1.2.3, 1.4, 4.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 15.1.1 
Interpretatioas, Written 
4.2.11, 4.2.12, 15.1.4 
Judgment on Final Award 
15.4.2 
Labor IUld Materials, :Equlplllellt 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Labor Disputes 
8.3.1 
Laws and Regulations 
1.5, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13.1, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 11.1.1, 11.3, 13.1.1, 13.4, 13.-5.1, 13.5.2, 
13.6.1, 14, 15.2.8, 15.4 
Liens 
2.1.~, 9.3.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8 
Limitations, Statutes of 
12.2.5, 13.7, 15.4.1.1 
Limitations of Liability 
2.3.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 
4.2.12, 6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.1.2, 
11.2, 11.3.7, 12.2.5, 13.4.2 
Limitations ofTimc 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.4, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 
5.2, 5.3.1, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 11.1.3, 11.3.1.5, 
11 .3.6, 11.3.10, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 15 
Lon of Use blaraaee 
11.3.3 
Material Suppliers 
1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.6, 9.10.5 
Material~, Huard0111 
10.2.4, 10.3 

AlA~ A201•- 2007. COpyrlgltO 11111, 1816, 1918, 11125. 1937, 111151, 1158, 19111 , 19113,191111, 11170, 19le,11187, 18117111112007 by The American 
IndUe of Archltletl. All ,..._IWMIVId. WARNING: 1llls AJA1 DocuiMnl II pratec:ted br U.S. CoPrfttllt L-Mel 1111-.tlonal Trutlea. Urwuthortud 5 
repn~du.:tton or dlltl1buUon or ttllll AJA.1 Document, or lillY portion of II, mq NSUit In aeven civil •nd .:rlrnlnll p11111IU11, 111d wHI be proaecuted to tile 
matmum at.nt p-lble uncllll'the IIW. Thla documlntwn produced by AIAaolwlre at 15:50:38 on 05f2812013 under Order No.53410080183_1 which uplrws 
on 1Dt1812013, llld II not for nllllle. 
UMr Nolel: (20150324577) 

~ 
QO 



lnlt. 

Materials, Labor, Equipment and 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 1.5.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13.1, 
3.15.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 
9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
M~ Methods, Teclmiques, Sequences and 
Procedures ofConstruction 
3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9.4.2 
Mechanic's Lien 
2.1.2, 15.2.8 
MedJatiou 
8.3.1, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 15 . .2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 
15.4.1 
Minor Cluuages in the Work 
1.1.1, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4 
~ous.-aoVJSioNs 
ll 
Modifteatfom, Definition of 
1.1.1 
M~cations to the Con1nct 
1.1.1, 1.1.2, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 11.3.1 
M;ataal Respoui~ty 
6.% 
NOnecmfOI'IIIiDg Work, AeeeptaDce of 
9:6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Noocooforming Wodc, Rejection and Cmection of 
2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.5, 4.2,6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 
12.2.1 
Nqticc 

2.2.1, 7.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.2, 3.12.9, 5.2.1, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 11.1.3, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 
14.1, 14.2, 15.2.8, 15.4.1 
Notice, Written 
2.3.1, 2.4·.1, 3.3.1, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 10.3, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 14, 
15.2.8, 15.4.1 
Notice of Ciablu 
3.7.4, 10.2.8, lS.l.l, 15.4 
Notice of Testing and lnspcctions 
13.5.1, 13.5.2 
Obsenrations, Contractor's 
3.2, 3.7.4 
Occupancy 
2.2.2, 9.6.6, 9.8, 11.3.1.5 
Orda-s, Writtm 
1.1.1, 2.3, 3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, I 1.3.9, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.5.2, 
14.3.1 
OWNER 
:z 
OwHr, DefiDition of 
l .l.l 
Owner,IDformatlon I.Dd Servicet Required of the 
2.1.2, l.l, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.3.2, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5.1, 
13.5.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.3 

Owner's Authority 
1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3.1, 2.4.1, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 
4.1.2, 4.1.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 
7 .2.1, 7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.S.l, 9.6.4, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 11.1.3, 11.3.3, 11.3.10, 12.2.2, 
12.3.1, 13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 15.2.7 
Owner's Financial Capability 
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
Owaer's Liability IDnruee 
ll.l 
Owner's Relationship with Subccntractors 
1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2 
Owaer's Riglat to Carry Out the Work 
2.4, 14.2.2 
Owner's Ri&ht to Clean Up 
6.3 
Owlaer•s Right to Perform Constnction od to 
Award Sepvate Contracts 
6.1 
Owner's Right to Stop the Work 
1.3 
Owner's Right to Suspend the Wmk 
14.3 
Owner's Right to Terminate the Contract 
14.2 
Owurllalp and Use of Drawiup, Spedficatiou 
and other lllltnuaeatl or Senice 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.2.S, 3.2.2, 3.11.1, 3.17, 
4.2.12, S.3.1 
Plll"tial Oeeapaney or U1e 
9.6.6, 9.9, 11.3.1.5 
Patehlog, Cutting and 
3.14, 6.2.5 
Patc:nts 
3.17 
Paymeat, Applleatioas fOI' 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.S, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.S, 9.10.1, 
14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment, Certlfteata far 
4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.S, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 
9.10.3, 13.7, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4 
Payment, Fdure of 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 
Payment. Final 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.4.1, 12.3.1, 
13.7, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment Boad, Pufoi'DWICe Bond ud 
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.4 
Payments, Progress 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3 
PAYMENTS AND COMPLE110N 
9 
Payments to Subcontracton 
S.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2 
PCB 
10.3.1 

AIADaculllenlA201 ... -2007. c~c 1111, 1916, 1911.1925,1937, 1851, 1851, 1981,1983, 18ll8,1&70,1978, 1917, 19117 and 2007byTheAmerk:an 
lndtiAa of An:hllacta. All rlghl8 ,_.rwcl. WARNING: Thla NA• Document Ia protel:ted by U.l. Copyright LIW and lntematlonal T,.etln. Unauthorlncl 6 
reproduc:tlon or distribution of this AlA• DocUMent, or .ny poltlon of It, mil)' rMult In--clvlllnd criminal penalties, 81111 w11S be~ to the 
mulmum utent poaslbla under the law. Thla doeumentw11 produced by AlA softwl,. at 16:59:36 on 0512812013 unchlr Onler No.5380090183_1 which axpiAII 
on 10i1812013, and Ia not for !Male. 
U..r Notes: (2050324577) 

"'!' 
oc 



lltlt. 

Performance Bond ud Payment Bond 
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.4 
Permits, Fee•, Notic:el and Complfaaee with Lawt 
2.2.2, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.7.4, 10.2.2 
PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF 
10 
Polychlorinated Biphenyl 
10;3.1 
Product Data, Definition of 
3.12..2 
Prodnc:t D. ud SIUIJP]e1, Shop Drawlnga 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Pr01fes• _.Completion 
4~~-2. 8.2, 9~~. 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.3 
PtOII'eli l'aymenb 
9.3, 9.6, 9;8.5, 9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3 
Project, Definition of 
1.1.4 
~Representatives 
4.2.10 
Property~ 
10.~5, u;3 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
10 . . 

~gulatims and Laws 
1.5, 3.2.3., 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 11.1, 11.4, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14, 
15.2.$, 15.4 
Rejection ofWork 
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.2.1 
Relta.Scs and Waivers ofLicm 
9.10.2 
RqJrescntatioos 
3.i.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 
9.10.1 
Rcprc:scntatives 
2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.10, 5.1.1 , 5.1.2, 
13.2.1 
Responsibility for Those Pttformiag the Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.3.1, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10 
Rctainage 
9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Review of Contract Documeab and Field 
Conditiom by COiltraetor 
3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3 
Review of Contractor's Subnittals by Owner and 
Architect 
3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2 
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
by Contractor 
3.12 
Rlghb and Remeclie1 
1.1.2, 2.3, 2.4, 3.5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 
6.3, 7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 
13.4, 14, 15.4 
Royaltia, Patentl IDd Copyrlghb 
3.17 

IWles and Notices for Arbitratipn 
15.4.1 
Safety of Per10n1 and Property 
10.2, 10.4 
Safety Precauti0n1 and Proar111111 
3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3.1, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4 
Sample1, Definition of 
3.12.3 
Sample1, Shop Drawiap. Prodoet Data and 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Sample• at tile Site, ~umenb and 
3.11 
Schedule of Value• 
9.2, 9.3.1 
Schedules, CanstiUcti.m 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2 
Sqmate Cmtracts and Contractors 
1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2 
Shop Drawbap. Definition of 
3.12.1 
Sllop Drawillp, Prodnc:t Data and Sampla 
3.11, 3.12., 4.2.7 
Site. Ute of 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Site lnBpectioos 
3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2, 9.4.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Site Visits, Architect's 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Special Inspections and Testing 
4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.5 
Spec:ifieationa. Definitim of 
1.1.6 
Specification a 
1.1.1,1.1.6,1.2.2, 1.5, 3.11, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.1.4 
Statute of Limitations 
13.7, 15.4.1.1 
Stopping the Work 
2.3, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1 
Stored Materials 
6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4 
Subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.1 
SUBCONTRACI'ORS 
5 
Subcontractors, Work by 
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 4.23, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6.7 
Subc:ontraetualltelltiODI 
5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1 
SubmiUBls 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.7, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.3 
Submittal Schedule 
3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7 
Subrogation, Wahen of 
6.1.1, 11.3.7 

AlA Doalllllft A201,._ 2007. ~0 11111, 1915, 19111.1825, 1937,1951, 19541,11181, 11183, 11166, 1970, 1171. 1987, 1997•nd 2007 by The Amerk:ln 
lndUI of An:hltacts. M rlghta _,..,WARNING: This AlA• Document Is protecMct by U.S. Copyright~ end lntemetlonal T~atiiS. Uneulhortzad 7 
Nproduc:tlon or distribution of tills NA• Document, or any por11on of 11, mey result In •even clvlllmd crlmlllll peneltle•, and will b• pratec:uted tD the 
IIIU!mum U1Mit po11lble under tile • · Thit documarttWII pnlduced by AlA toftwanlllt 15:58:311 on 0512812013 under Order No.53e00101t13_1 Whlctl ~Ire• 
on 10f1812013,11Jld 11 not for raNie. 
U.er Not.: (2050324577) 

In 
QC 



lnlt. 

I 

Subttandal Completion 
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
13.7 
Subttutlal Completlou, Definitian of 
9~8.1 
Substitution of Subcontractors 
5.2.3, 5.2.4 
Substitution of Ardlitect 
4.1.3 
Sub&titutioos of Materials 
3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8 
~abcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.1 
Subsur&cc Conditicm 
3.7.4 
Sw:cetiOI'I and .blips 
133 
Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2·.6 
St.q~ridon .00 C~tlon Procedure. 
1:2.2;3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.7, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3 
Surety 
5.4.1.2, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 14.2.2, 15.2.7 
SUretY, Consent of 
9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Su,vCys 
2.2.3 
S.pmloa by the OwMr for Coa.ftUeJH:e 
1 • .3 
Suspcmico of the Work 
5.4.2, 14.3 
Suspension orTaminatian oftbe Comract 
5.4.1.1, 14 
Tue• 
3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.7.4 
Temdnation by the Contrutor 
14.1, 15.1.6 
Termination by the Owner for CaDle 
5.4.1.1,14.2., 15.1.6 
Tenalnatlon by the Owuer for Coa.W~Dience 
14.4 
Tetmination of the Architect 
4.1.3 
Tcnninatian of the Contractor 
14.2.2 
~ATIONORS~SONOFTBE 
CONTRACT 
14 
Tatllllld IMpectiom 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 
9.10.1, 10.3.2, 11.4.1.1, 12.2.1, 13.S 
TIME 
8 
Time, DelaYJ aad EiteJuioul of 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4.1, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 1S.2.S 

Time Limits 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.4, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 
9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 11.1.3, 12.2,13.5, 13.7, 14, 
15.1.2, 15.4 
TiJoe Umitl OD Claiml 
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 13.7, 15.1.2 
Title to Work 
9.3.2, 9.3.3 
TriiDIIDiallon of Data In DlgiUI Form 
1.6 
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
1l 
Unecmrbag of Work 
12.1 
Unfa:escen Conditions, Concealed <r Unknown 
3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Unit Prices 
7.3.3.2, 7.3.4 
UseofDocmocnts 
1.1.1, 1.5, 2.2.5, 3.12.6, 5.3 
UaeofSfte 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Values, Sehedole of 
9.1, 9.3.1 
Waiver of Claims by the .Arclritect 
13.4.2 
Waiver of Claims by the Cmtmctar 
9.10.5, 13.4.2, 15.1.6 
Waiver of Claims by the Owner 
9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.6 
Waiver of Consequential Damages 
14.2.4, 15.1.6 
Waiver ofliens 
9.10.2, 9.10.4 
Walftrl of Subrogation 
6.1.1, 11.3.7 
Wuruty 
3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 13.7 
Weather Delays 
15.1.5.2 
Work, Definition of 
1.1.3 
Written Consent 
1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.5, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.4.1, 13.2, 13.4.2, 15.4.4.2 
Written lntcrpl'etatians 
4.2.11, 4.2..12 
Writtmi.Notice 
2.3, 2.4, 3.3.1, 3.9, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 8.2.2, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 10.3, ll.l.3, 12.2.2, 12.2.4,13.3, 14, 
15.4.1 
WritU:n Orders 
1.1.1, 2.3, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.5.2, 14.3.1, 
15.1.2 

NA Dac_. AZM•-1007. Copyt1ght0 1811,1815, 1818, 1925, 11137, 1851, 11168. 1Q61, 19113, 1968. 1970, 1878,11187, 111t7 and 2007 byTheArnertc.n 
1ns11tu1e of An:hlt8c11. All Jlglltli ruar¥811. WARNING: This AJA• Document Is protect.t b' U.S. Copyright Law end lntarn.Uonel T1111tlu. Unaulhortz.-1 8 
.. production or distribution Df tills N/1..1 Document, or •ny portion of II, may lftUitln HV.,. ciYII •nd criminal penllllea, •nd will be pi'IIMCIMd to the 
1111111lmunt uttntpoSIIlble under the '-w. Tllildocl.mlntwn pnxluced byAIAIOftwaR at 15:59:3& on05128t2013 Lnler OrdlrNo.531!0090163_ 1 which upiiM 
on 1011812013, end 18 not for .. 1111. 
u.., Notu: (20603245n) 

1.0 
QC 



lnlt. 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS 
§ 1;1.1 TffE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
The Ccmtm:t Documents arc enumerated in the Agreement betwccn the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the 
.Agrccmtnt) and consist of the AgJecment, Conditions of the Contract (Oc:neral, Supplementary and other Conditions), 
DmwiDgs, Spccificatims, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Con1ract, olhcr documents listed in the Agreement 
and .Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract 
signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Olange Directive or (4) a writtm crdcr fur a minor 
change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract 
Documents c!o not include the advcrtiscmcat or invi1ation to bid, lDstiUctions to Bidda's, sample fmns, other 
injOrmation tilmishcd by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contracttt' s bid or proposal, or 
portions of Addenda ~g to bidding requircmmts.. 

§ 1.1.2 THE eo~cr 
The Contract DocwiJcnts fonn the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated 
agreement betweeaj the. parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written 
or~- The Col:\trfct may~ .~ or modified only by a Modification. The Cmttact Documents shall not be 
consttued to create il COlttractUiil relationship of any kind (1) between tbe Cootractor and the Arc:bitcct or the 
Arcbitect's ~ts, (7)-between the Owner and a Subcomractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) bctwccn the~ 
and tbe.Arcl\jtett or the ~·s consultants or (4) between any parsons or entities other tban the Owner and the 
Contraetor. The ·Arcidtcct sball, however, be entitled to performance and coforcement of obligations UDder the 
cc:intr.ct intendCd to-~U~ perfimumce of the Arc:bitec:t's duties. 

§ ·1.1.1 THE WoRK 
The tam "WCitk" means the cODBtnletion and services required by the Contract Documents, vmetber completed or 
partiiUy completed, and includes all olb.e:r labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by the 
Cooti'~Gt« to fulfill the Cmncur's obligations. The Work may constitute the whole« a part of the Project. 

§ 1.1.4 THE JI.ROJ&CT 
The Proj,:ct is the tot'al constructi011 of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or 
a part and which may include COJistruction by the Owner and by separate contractors. 

§ 1.1.5THE DRAWINGS 
the Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and 
dimensions of theW Olk, geocrally including plans, elevations, sections, details, srllcdul.es and diagrams. 

§ 1.UTHE SPECIFICA110NS 
The Specifications arc that portion of the Cmtrad Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, 
ccpJipment, systems, standards and workmansbip for the Work, and performance of related services. 

§ 1.1.71NSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 
Instruments of Service arcrcpreBCDtations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tang~. ole 
and intangible creative work petfunned by the ArdUtec:t and the .Architect's consultants under their respective 
professional services agrcc:mc:nts. Instruments of Service may include, without limitatioo, studies, surveys, models, 
sketches, drawings, specificatioos, and other similar mataials. 

§ 1.1.81NITIAL DECISION MAKER 
The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Aarecment to rendtr initial decisions on Claims in 
accordance with Section 15.2 and certify termination ofthe.Agrccmc:nt under Section 14.2.2. 

§ 1.2 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Cmtract Documents is to include all itans necessary for the prq1er execution and com.pletim 
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementacy, and v.ilat is required by one &ball be as 
binding as if required by all; performance by the C011tractor shall be required only to the extent consistent with the 
Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them u being necessary to produce the indicated results. 

~A Docum1111 AI01 .. -1007. Cop)'llght 01911, 11115, 11118, 11125, 1937, 1951, 195&, 111111, 1983, 1986,1970, 1018, 1987, 1G87 erd 2007 by The~ 
1n111t1A1 of .Art:hltal:tl. ~I rights,_.,.,..., WMNING: Thla NA8 Document Ia protec:tM by U.S. Copyrltht Law and lntemetlan., Tratl ... Unauthorized 9 
reproduction or dl&trtbutlon of thle NA• Dac:urnent, or any paltlon of It, mey reault In .. ,.,. c:IYII and c:rtmlnal penaltlee, lnd will be proucutM to th• 
111ulnlumut.nt poeelble under the'-· This doc:umentW8& praduced byo\!Aaollwere at 15:!58:38on0512812013 undetOnler No~163_1 wl1k:h uplrM 
on 1011812013,1ndla notklr reule. 
UearNot.e: (2050324677) 

r
oo 



lniL 

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Spccificati0118 into divisions, sectiODS and articles, and lll!'llllgtmeDt of Drawings shall not 
control the Cmtractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the Cldcmt of Work to be 
perfmncd by any trade. 

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwi!IC stated in the Contract Documents, words tbat have well-known technical or construction 
industry meanings are U8Cd in the Contract Documents in acc«dance with such recognized mcaoings. 

I 1.S CAPITALIZATION 
TcmJB capitalized in these OcneraJ Condi1i0118 include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered 
articles or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of .Arcbitects. 

I 1i41~-A'm>N 
...... 'f . ~~~s~~fJteGea1RletlleMBeatshft t&· . di . 
IRI8llas "tke". aft4,:•~ii1Jut .tbefee&th&tamedifi'lle.B Y.~me4)'Ht&weAI& saeh:as "all" IIMi"IIBY'' aallllftieles 
Bet .._.8!1 te ~.,.the ~~etatiSB ef either e:=• Ill a118eat fi'OJBeaelltMeiBeat aallappeaf!i ia &ether is 

§ 1.5 QWNER~IP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMEHI'S OF SERVICE 
§ 1.5;1 The Ardiiiect and th~ Architect's consuJtants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
~ ofService,.~llding the Drawings and Specifications, and will retain all common law, statutory and otbrz 
~~ rights, includilm .Copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment 
81JPP1icn -lb!ill not ()Wn or cl.rtn a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distribution to meet official 
~ ~ts or fur otbrz purpoees in connectim with 1bis Project is not to be construed as publication in 
derogation of the .ArcbitCct's or Architect's C<llSultants' rcsc:rved rights. 

§ 1.5;2 The Con~. SUbcontractors, Su~subc:ontractors and material or equipment supplicn are authorized to use 
and reprodUce the Tnstruments of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work All 
copies made llftdcr this l\ltllariZation sball bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the Jnstrumcnts of Service. The 
Contrictcr, Subcon~ Sub-8ubcontractors, and material or equipment supplicn may not use the Instruments of 
S.erYiec on otha' pv.jtcts or fur additi0118 to this PrQjcct outside the scope of the Work without the specific written 
consent Of the OWner, Arc:bitect and the .Arcbitect' s consultants. 

§ UTRANSMISSION OF DATA .IN DIGITAL FORM 
If the parties intend to tnnsmit Instrunlmts of Service or any other infurmaticm or documentation in digital form, they 
shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions, unless otherwise already provided in the 
Agreement or the Coo.tract Documents. 

ARTICLE 2 OWNER 
§ 2.1 G~NERAL 
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the pcnm or entity identified as sudt in the Agreement and is refared to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if sinp]ar in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a reprcscntativc who sbaU bave c:xpress 
authority to bind the Owner w:ith respect to aU matters requiring the Owner's approval ar authorization. Except as 
otherwise provided in Scction4.2.1, the Architect does not bave such authority. The tmn "Owna'" means the Ownrr 
or the Owner's authorized representative. 

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall fiunish to the Cmtractor within ~days after receipt of a written request, 
infurmation nece~sary and relevant fur the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic' s lien rights. 
Such information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to tbe property on which the Pn!jcct is 
located, usually rcfmrcd to as the site, and the Ownrr's interest tbecein. 

§ 2.21NFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER 
§ 2.2.1 Prior to commatcement of the Work, the Contractor may request in writing tbat the Owner provide reasonable 
evidence that the Owner has made financial ammgements to fulfill the Owner's obligatioos under the Contract. 
"I1lc::rQftcr, the Contractor may ooly request such evidence if (I) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor 
as the Contract Documents require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum; or (3) the 
Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner's ability to make pa)'Dlent when due. The 
Owner shall furnish such evidc:ncc as a condition prcccdcnt to commencement or cootinuatioo of the Wen or the 

AlA Dc1cumMt A201 .. - 20DJ. C~ 01911, 1916, 1818, 19215, 1937, 1951. 1858, 11181, 11163, 19611, 1870, 1878, 11187, 11187 and 2007 by The ArlleiQn 
lnstiiUIII of~. All rtlhta ,_.JWII, WARNING: This AlA• Document Ia prot.ded by U.S. Copydght uw •nd lntematlon•l TrutiM. Un•uthorlnd 10 
reprodul:tlon or dlst11butlon Df this AlA• Document, or 1ny portion Df It, may NSIIIlln seven ctvll and CIIIIIIMI peMitln, lind wiU bll proaec:IMd to the 
mulmum utent poalble under the lew. Thla doCUmentwa producad by AlA IOilWarv at 15:~:38 on 05/2.812013 under Order No.53600901113_1 which upirvs 
on 1011812013, and Ia not for,......, 
UMr NOIM: (205032~11) 

QO 
QO 



lnlt. 

portion of the Work aftCcted by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not 
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior nOO.ce to the Contractor. 

§ 2.2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Ccmtmct Documents, 
including those required 1Dlder Section 3. 7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, 
assessments and charges required fur construction, use or occupancy of pennanent structures or fur permanent 
chamges in existing fBcilities. 

§ U3 The Ownc- sball1brnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legallimitatioos and utility locations fo£ 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor sba1l be entitled to rely on the accuracy of 
infurmation fimJished by the Owner but sball exrrcise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work. 

§ 2.2.4 The O'wntt sballtbmisb infonnatioo or services required of the Ownc- by the Contract Documents with 
reasooable p-omptness. The Ownc- sball also furnish any other informatim cr savices under the Owner's control and 
relevant to the Contw:tor'.s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Cootractor's 
written request fur such ~on or services. 

§ 2.2.S Unl~ otb~ provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of 
the Omtract Doc::umcilts ~purposes of making reproductiCilB pursuant to Section 1.5.2. 

§ U owNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK 
lftbc ~tor fails ·to correct Work tbat is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as 
required by.Secti01ll2.2 or repeatedly wls to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner 
may issue a written orcfc:r to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thcn:ot; until the cause fur such order has 
been ~ted; hoWever; the right of the 0wnCI' to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty oo the part of the Owner 
to exerc:ise this right for the brncfit of 1he Contractu' or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by 
Se¢.cin 6.1.3. 

I 2.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK 
If the~ defaults or neglects to carry out tbe Work in accordance with the Cmtract Documents and fails 
within a tal-day period iftrr receipt of written notice from tbe Owner to commence and coo.tinue cmection of such 
de&.ult or negleet with diligence and taomPtncss, the OwnCI' may, without prejudice to oChCI' remedies the Owner may 
have, correct such deficiencies. In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting ftom payments 
then or thcn:after due the Contmctor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including Owner's expenses 
and c:ompeosaticn fo£ the .Arc:hitect's additiaoal services made necessary by suc:.b default, neglect or &.ilurc. Such 
action by the OwnCI' and amDUD.ts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the Architec:t. If 
paymmts then Cl' thereafter due the Contractcr are not sufficient to cover suc:b amounts, the Contractor shall pay the 
di1feralc:e to the Owner. 

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.1 GENERAL 
§ 3.1.11he Contractor is the pcrsm or entity identified as such in the Agreancnt and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if sinauJ.ar in nlD!lber. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction 
where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who sba11 have express 
authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters undor this Contract The term "Contractor" means the 
Cootractor «the Contractor's autbcrized rqnse:ntative. 

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall pcrfonn the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perfurm the W ark in accordance with the Contract 
Documents eitb.CI' by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect's administration of the Contract, or by tests, 
inspections or approvals required cx- peri'onned by persons or entities other than the Ccntracta'. 

AIADocumentA201.,. _ _,, Cop)'1101't~11111,11115, 111111,1125, 1837, 1951,1858,1161,1163,11168, 1170,1876,1il87, 1987and2007byTheAmerlcan 
111111tute of ArchH8c11. AJI rlgt!tl reMrvld. WARNING: This AJA1 Document II protec:tecl by U.S. Copyright Law and lntematlo1111l Trutln. Unauthollzld 11 
rept'Dduc:tlon or dllltltbutlon of thll AlA• Document, or any polt/on of It, mt~Y result In _.,. dvH and c:rftnlnll penaltlaa, and will bl prosecuted to the 
mulmum utent poaslbla under the law. This doc:umentwu produced by AIA1ollw8re at 15:S8:311 on 0612812013 under Older No.531100801113_1 which upll'll 
on 10111112013, and " notror resale. 
u..r Notas: (2050324577) 

=" QC) 



lnlt. 

§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contmct by the Contractor is a reprcsentatim that the Con1ractor has visited the site, become 
generally fiuniliar with local conditions under which the WOJk is to be performed and condated personal observations 
with requirements of the Cmtnlct Documents. 

I 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complc:maltary, the Contract« sbalJ, bebe starting each porti.m of 1he 
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to tbatportiOD ofthc Wcrk, as wdlas1he 
ilifurmation fbmished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing 
~ditims related to that portion of the W ark, and shall observe any conditions at the site aft'ccting it These 
obligations are fur the ~e of facilitating coordinatiOD 8lld cmstructim by the Contractor and are not for the 
pulpo8C of ~rzing Cmn, omissions, or inconsisteDcies in the Cootract Documents; bcnwve:r, the Con1ract« il 
qpectcd to·ha.ve gmegllgtowled&e ofthe&e itgrw and shall promptlyrepmt to the ArdUtect any emn, 
Wionsistaiqe& Or o0dsii08s discovered by or made known to the Contracta as a request fur infonnatim in such form 
as the .ArchiteCt ~y rc:guire. It is recognized that the Ccmtractor's .review is made in the Cmtractor's capacity as a 
~ ~d not as a liCCil.IICd design professional, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract 
DocumentB. 

I 3.2.3 The Contiactor is BOt required to ascertain that the CcmactDocuments are in accordance with applicable laws, 
~. ~~ codes; ndes mi regulationa, cr lawful crdcrs of public authorities, but the Cmtractor sball 
~report tO the .A®ifec:t any nonconformity diiiCOVC:red by or made known to the Contractor as a request fur 
jDformati~ in SUch form as tbe Architect may require. 

§ -3.2.4 If the Contractor bclicv.es that additiooal cost or time is involved because of clarifications cr instnJdions the 
Architect iiSues iJt r~ to the Cootracl«'s notices or requests fur infmnatico putSUIIlt to Sections 3.2.2 cr 3.23, 
the Ccotractcr ilball ~Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contrutor fiWs to pafunn the obligatioos of 
Secti~ 3.2.2 or 3.2.3.- th~ C~ shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner as would have been avoided if 
the~ bad J)~ such obligations. If the Contractor pt.rfo.nns 1hose obligations, the Contractor shall not 
be liMb).e to the·Ownu or .Architect fur damages resulting ftom QTOJ'S, inooosistalcies or omisaiODS in the Cmtract 
Documenti, for diffcra:lc;cs between field m.easurcmmts cr conditions and the Contract Documents, oc for 
~~of the Cantract Documents to applicable laws. statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and 
lawtbl ~s of public authcnties. 

§ 3.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUC110N PROCEDURES 
§ 3.3.1 The Contractdr shall supa:viie and direct the Work, using the Cantr~'s best skill and attention. The 
Contmctar ljball be solely respoDsible for, and have oon1rol tM:r, construction means, methods, techniques, scqucnces 
and procedures and :fur coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Contract Documents give 
otba' .spcciiic instructioos conc:emiq these matters. If the Contract Docwncots give specific instmctions cancemiog 
construcfion ~. methods, techniqtitA, scqumccs or procedures, the Contractor sbaU evaluate the jobsitc safety 
thereof and. ~ccpt as stated below, abal1 be 1blly and solely responsible for the jobsitc safety of such means, methods, 
tccbniqucs, sequences or proc:edun:s. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures may not be Safe, the Contractor sbaJ1 give timely written notice to the Owner and Arcbitect and shall not 
proceed with that portion oftbc Wcx-k without filrtba' written instructioos ftcm the Architect. If the Cmtmctor is then 
instructed to proceed with the required means, methods, tcc:hniques, sequraccs or procedures without acceptance of 
changes proposed by the Contractcr, the Owner sbaii be solely responsible for any loss or damage arising solely from 
those Owncr-ll"luired means, methods, teclmiqucs, sequences or procedures. 

§ 3.3.21he Contractoc sball be responsible to the Owner fer acts and omissims of the Contractcr's cmpl~ 
Subcontractors 8lld their agmts and employees, and otha' pmon1 or entities perfonniDg portioos of the Work fur, or 
on bcbalf o( the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors. 

§ 3.3.31he CODtractoc shall be responsible for inspectian of portions ofWork already performed to detamine that 
such porti.oos are in proper conclitioo to receive subsequc:nt W ark. 

§ 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS 
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, conscruction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transpmation, and othc:c 

AlA Docun18nt AIOt .. - 200?. CopyriGht 0 11111, 11115, 1918, 11125, 1937, 1951, 11158, 1951, 11183, 11188, 1970, 11178, 1987, 1W7 lrx12007 by The Amlrtcln 
Ntltul8 of An:htlllc:ll. Allrlfltds .... rwc~. WMNING: This AlA• Document Ia Pft)tKted by U.S. Copyright U. md lntlmatlonel TIMtles. Un8Uthortncl 12 
reproduction or dlstrlbuUon of thJ. AlA• Doc11111ent, or q portion of It, may IMult In sev.,. dvlllllld crlmiMI ,....Uies, and wUI be prosecuted to the 
mulm11111 tnllent posslbll under the llw. This dDCI.Irlent WM produold by AlA IIO!lwarwlt 15:59".38 on 05128/2013 under Order No.53800110183_t which uplrw 
on 10111112013,1111d Is not for ruM. 
U..r Nol81: (20e0324577) 

= C\ 



lnlt. 

mcilities and services necessary fir proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporuy «permanent 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. 

§ 3.4.2 Except in the cue of min<r changes in the Work autborized by the Architect in accordance with Sections 
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Cmtractor may make substitutions aolywith the consattofthe Owner, after evaluation by the 
Architect and in accordance with a OJange Order or Coostruction OHmge Directive. 

§ 3.4.31he Contractor shaU enforce strict discipline and good order amoog the Ccotractor's employees and oth« 
penons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not pcmlit employment of unfit pCI'!IOnS or persons not properly 
skilled in 1ub assigned to them. 

l 3.5 WARRAHl'Y 
The Con~wammts to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment :fiunisbed under the Contract will be 
of .good quali,ty and new unleas the Contract Documents require or permit othelwise. The Cmtractor fmthtc warrants 
that the Work Will conform to the requirements of the Cmtract Documents and will be free from defects, except for 
tboiBe inhm:irt in the qwility oftbe Work the Contract Documents require or~ Work, materials, or equipment not 
conforming to these req~a;lts may be oonsidered defcctiw. The Contractor's WIITanty excludes remedy for 
dami.ge ar defeCt caused by abJse. altaations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or insufficient 
maili~ il:npi'cpCJ; qpc:ration, <r nmnal wear and tear and nonnal usage. If required by the Arcllitect, the 
COn~ ~ fUrnish. satiBmctory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment 

§.UTAXES 
1bc CcOttaCttt liba1l pay sales, CODSUme'l", use and similar taxes b' the Work provided by the Cmtractor that are 
legally enacted when bids arc received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scb.eduled to 
go into effect. 

§ 3.7 .P.-ITS, FEES, NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH lAWS 
§ 3; 7.1l)nt~ otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor sbal1 aecure and pay for the building 
permit as wdl u fur other pennits, fees, licenses, and inspectims by govC'ZDDlalt agencies Dece881ry for }1I"'PC% 

exC¢mim and CCIDJ)leti.m of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required 
at the time bids arc received « negotiatims concluded. 

§ 3.7 .21be Ccotractor shall ccmply with IUid give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and replationa, and lawfi:&l ordtn of public audlorities applicable to pcrlormance of the Work 

§ 3.7 .3 If the Contractor pcrfmns Work knowing it to be emtruy to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, tules 
and regulatioos, or lawful orders of public authuities, the Ccmtractor sball assume appropriate responsibility for such 
Work and sbaJ.1 bear the costs attributable: to correction. 

§ 3.7 A Coaeealed or UllknowJI CODdltlcm. If the Contractor encounters conditioos at the si.te that are (1) subsurface 
or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from thoee indicated in the Contract Documents or 
(2) unknown physical coodidoas of an lDUsua1 nature, that differ materially fnm thole miinarily found to exist and 
generally recognized as iohcmrt in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract :Documents, the 
CootractDF sball promptly provide notice to the OWilCI' and 1bc Architec:t before conditioos are disUbed and in no 
event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such 
cmditioos and, if the Architect determines that they differ mataially md cause an inaease or decrease in the 
Contract«'s cost at; or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an equitable: 
adjustment in the Cmtract Sum or Contract Tune, or both. If the Architect detamines that the conditions at the site arc 
not materially differc:nt from those indicated in the: Contract Documents and tbatno change in the terms of the Cmtract 
is justified, the Architect shall pmnptly notify the OwnC'E and Contractor in writing. stating the reasons. If eitha' party 
disputes the Architect's detenninatim or rec:ommmdatim, that party may proceed u provided in Article lS. 

§ 3.7.5 It; in the coune of the Work, the Contractor cncounta"s human remains« recognizes the existence ofburial 
markrn, arcbacological sites or wdlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately 
suspend any operations that would affect tbcm and aball notifY the Owner and An':hitect. Upcm. receipt of such notice, 
the Owner shall promptly take any acticm necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the 
operatims. The Contractor shaD continue to suspend surh oprn.tions umil othc:rwisc instructed by the Owner but aball 

AIADoctiiMIII.AI01•-1007. Copyllgtt01811, 18115, 11118, 1V26,11137,11151, 1858, 11161,11163,1MIS, 1870, 11178,11167, 188hnd 2007 ~The American 
1n1t1tu111 D1 ~. M rtgllts ,....-.WARNING: Tills AlA• Doci.IMflt Is protKted by U.S. Copyright L-.nd lntwnetlonat TNIItln. Ul'leutholtnd 13 
reprvduc:tlon or dlltrlbutJon of this AJA• Document, or •ny poJtJon or It, m.y re1u1t In aev .. clvlllnd crlmlnll piMitlu,IIJid will b1 PI'VIICI.Ited to thl 
l!lallft_. ut.nt pMIIbll under the a.w. Thhl clocumentwu produCid by AlA IOftarl at 15:511:38on 0612812013 under OrWI'No.l53600801113_1 which aptres 
on 1011812013, lind Is not for resale. 
U..r N.-.: (20&1324577) 

~ 
01 



lnlt 

continue with all other opcratiOD8 that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract 
Sum and Contract Time arising fran the existmce of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15. 

I 3.8 ALLOWANCES 
§ 3.8.1 The Cmtractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items 
coveml by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or mti.ties as the Owner may direct, but 
the Contractm shall not be required to employ persons or cmtities to whom the Cmtractor bas rc:asooable objectim. 

§ 3.8.2 Unless othcrwiee provided in the Contract Documents, 
.1 Allowan<:e!l shall cover the cost to the Cootractor of materials and equipment dcliwrcd at the site and 

all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 
.2 Contrac:ter's costs for \Dlloading and handling at the site, labor, instaJlatim costs, owrhead, profit and 

other expaliJC8 contanplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but 
not in the aUowmces; and 

.3 Wh~ costs are more than or less tban allowances, the Comract Smn shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Citanae Order. The amount of the Chmge Onlc:r shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs 
and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor's costs under Section 3.8.2.2. 

§ 3.8.~ Materi~s md equipJnart under 1111 allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness. 

I 3.9 SUPERIMTEHoar 
§. 3-.1.1 The ContlllctO.r ahall.cmploy a competent ~intendent and necessary assistants who sba1l be in attendance at 
the Project Site dUriDg ~ce of the Work. The superintendent sba11 represent the Contractor, and 
communicatio.tis .giwn to the supcrintmdcnt sbaJl be as binding as if given to the Contractor. 

§ 3.t.21'he ~.- J8 soon as practicable after award of the Contract, au f.Umi.sh in writing to the Owner 
throlllh the .Architect the name.md qualifications of a proposed superintcodt:nt The Architect may reply within 14 
da)'l'l to~ Cmitactm' in~ stating (1) whether the Owner cr the Architect has reasonable objection to the 
proposeci· supcrintcn• ·or ·(2) that the Architect mpQ:rcs additional time to review. Failure of the Architect to reply 
w.ithill the 14 day periOd shall constitute notice of no reuoJ18ble objection. 

§ 3.9.3 The Cmtractor sball not employ a proposed superintal.dalt to whom the Owner <r Architect bas made 
rc:asmable and ~ly objectioo. The Cootractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner's consent, 
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or dcla}"ld. 

§ 3.10 CONTRACTOR'S CONSTIUCTION SCHEDULES 
§ 3:10.11he Contractcr, promptly a1tCI' being awarded 1he Contract, sbaJl prepare and submit fer the Owna-'s and 
Arc:bitect's informatioo a C(lJl1raeta's construc:tim schedule fer the Work. The sc:hcdu!e shall not exceed time limits 
current unds' the Con~ Documa:rts, Rba1l be revised at appropriate intc:rva1s as required by the conditions of the 
Work and Project, sba1l be related to the l21tire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and sba1l 
provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. 

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor sba1l prqMU"C a submiu.l schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thcreaftc:r 
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, and sba1l submit the schedule(s) for the Atthitect's approval. 
The Ardlitect' s Bpp"owl &ball not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The submiu.l schedule shall (1) be 
coordinated with the Contractm's oonstructi.oo schedule, and (2) allow the Ardlitect reasonable time to review 
submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in 
Contract Sum or cxtensim of Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals. 

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall pc:rfonn the Work in gcoenl acc«dance with the most recent sdtedules submitted to the 
Owner and Architect. 

§ 3.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE 
The Contractm sbaD maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Clange 
Orders and other Modificati.aos, in good o.rdtr- and tDIIl'bd amattl.y to indicate field c:hanges and selections made 
during constructicm, and oo.e copy of approwd Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar required 

AIADac:uiMnlAI01 .. -20GJ. Copyrlght01811,1815,1918,1P25,1937,1961,1058,1981,198S,1&ee,1810,1876,1H7,1887and 2007 byTheAmeltcan 
fnltl11118 of Archn.cta. All llgllla ,...rved. WAJIINING: Thll AIA1 Docwnllftt Ia protected by U.S. Copyrltht L-and lnternatlanll TrnUM. UnauthariiH 14 
qproductlon or d'-tlttlutlan of this NA• Docum.nt, or eny portion of It, may raul In _.,. clvH anclc:rtmlnal paNitla, and wltl be p~ec:ut.d to the 
mlllllmum extant poeslble undertha lew. Thll document was producecl !IV AlA lllftwa..-llt 15:51:36 on 05/2812013 unclar Order No.53e0080183_1 which uplraa 
on 10/1812013, end t. not for resale. 
u.er .... : (205032<4677) 

~ 
0'1 



lnlt. 

submittals. These shall be available to the Ardlitect and shall be delivered to 1he ArdUtcct for submittal to the Owner 
upon completion of the Wed. as a record of the Wmk as CODSttucted. 

§ 3.12 SHOP DRAWWGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES 
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings. diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the 
Cmtracta or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufactura', supplier <r dimibutcr' to illustrate some portion of 
1heWork. 

I 3.12.2 Product Data arc illusCrations, standard scheclules, pcrfon:nance charts, iDstructicm, brochures, diagrams and 
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment fur some partion of the Work. 

§ 3.12.3 Samples are ~cal cumples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanabip and establish standards 
by which the Work will be judged. 

§ 3.12.4 Shop Dra~ Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Con1ract Documc:nts. Their purpose is 
to demonsti'att the WI!>}' by which the ConCractcr pllpOSC8 to canfunn to the information given and the design concept 
expressed m the COntract ~cots for those portions of the Work fur which the Contract Documents require 
sUbtnltial5:·Rev~eW·bYthC Atcliitcctis subject to the limitaticm ofSc:cti.on4.2.7.1nformational submittals upon which 
the Arcbitcct. iS not ex:~ to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that 
arc not ~by thfrCODCract Documents may be n:tumed by the Architect without action . 

.. . 

I 3.12.5 Th.e ~#aCtor shallieview for compliance with 1he Contract Documents, approve and submit to the 
Atdlita:t S1;lOp DraWings, ProcfDct Data, Samples and similar suhniuals required by the Cmtract Documents in 
accordance with the submittal·l!lchedule approved by the Atdlitect or, m the absence of an approwd submittal 
schedule, with rea&QD&ble ·piromptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Wcrk or in the activities of the 
Owl!cr C.. of scpara~ CQhbacton. 

§ 3.12.6 Bf subimtting ShD.lJ Drawings. Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the ContlacUr tepresmts to the 
Owner· and Architect 1hat 1hc Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) detc:rmined and verified materials, 
field measurem!2lts mel field construction crita:ia related thereto, <r will do so and (3) c:beckccl and coordinated the 
inloQnation contained within such submiaals with the requirements of the Work IIDd of the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.12.71be Cmtractor shaD perform no portion of the Wcd.forwhir:h the Contract Documents require submittal and 
review of Sh~ Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been 
approved by thC An:hitect. 

§ 3.12.1 ~ WOJk shall be in llCOC.Ydanc:e with approved submittals cx:ctpt that the Contractor shall not be relieved of 
responsibility for deviatims mm requirements of the Cmtract Documents by the Architect's approval of Shop 
DrawingS; Product Data, Samples or similar submiaals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect 
in writing of such deviatim at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has giveo written approval to the specific 
deviation as a minor cbattp in the Work, or (2) a ClwJgc Order or Constmction Change Din:ctive has been issued 
autloizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be re1iewd of respmsibility b' errors or omis&ims in Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect's approval thereof. 

§ 3.12.91be Contrru:ta aball direct specific aUc:ntim, in writing <r m resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data. 
Samples or similar submittals, to revisions oCh« than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the 
absence of suCh wriUc:n notice. the An:bitect's approval of a resubmissioo shall not apply to such revisions. 

§ 3.12.10 'Ibe Contractor shall not be required to provide proi:ssional sa-vices that constitute the pactice of 
architecture cr c:ngirulcring unless such sa-vices arc specifically required by the Contract Documents fur a portim of 
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in ordtr to carry out the Contractor's responsibilities 
fm coostruction means, methods, techniques, sequc:nces and procedures. The Cmtractor shall not be required to 
provide professional services in violation of applicable law. If professional design services or certificaticm by a 
design professional related to systems, matc:rial.s <r equipment are specifically required of the Contract<r by the 
Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all pcrfcmnance and design criteria that such services 
must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such ac:rvices or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed design 
professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings. calculations, specifications, cettiticatims, ShqJ 

AlA DOouiHIIl A201111- 2007. Cop)'lghl 01911, 11115, 111111, 11'25, 11137, 1951, 18611, 11181, 11183, 1988, 11170, 1878, 1987, 11197 end 2007 by Tile AmeltCIIII 
lnlh* of An:l1ltlda. M1 rte1* _,_,,WARMING: Thl8 AlA• Doi.:UIMI'II Ia protKt_. by U.S. eop,rtghl LMw llnCf II'MmMional TIMlin. U~ 15 ytpnlduc:tlon or dlstftbutlon of thla /IJA• Document, or my portion of It, mil'/ r~~sultln seveN civil end crtmlnel penaltlas, end wtn be proMcuted to the 
mulmum ment possible under the r.w. Thla document•• pnxluced by AlA aotbvllre et 15:58:311 on 061211.12013 under Older No.53800901113_1 IIWNch upll'lll 
on 10111112013, and Is nat for ........ 
U..N.-.: (2050324677) 

ff') 
0\ 



lnlt. 

Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and othec submittals rdated to the Work 
designed or crified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear sudt profi:ssionat•s writtm app-oval when 
su~Ued to the Arc:hitect. The Ownec and the Architect sbaD be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and 
~etmess of the services, eettifications and approvals pcrlmned oc provided by such design professionals, 
proVided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor all performance and design criteria that such 
services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the .Architect will review, approve or take other appropriate 
action on submittals only for the limittd purpose of checking for CODformmce with information given and the design 
coitcept expressed in tbe Cmtract Documents. The Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the 
performance and design aitcria specified in the Cannct Documents. 

I 3.13 USE OF srTE 
The Contrac:ta' sball C9lifine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable Jaws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
roles and re.gulationa, ·Gid lawtbl orders of public authorities and the Cootract Documents and shall not umeaaonably 
encumber 1he site Witlf materials or equipment 

§ 3.14.C\m1NG A~ PAT.CMING 
§ 3.1~1 'Ibe Cclcltract« shall·be responsible for cutting. fitting or patching required to complete the Work cr to make 
itS~ "fit tog~.properly, All areas requiring cutting, fitting and patd!ing shall be restored to the condition existing 
prior ta the cutting; fiUiJ.ll aM patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents. 

5 3:MJ '!® CQD.tr1CtQf ibiJl not damage or mdangcr a pmtion of the Work or fiJJly or partially completed 
~of~ Owria' or stpaate contractcn by cutting, patc.hing or otherwise altering such consttuction, <r by 
ctcavation. ·~ CoDtraCtor ~ not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner or a separate contractor 
except with written c~ Of the Ownec and of such separate contractor; such consent shaiJ not be uoreasonably 
withbcld The Cl:btmetot !lblll not unreasooably withhold from the Owner or a separate cootractor the Contrackl"s 
COI1Bebt to cutting (J' othriWise altaiog the w <d. 

§ 3.1$:CLEANING UP 
§ 3.15.1 'the Cm~ shall keep the premises and SUIJ'OWidjng area free from accumulaticm of waste materials or 
rubbish caUsed by operations lUld« the Cootract. At completion of the Work, the Contracta sballrcrncm waste 
~. rubbish, the Contractor's tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials ftom and about 
the Project 

§ 3.15.2 If the Cantractor f8ils to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Ownec may do so and Owner 
shall be entitled to rcimburllmlcnt ftom the Cootmctor. 

§ 3.16ACCESS TO WORK 
The Contractor shall provide the Owneoz and Architect access to the Wmk in preparatim and progress wherever 
located. 

§ 3.17 ROYALnES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS 
The Contractor sbal1 pay all royalties and license files. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims fur infringement of 
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owntz and Architect hlnnless ftom.loss on account 1ha-co~ but man 
not be respcmible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particu1ar manufactura" or 
IJl8llU1ilcture is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings, 
Specifications or othcl' documents prepared by the Owner cr Architect However, if the Coo.tractor has reason to 
believe that the required design, process or product is an infringement of a copyright or a pettnt, the Cmtrackr shall 
be respmsible far such loss unless such informaticm is pr'Oiq)11y fiunish.ed to the Architect 

§ 3.111NDEMNIFICATION 
§ 3.11.1 To the fullest Cltfent pennittecl by law the Contract« shall indemnify and bold harmless the Owner, Architect, 
Architect's coosultants, and agmts and employees of any of than fi'mn and against claims, damages, losses and 
expcrases, including but not limited to attorneys• fees, arising out of or resulting fi'om pc:rfmnance of the Wock, 
provided that such claim, damage. loss or expense is at1ributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to 
injury to or destructim of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the Cltfent caused by the~ptt 
-acts « omissioos of the Contractor, a Subcont:ract«, myme directly or indirectly employed by them <r myone for 
whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a 

AlA Doc-nt AZ01 .. -1007. Copylfgll\0 11111, 1i15,11118, 11125,1937, 11161, 1115&, 191S1, 11163, 1118S, 1870, 11178, 11167, 19117 and 2007 byTheArnericen 
lnalltutll of~-Allltghts ,...rvetl. WARNING: This AJA• Doann.nt Is p10techd by U.S. Cop~rlghl Law and lnterNtlon .. TrNtles. Un•ulhortzecl 16 
rap10ductlon or dllbltlutlon of thla NA• Document, or lillY pllftlon of n, may r.uH In s.vara c:lvH and crtlnlnal paNitlea, and wUI be pn~~ecuted Jo the 
maximum utlnt poalbla under the law. This document wae produced by AJA .ottware at 15:511:38 on 0512812013 under Ordllr No.53e00110163_1 which uplra 
on 1011812013, 1nd Is not for I'MIIIe. 
UMrNoe.: (2050324577) 

"'':t 
0\ 



lnlt. 

party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation Rhall not be constJucd to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 
obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or penon described in this Section 3 .18. 

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or crtity indemnified unda- this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractcr, 
a SubContractor, myone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the 
indt.maificatioo obligation unda- Section 3.18.1 sbaD not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
COlJ\pensatim or benefits payable by or for the Comractcr or a Subcontractor under worms' compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts or otha- cmplO)'eC benefit acts. 

ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT 
§ 4.1GEN~L 
§ .4.1.1 'Ib.e ~ shall retain 111 architect lawfblly licensed to practice architecture or an entity lawfully practicing 
arcllitecture in the jUrisc:liction wher-e the Project is located. That pcnoo or entity is identified as the Architect in 1bc 
Agreement and is rem.,d to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in munbcr. 

§ C~ 1.2 DutiCs, responsibilities and limitatioos of authority of the .Architect as set forth in the Cootract.Documcnts shall 
not be reStricted,~~ cr. extended without written coosart of the Owner, Contractor and Architect. Coosent &ball 
not be uoreasonably withhdd 

§ 4..1.3 If the e!J!PlO)'Jilebt Qfthe Architect is terminated, the Owner shall employ a successor architect as to whom the 
colrtr.ctar his no~e objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect. 

§ 4.2 ADMlM.STRAliON Of THE CONTRACT 
§ 4.2.111ie ArChitect win P.'Q\idc administraticm. of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be 
an Qwner' s reJ)tescnt8ti~ dUring construction until the date the .Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment The 
Aldiitcict wi1l have •uthority to act on beba1f of the Owner only to the ex.tmt provided in the Contract Documents. 

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intcnals appropriate to the stage of coostruction, or as otherwise agreed with 
the Ownc;r, to become~ fiuniliar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to 
~in gmc:nl if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, wbm fully 
c:cmPit:ted. will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to make 
exhaustive or cootinqous on-site in4pections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Arclritcct wiD not have 
contrOl over, cb8rge ot; or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or 
for the safety precauti.cm and progtams in CODDCCtioo wi1h theW crk, since these arc solely the C011tractcr's rights and 
responsibilities under the Comraet Documents, except as provided in SC(!tion 3.3 .1. 

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably .infonncd about the progress and 
quality of the portion of the Work comPleted, and report to the Own« (1) known deviatims fi:om the Contnct 
Documents and from the most ~t construction schedule submitted by the Ccntractor, and (2) defects and 
deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Cantractcr's fidhR to pcrl'orm the 
Work in accordance with the requirements of the Cootract Documents. The Arcbitect will not have control over or 
charge of and will not be responsible fur acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other pc:rsons or entities perfurming portions of the Work. 

§ 4.2.4COIIIIUNICATIONS FACJUTAnNG CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
Except as otherwise p-ovidcd in the Contract Documents or when direct commwications have been specially 
autb«izcd, the Owner and Contract« sball endeavor to corrnmm;catc with each other through the .Architect about 
matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Commwications by and with the Architect's consultants shall be 
1hrougb the Architect Cnmtmm;cations by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers sball be through the 
Con~tor. Cnmmunicatims by and with separate contractors sba1l be through the Own«. 

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect's evaluations of the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Architect wil1 review 
and certify the amounts due the Cootractor and will issue Certificates fur Payment in such amounts. 

§ 4.2.1 The AfehiteR Arrbitcct. with Owner's IIJP'OYil has authority to rtJcct Work that does not coofunn to the 
Contract Documents. Whenever the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to 
require inspection or testing of the Wmk in accordance with Sections 13.S.2 and 13.SJ, whether or not such Wo:k is 

AlA Document A101,. -1107. Copyright 011111, 11115, 11118, 1925. 11137, 1951, 1958, 11161, 11163, 11188, 11170, 11178, 1987, 1997 and 2007 byThl Amel1can 
lnstltutl of ArcNt8cta. All rlghla .... tved. WARNING: Tt!ls AIA8 Documant II prot.c:tecl by U.S. Copyright Law and lntemltlonal T,.ltiH. Unauthorfnd 17 
,.prac~uc:tton or distribution of tiM #Uo.• Document, or .ny portion of It, _,. ,.lUll In .... ,. civil and crlmiMI ~18s, Mel will bt praae.:uted to the 
mulmum eatent pOHib18 und•r the 18w. Thla document- producad by AlA ~ra at 15:9:38 on 05128120131.fldar Order No.531100110183_ 1 which .-phi 
on 10111112013, 8fld 11 not for resale. 
Uur HeMs: (2050324577) 

If) 
0\ 



lnlt. 

fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith 
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall Jive rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the 
Cmtractor, Subcmtractors, material and equipncnt suppliers, their agents or empl())US, or other persons or entities 
perforlliiog porti<ms of the Work. 

§ 4.2.7 The Ardtitect will review and approve, or take othEr appropriate action upcm, the Contractor's submittals such 
as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but ooly for the limited purpose of checking fir cooformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in 1be Contract Documents.. The Ardlitect's adion will be taken 
in accordance with the submittal schedule approwd by the Ardritect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
sdtedule, ~th r~O._pmnptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professicmal judgment to 
pmnit adcq~tc revicwj. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and 
compl~ of~ ~s such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or 
perfomumc~ of'cquipmmt or systems, all of which Rinain the responsibility of the Cmtractor as required by the 
Cmtract DcicumCII\tS. 'Th.e Architect's review of the Ctmtractor's submiUals shall not relieve the Ccmtnctor of the 
obllgati()JlS -~ Secti.(IJls 3;3, 3.S and 3.12. The Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safetyprecautians 
OJ', unless .othfcwisc sPecifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, mclhods, teclmiques, sequences or 
proc:cdmes. The Ardlitect;• app-oval of a specific item sba1l not indicate approval of 111 assembly of which the item is 
a~t -

§ 4-.~;llhc An'bitect wllJ._prq.re Change Orden and Construction Change Directives, and may authorize minor 
cban8ts in the·Work:as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make detaminatioos and 
rccoiilm.~ons (e~ ~cealed and unknown conditions as provided in Secticm 3.7.4. 

§ 4.2.91be Architect will coPduct inspcct.i.ons to detamine the date or dates of Substantial Completioo. and the date of 
final ~~~on; i~-C~cates of Substantial Completioo. pursuant to Secti.cm 9.8; receive and forward to the 
OwiJ.tr, fQr the OWner' !I reView and .rcc:ords, written wmanties and related documents required by the Coo11'8Ct and 
assi:mJbl~ by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.1 0; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section 
9.10. 

§ 4.2..10 If the Owner and Architect ap-ce, the An:hitect will provide one or more project tetneaentatives to assist in 
can:ying out ~e Architect' s respmsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and timi1atioo.s of autbcrity of such 
project teptesentatives sball be as set tDrtb in an exln'bit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents. 

§ 4.2.111hc Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning perfotmancc under, and requirements ~ the 
Conttact Documc:ms ori written request of either the Own« or Contrador. The Architect's response to such requests 
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reuonable promptness. 

I 4.2.12 lntaJ4etati.OOS and decisiOilB of the Architect will be oonsistalt with the intent~ and reasonably inferable 
ftom, the Cuitract DQGuments and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretati<llS and 
decisions, the Architect will endcavoc to secure faithtUl performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show 

partiality to eitlteE •• Will'aet lie lial!le fer Nll8lt8 ef-.,.etaiiBIII er lleeiai8Bil..,..._ ill &eM ildlt.eithq. 

§ 4ia.1a lite .¥eiHMet'a deeisi8B8 ea lll8lteFS Hletiag te aeadtelie eBeel will lie fiBel ife888istet witB 1he iBat 
tlllJH'IIIIII• ill the Ceaa.et :9wrets. 

§ 4.2.14 The Arcllitect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documc:nts. 'Ibe 
ArChitect's response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upoo or otherwise with 
reasooable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Spccificatioo.s 
in respoDBC to the requests foe infOrmation. 

ARncLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS 
I 5.1 DEFINinONS 
§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perfotm a portion of the 
Work at the site. The term "Subcontractor'' is referred to throughout the Ccmtract Documents as if singular in nmnbcr 
and means a Subcontractor oc an authorized representative of the Subcontractcr. The tam "Subccm.tractor' docs not 
include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor. 

IliA Document Al01,. -1001. Cop)YiglltC 11111, 1916, 1918, 1926, 11137, 11161, 111511, 1981, 1913. 11166, 1870, 11178, 19117, 11187 and 2007 by The Alller1can 
ln1111utie f1f An:Hiactl. Nl rig IllS rwervect. WARNING: Tllla AJAe Docuntent Is pro!Kted by U.S. Copyright L.w Md lntematlonal Tre.tlea. UniUthortr.ed 18 
,.production or dlatribullon of IIIla .. ,.e Docum8flt, or any portion of It, may IMUft In aav ... civil and criminal penalties, end will be p,_cuted to tile 
mulmum IICitnt po .. lble under tlla tsw. This document-• produced by AlA 1oftwllre at 16:58:38 on 0512112013111der Order No.5341001101113_1 which ~1'81 
on 1011812013, and 11 not for reaale. 
U.W N-.: (2050324577) 

\C 
~ 



lniL 

I 

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a penon or entity who has a direct or indirect coa1ract with a Subcontractor to perform 
a portim of the Work at the site. The term "Sub-subcontractor" is refined to throughout the Caltmct Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized rcpresenmtive of the Sui>-subcontractor. 

§ 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK 
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents or the bidding requiremrats, the Cmtmctor, as soon as 
ptacticable after award of the Contract, sbaJl fUmisb in writing to the Owner 1hrougb the Architect the names of 
pcr50DB or entities (including those who are to fumish mataials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed 
fur each principal portion of the Work. The Architect may reply within 14 days to the Contract« in writing stating (1) 
whether the Owner cr ttie Ardlitect has reasonable abjection to any such proposed pcnan cr entity or (2) that the 
Arcbitect requires additi.oaal time for review. Failure of the Owner or Architect to .reply within tbc 14-day period llball 
constitute I)Otice of no feumable objection. 

I 5.2.2 The Gontracto.r sba11 not con1ract with a p.roposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect bas made 
reasODable an4 tim.ely objection. The Contractor sball not be n:quired to contnlct witb anyone to whom the Contmctor 
hu made r$s~e objection. 

§ 5.2.31f1be Owner <r ~t bas reasonable objection to a person or ratity proposed by the Contractcr, the 
CoQ.~~ propo.o ~to whom the Owner <r Arcldtect bas no reasonable objection. If the proposed but 
rej~ S~ waa:reaaonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Tune sbai1 be 
~ ~ ~by1he ~if any, occasioned by such change, and 111 appropriate Oumge Order shall be 
issued betc.~ Cor,mlcncement .of the substitute Subcontractor's Work. However, no ioaease in the Caltract Sum cr 
C<)ncnu;t ::filne shall, be in~ for such change unless the Contractor bas acted promptly and responsively in 
su&litting DaJJ;les as requittd. 

§ 5J,41be Contractor .shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Owner or 
Aldntect makes ieaSooable Objection to such substitution. 

I U S(leeONTRACTUAL RElATIONS 
By apptopriate ~-written where legally required for validity, the Cantracta shall require each Subcontract<r, 
to die e:x.t.em of~~ W~to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractcr by terms of the Comract 
Doc:ummts, and to assume 1oward the Contract« all the obligatiOilB md respoosibilities. including the respaom'bility 
for safety of the Subcontractor's Work. which the Contractor, by these Documents, asswnes toward the Owner and 
Arcb.itcct. El!.ch subcontract agreement sball presc:rve and protect the ri&hts of the Owner and Architect under the 
Contract~ts with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting themnwill 
not prejudice such tights, aftd shall .Uow to the Subcontractor, UDless specifically provided otherwise in the 
subcontflct agreement, the benefit of all rights. remedies and redress apinst the Ccmtractm that the Contractcr, by the 
ConQct Po.cuments, has apinst the Owner. Where appropriate, the Cootrador shall require each Subcontractor to 
enter into similar agrcernc:ots with Sub-subcontractm. The Contractor sball make available to each propoeed 
Subcontractor, prior to the accution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the 
Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon writtm request of the Subcon1raetor, idmtify to the Subcon1nctor terms and 
conditions ofthe proposed subcontract agr=ment that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. 
Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective 
proposed Sub-subcontractml. 

§ 5.4 CONTlNGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS 
I 5.4.1 Each subcontract agrecmmt for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that 

.1 assignment is eft'ective only after tcrminatim of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to 
Secti.m 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner acc:epts by notifying the 
Subcontractor and Contractor in writing; and 

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract. 

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subc:ontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contract<r' s rights and 
obligations under the .subcontract. 

AJA Documlllt A101*-2007. Copyright 0 1911, 11115, 1918, 1925, 1837, 11151, 11158, 19111, 1983, 1968, 1970, 1178, 1887, 1187 and 2007 by The Amertcln 
lnlltaD of~. All r1gt1ta .... lYeii. WARNING: Thl5 AlA• Document~ prateded by U.S. CoPfllght L- llftd lntemlltlonal Trellllea. Un.uthorlnd 19 
reproducuon or dlstrtbuUon of thlil /IJA• Document, or any portion of It, may result In •"-clvlllftd crtml1111l penalties, and will be prosacuted lo the 
mulnlum utent poalllble under Uta law. Thl1doc:lmarrtwat prgcU:ad IIVAIA sottwa1a at 15:511:3eon 01512812013 uncwOnlerNo.5380090183_1 which uplnll 
on 1011812013, and Ia notfor re~ale. 
U..r Not.: (2050324577) 

r--
0\ 



lnlt. 

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for mere than 30 days, the Subcontractor's 
compensation sball be cqui1ably adjusted for incnasea in cost resulting fnm the suspension. 

§ 5.4.3 Upon such assipncnt to the Owner wdcr dlis Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a 
successor conU'actor or Olher entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contracta or other cntity, the 
Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the sU<X:CSsOI' contractor's obligations under the 
subcontract 

,AftTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
§·. 6.1 OWN~'S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS 
I 8.1.1 The Owner~ thcrighttoperform c:cnstructioo 01' operations related totheProjec:t with the Owner's own 
fcrces, and to Award ic:pandc contract~~ in connection with other porti0011 of the Project or other c:aostruction or 
operaticm em ~e site ~d#r Conditiona of the Contract identical or substantially similar to these including tbose 
porlims rcJatc!i·to ~ce and waiw:r of subrogation. If the Contractor claims 1bat delay or additional cost is 
involved because of~ ~on by the Owner, the Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article IS. 

§ 1.1 . .2 When ~te ~arc awarded fur di11i:rent porti.ms of the Project or other cc:mtruc1ion or operations m 
the si~· the tenD."~' in the Cantract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each 
sq»,uB.te QWn~ .. ~·Agrecmmt 

§ &.U. The Owner shall·pr.ovide for coordination of the activities ofthe Owner•s own forces and of each separate 
~with~ WOrk·oftttCC.::mtractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contract« shall participate with other 
~con~ and the;Q.wner in reviewing their construction sdledules. The Contractor shall make any revisions 
to ·the conStruction· scbcchJle ®cmecl necessa.ry after a joint review and mutual agreement The constructim schedules 
sh.U.1ht,n conBfiMe the.!ldlCdules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors md the Owna-until subsequently 
revified. 

§ -~~UlJnl~ otherwise .p:ovided in the Contract Documc:a1s, when the OwnCI' performs cODBtruction or operatims 
related' to the Proj~ With the OwnCI'•s own forces, the Owner shall be deemed to be subject to the same obliga1ions 
and tO have the same rights that apply to the Contractor wder the Conditions of the Contract, including. without 
cxcl~g others, those •teet in Article 3, this Article 6 and Articles 10, 11 md 12. 

I &.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBIUTY 
§ t.2.1 .'fh.e Contractor sball affcrd the ~ and separate contractors reasooable apportunity b introduction and 
storage of their~ and equipment and performance of their activities, and sbal1 'COmlCCt and coordinate the 
Con1ractcr's construction md operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents. 

I 6.121fpart of the Cootrw:tor's Work depends fur proper execution or results upon construction or operatioos by the 
Owner or a sepamtc comractcr, the Qmtractor sball, prier to prnr«ding with that portion of the Work, promptly f'q)ort 

to the Architect appirent disaqtancies or defects in such otbt:r constructim 1bat would rcnda' it unsuitable for such 
proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that the 
Owner's or llq)Biate contractor's cmnplctcd 01' partially completed construction is fit and P'OJXI' to receive the 
eontracttt•s Wcrk, except as to defects not then reasonably discowrable. 

§ 6.2.3 The Conttactor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the OWner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor 
because of the Cmtract.or's ddays, improperly timed activities or defective constructi<n The OWner shall be 
responsible to the Contractor fur costs the Contractor incurs .~Qk~Lbccause of a separate contractor's delays, 
improperly timed activities, damap to the Work or defective construction. 

I 6.2.4 The Connct« shall prornpdy remedy cfamaae the Contrackr wrmgfully causes to completed or partially 
c:cmpleted construdion or to property of the Owner 01' separate contractcrs u provided in Section 10.2.5. 

§ 6.2.51he Owner and each separate contract« shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are 
described fur the Contractcr in Section 3.14. 

AIADocuiMntAIO'I•-1007. Copyrlghl011111,1815, 111111,11126,11137,1851,1858,11181,1913.19841, 11170,11178, 19117, 1911hnd2007byTheAmellcan 
lnstltula of Arc~. Nl rlgl* NM~. WARNING: Tl'lll AlA• Document '- protected by U.S. Copyright Lew •nd lntern•llon•l Tr .. uea. Unulhortud 20 
repr-oduction or c*trlbuUon of thla ~· Doculnent, or enr portion of It, mar JWUit In MY.,. clvH lnCI clfln!MI pendlh, end will be proHCutH to the 
mulmum extent poSIIble und" the lew. Tllll docUment wa1 procklclld by AlA IOtlware at 15:511:36 on11512812013 under Order No.531100801113_ 1 whk:tl uplm 
on 10111112013, and II not for 1'811111. 
U.er~ (20503Z4677) 

CIO 
~ 



lnll 

I 

§ 1.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP 
If a dispute arises among the Contractu, separate contractors and the Owntt as to the responsibility unda' their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free ftom waste materials and rubbish, the 
OWntt may clean up and the ~will allocate the cost among those responsible. 

ARTK:L~ 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ UGENERAL 
I 7.1.1 Olanges in the Work may be accomplished aftcc c:x.ecutim of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Ccmbact, by Change Ordtt, Coostnu:ti.m Change Din:ctive or order for a minor change in the Work, Bllbject to the 
limita1ions stated in Chis Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 

§ 7.1.2 ACMe Onb shall be based upon agreement amoog the Owntt, Contractor and Architect; a Cmstruction 
Change Dii'cetiw requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractcl:'; 
an ordtt for a minor Cb8nge in the Work may be issued by the Architect eleee:with, Owner agzproyal. 

§ 7.1.~ Chabges i;n tbeWark sba11 be performed undtt applicable provisions of the Contract Documents, and the 
Contl'act()r shall~ w:oqniy, unless othrzwise provided in the Change Order, Cmscruction Change Directive or 
otder for a minqr' clumgeiil the Work. 

§ r~ (;HAt«'~ ,ORD.~ 
§ 72.1 A~ OriS4t is a writttn instrument prepared by the Arddtect and signed by thc Owner, Contractor and 
Arcllitcct ~tbls th.eir"~upon all of the following: 

.1 the ~iA·1be Work; 

.2 TJie ~of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and 

.3 The Q.tCilt of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. 

§ 7.3 CONsTRUCT~ ·CHANG~ DIRECTIVES 
§ 1,U A ~on CblD,e Directive is a written ordtt prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and 
An:bitect, .~a chiDge in thc Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract 
Time, or both. Til~ Owria' may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating 1he Contract. ordtt cbangcs in 
the Work wi~ the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the Contract 
Sum and Contract Time~ adjusted accordingly. 

§ 7 .3.2 A Coostruction OwJae Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement an the tcnns of a Change 
Order. 

§ 7 .3.3 If the Cmstructi.on <ltange Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be 
based on one of the following methods: 

.1 Mutual acccp1lnCe of a lump smn properly itemized and Bllpported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; 

.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon; 

.3 Cost to be ddm:mincd in a mmna- agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
perccatage fee; or 

.4 As provided in Section 7.3. 7. 

§ 7 .3.4 H unit prices are stated in tbe Contract Documco.ts or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally 
cantmtplated are materially changed in a prqJOBCd Change Orda' or Constructi011 Change Directive so that 
application of such unit prices to quantities of Work propoecd will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or 
Contractor, fhe applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 7 .3.5 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directi~ the Contractor sball promptly proceed with the chaDge in the 
Work involved and advise the Architect of the Cmtractor's agreement or disagreement with the method, if my, 
provided in 1he Construction Olaoge Directive for detemrlning the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum cr 
Contract Time. 

~U. Document AZ01•- .,-. ~ o 1911, 1915. 11118, 1925. 1937, 1951, 195&, 111e1. 111e3, 11186, 1970, tm, 11187, 111117 and 2007 by The Amarlcan 
lrdiUta of Archltactll. All rfgflta ,...IWCI. WARNING: This AJA8 Document Ia prvtacted by U.S. Copyright LAw and lntam1Uon11 Ttwalln. Un1uthartnd 21 
NpraduC:tlan or distribution of tills AJA8 Document, or any poftton of It, ma1 result In -- civil and criminal p.naltln, and will tie praeecUbd to the 
mulmum atent passlb .. under the law. 11111 documantw.• pnlduced by AJA 101lwareat15:59:3tl an 05128f2013 under Ord.- No.5380090183_1 which upl,.. 
on t0118120t3,11nd Ia notfllfraa .... 
u.ar Not.: (2050324577) 

0'1 
0\ 



lnlt. 

I 7 .U A Cmstruction Olange Directive signed by tbe Contractor indicates the Comractor' s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Cmtmct Sum and Contract Time or the method for dctennining them. Sw:h agrt.emmt shall 
be e~ve immediatdy and shall be recorded as a Change Orcb-. 

§ 7.3. 71f the Contract« does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustmmt in the Cootmct Sum, 
the Architect shall detamine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reu~Xl&hle expenditures and savings of 

tho&c pc:rfmning the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amoant 
for overhead and profit as set forth in the Agrecmc:ot, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agrccmeot, a reasmable 
lllft8Y8t. amount M sfrtbpWedby the Ownq. In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep 

and present, in such frimi as the An:hitect may prescribe, an itemized accounting togedu:r with appropriate suppcrting 
d&ta. Unless othc:rwi(IC provided in the Con1ract Documents, oosts for the purposes of this Sec:tion 7.3.7 shall be 

limited to fhe full~ 
.1 Ccsts" of Jabor, including social security, old age and wc:mploymmt insurance, fiinge benefits required 

by ~cint or custom, snd wcrkers' compensation .insw1mce; 
.2 Costs ofinataials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 

-~ 

.3 RmU1 ~ ofJIUIChine~y and equipment, exclusive ofhaod tools, whether rented ftom the Contractor 
orotbcni; 

.4 Coati of pfemi\IJDII for all bonds and insurance, pennit fees, and sales, use or sUniJar 1axes related to the 
w~~ 

.5 Addhi.oUl CXl8tS of supervision and field office personnel dim:tly attributable to the change. 

I 7 ;3.8 The IUDOI.Dltof Credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net 
decrease in the Cd!itnwt SUblliball be actual net cost as coofinned by the Architect. When both additions md credits 
ooVl;'l#lg_ related W~k..qi-sqbjututicm are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured 
on the baSis of net increp~ if~. with respect to that change. 

§ 7.3..9.-Pending final delamination of the to1al cost of a Consbuction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor 
may request payment for Wed completed Ulldfr the Construction Change Directive in Applicatioos fur Paymcmt. The 
Archit.x:t will nuake an intt.rim detcrmillation b purpo!ICS of DlCI:dbly certification for payment for those oosts and 
certifyf9r pa~t the~ that the Arcbitcct detc:rmines, in the .Arc:hitect's probsionaljudgm~ to be 
reasonably justified. The Architect's interim detamination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum m the same basis as 
a Change Orcler, subject to the right (jf either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article IS. 

§ 7.3.10 When the Owiltz and Cmtractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the 
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise~ agrccmcnt upon the adjus1ments, such 
a~ sbal1 be effective immediately and the An:hitcct will pepare a Change Order. Chnge Orden may be 
issued for all er my part of a Constnid:ion Olange Directive. 

§ 7.4MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK 
The .Architect has authority to ordct minor changes in the Work not involving adjustment in 1he Contract Sum or 
extcnsi.m of the Contmct Time and not in.consistmt with the intent of the Contract Documents. Sudl changes will be 
effected by written order signed by the .Arcbitcct and shall be binding on tbe Owner and Contractor. Each change is 
subject to Owner approyal prior to implementation. 

ARTICLE 8 T1ME 
§ 8.1 DERNinONS 
§ 8.1.1 Unless otbcrwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in 
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work. 

§ 8.1.2 The date of COIIJIJlmCCIDCDt of the Work is the date established in the .Agrcemmt. 

§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8. 

§ 8.1.4 The tcnn "day" as used in the Cmtract Documents sbal1 mean cale:odar day unless otherwise specifically 
defined. 

AIADocUIMfttA201.,.-Z007,CDP)'flght01911,1915, 1918,192&,11137,1961,1958, 1981, 1983, 19118, 11f70, 11178, 1987, 1987and 2007 byTtw.AmiiJ1Cin 
1n111t111a of Archllacll. Nl I'll'* ,...rved, WMNING: Th,. AJA• Documant is prot.cted by U.S. Co"rlgllt Uw and lnttlrnatlonlll TfHllu. Un•utttorlnd 22 
~uctlon or distribution of thla NA• o-nt, 01' any portton of It, m~ -'l 1ft...,.,. cMIIftd crtmiNI pendles, and w1U be pRIHcuted to the 
mulmum ment poaalble under lite law. Thla documantwal produced by AIAIOftware at 15:68:38 on 05128/2013 under Order No.53fl00110183_1 which pPm 

on 1011812013, and Is not for l'lllale. 
UHr NotM: (2060324577) 

= = -



lnlt. 

§ 8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION 
S 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Cmtract Document& are of the essmoc of the Contract. By executing the Agreement 
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reuonable period for pcrlorming the Work. 

§ 8.2.2 The ContracQ shall not knowingly, except by agreement or iDstruction of the Owner in writing. prematurely 
c~cnoc operatims m the site or dsewhere prior to the c:ffcctive date of insunmce required by Article 11 to be 
fiunished by the Contractor and Owner. The date of commencement of the Work sball not be c:.hanscd by the effective 
date of such insurance. 

§ i.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion 
within the ~ct Time. 

§ 8.3 DEUYS AND EXfENSIONS OF TIME 
I J.3.1 lftbCCm~ is ddayai at anytime in the COIDDlCDCC.D1CD or progress of the Work by an act or neglect of 
tb,c 09mer Or A:robitect, ar of an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employai by the Owner; or by dwlgcs 
ordC2'c4 ~ the W.xk; or by ~ disputes, fire, wusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or othCl" causes 

beyon4 th~ ~cur's ~; or by delay authaized by the Owner pending mediation and arbitration; or by other 
caus¢8 ,that the ~teet determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for 
suc'h~b).ctime asdle ~may detaminc. . . 

§ 8:3;2 CW.OS relating to·titne iball be made in ac:cordance with applicable provisions of Article lS. 

§ .•. 3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages fur delay by either party under other provisions of the 
can1ract I>ocwnents. 

ARTICI:£ t PAYM~TS AND COMPLETION 
t u. cQNTRACT itJM 
The Cddract Slll1t is statedin·tbe Agreement and, including au1horizcd adjustments, ill the totallllllOUilt payable by the 
Owncr .. tQ the Cmtractor for pcrfurmance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 

§.t.2$CHEDULE OF VALUES 
Where the Cootracl: is blscd on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit to the 
.Ardntect, befui'e the first Application for Payment, a schedule of values allocating the entire Contract Sum to the 
various portions of the Wcrk and prepared in such form and !lllppOfUd by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the 
Arcbitect may require. 'Ibis schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, sba1l be used as a basis for reviewing the 
Contractor's Applicatioos filr Payment 

§ U~ICAnONS FOR PAYMENT 
§ 1.3.1 At least tt:n days before the date established for each progress pa}IIDCDt, the Cmtracb llball submit to the 
Architect an itemized Applicatioo ir Payment JRPared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under 
Section 9 .2, for complettd portions of the W o:rk. Sudl applicatim shall be notarized, if required, and supported by 
such da1a substantiating the Cootractor' s right to payment as the Owner or Architect may require, such as copies of 
requisitims from Subcontractors IDd material suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Cmtract 
Documents. 

§ 1.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applicatioos may include requests for payment on ac:count of changes in 
the Work that have been properly authorized by Cc:mtruction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Arc:bitect, but not yet included in Clumge Orden. 

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications filr Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
ContmctOr does not intmd to pay a Subcontractor cr material supplier, unless such Worlt bas been pcrionncd by others 
whom the Cmtractor intends to pay. 

§ U.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and 
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorp<ntion in the Work. If approwd in advance 
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for matr.rials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location 
agJCCd upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipmmt SURd on or off the site shall be c:mditicnd upm 

AIADocwMntAl01,.-IOG7,CQWWt01811,1916, 1818,1925.11137,1951,1958,1981,1983,11188,'1010,1971, 1987,1111J7and2007byTheAIMIIcan 
lnsiiiUIIa of AR:hllllctll. All rtghla _......WARNING: Thla AlA• Document Ia pratec:ted by U.S. Copyright L- and lntemaltonll TNIU ... Unautflol1z..t 23 
l'8pftlductlon Of' distribution of tflls AlAe Doc\lment, or IUIY pcHtlon of It, IIIQ NIUft In MY_,. civil encl criminal peNIIIes, Mel will be Jlf'OMeutecl to the 
mulmum m.nt posalbla unclarthalaw. This documentwa produced ~AlA IIOftwarelt 15:9:38 on 0512812013 under Order No.531100901113_1 which u;~lrM 
oo1011812013, and 11 not for 1"8111e. 
User Nalw: (2050324677) 

"""" = """" 



lnlt. 

compliance by the Contractor with "procedures satisfac:torytothe Owner to establish the0wnCI''s title to suc.bmataials 
and eq~pmc:nt or <Xherwise prWlct the Owner's interest, and shalJ include the costs of applicable insurance, storage 
and tnmsportation to the site fir such matc:rials and equipment stored off the site. 

§ 9.3;3 The Contract<r wammts that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no 
lattc than the time of payme:nt. The Contractor further wanants that upon BUbmittal of an Applicatioo for Payme:nt all 
Wotk fur which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payme:nts received from the Owner sball, to 
the 'best of the Contrac:Ur's knowledge., informatioo and belief, be free and clear oflie:ns, claims, security interests tr 
CDC.Umbnmces in mvor of the Contracta', Subc:ontzactorl, material suppliers, or ather pc:rsms or entities making a 
claim by reason ofba~ provided labor, materials and cquipme:nt relating to the Work. 

I t.4CERT1FicATES'fOR PAYMENT 
5 ·9.4..1 The Architect Will, within seven days after receipt of the Cootrac:ta's Application for Payme:nt, either issue to 
the Owner a Certifi¢c ret J»tyment, with a copy to the Contractor, fur such amount as the Architect determines is 
properly due, ocnotily'lhe c;imtractor and Owner in writing of the Architect's reasms for withholding certification in 
whole or~ put-. provided in Section 9.5.1 . 

§ 1.4:2 The i~ of.a CCrdficatc for Payme:nt will constitute a representation by the .ArclUtect to the Owner, based 
on die Ardti~'-~evaluatim of the Work and the data comprising the Applicatim for Payme:nt, that, to the best of the 
Arihitect's mCWIIedp, idbmation. and beJiet: the Work bas progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of 
1fje·WQik u·m ~e witlqhe Contract Doc:uments. The foregoing rtpiestntatians are subject to an evaluation of 
·tbe. Work~~ ~ . .the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subseque:nt tests 
and ~ans, tO_~OQ Of minor deviations ftom the Contract Documents pior to completion and to specific 
qualijicatiOils ~sed~ ,tfte Architect. The issuance of a Certificate for Payme:nt will further constitute a 
tqxoi\Cfirtatie«i.#l&t tht"~ is mtitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance of a Certificate 
frr~tWillnQtbetrepr~tation that 1he Architect has (l)made exhaustive or continuous on·siteinspections to 
chc=ck tM. quality or ~~ of the Work, (2} reviewed cons1ruction means, methods, teclmiquel!, sequences or 
~ (3)rMewed e:opj~ of requisitioos received from Subcontractors and material suppliers 8lld other data 
requested by. the Owner to substaotiate the Ccntrac:tor' s right to payment, ~ ( 4) made examinatim to ascertain how or 
for What purpose the C<mtnctm' bas used mooey pn:viooaly paid 011 aa:ount of the Contract Sum. 

§ U DECISION$ TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION 
I 9.5.1 The Arctiitectmay withhold a CCz:tificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the exte:nt reasonably necessary to 
protect 11_le Owner, if in the~~~ Opini<n the tqaesc:ntatims to the Owner required by Sectim 9.4.2 cannot be 
made. If the ArclUtect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the ApplicatiOD, the Architect will notify the 
~and OWnCr u provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised ammmt, 
fhe ~teet will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment fur the amount for which the Architect is able to make such 
represaifations to the Owncr .. 'lbe Atdiitect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently 
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Catificate for Payma1t previously issued, to such extcot as 
may be necessary in the Architect's opinim to protect the Owner fhxn loss for whidl the Cmtractor is responst"ble., 
including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of 

.1 defeQtive Work not remedi~ 

.2 third party claims filed cr rcuanable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security 
acceptable to the OWner is provided by the Conttactor; 

.3 &ilure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, mattcials or 
cquipplent; 

.4 reasonable evidence that theW o.rk cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum; 

.5 damage to the Owner or a sepuate cootractor; 

.6 reasooable evidence tbat the Work wiD not be complctcd within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual ar liquidated damages for the 8llticipated delay; or 

.7 repeated failure to cany out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.5.2 Whcu the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld. 

§ 1.5.3 If the Arclritect withholds celtificatim for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Ownc:r may, at its sole optioo. 
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractm or material or equipment supplim to whom the 

IIlJA Docun1ent A201,. -2007. CqlyrlglltO 1911,1915,1918, 1826, 1837, 11151, 1958, 1981, 11183,19116,1970,1871,1987, 1997 lnd 2007 by The Amer1c1n 
IMIIIutia of An:hlt.c1s. All rlfhlil .... ,.... WARNING: Tills A.IA• Document .. protlcted by U.S. Copyright Lew 1nd lntlmltlonal Tl'llll ... Unmhorlud 24 
..-production or dlstrtbutlon of this IIlJA• Doeumeftt, or eny poltlon of It, may rwutt In-- c:lvllsnd Cltmlnal ,.nllltlu, net will be p-uted to the 
mulmum utent poealble under the lew. Thll docUment wu produced by AlA softwma It 15:59:38 on 05f2&120131n111' Order No.5360090183_1 which DplrM 
on 1011812013, 111111 Is not for 11111le. 
Uler NOIM: (2050324577) 

M 
Q -



lntt. 

Cootractor failed to make paymcnt for Work properly perfurmed or matr.rial or equipment suitably delivered. If the 
Owner makes payments by joint cbeck, the Owner sbaU notify the Arcbitcct and the Architect will rcftect such 
paymeat on the next Certificate far Payment. 

§ 9,1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
§ 1.8.1 Aftt.t the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, and upm smrovaJ o{the Certificate ofhymmt by the 
_Qw,pg. the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within the time provided in 1hc Cm1ract Documents, and 
shall so notify the Architect. 

§ 9.8.2 The Cmtractor ~pay each Subcontractor no later than seven days efta' receipt of payment ftom the Owner 
the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, rcftecting percentages actually retained ftom payments to the 
Cmtractor ~ ~t-Of ... e Subcontractor's portion of the Wcrk. The CODtractor shall, by appropriate agrcemc:nt 
with each Subcontractat, require each Subcon1ract« to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ . 8.8.3 Tlie A,rchitcct will, on rc:qucst, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, infonnation regarding pcrceotages of 
COGlplction or amounbi applied for by the Contractor and action taken thcm>n by the Ardlitect and Owner m account 
ofporti«*lS of the \Vmk dOne by such Subcontractor. 

§ f,IA Tbe ow,:mt has the rlP.t to request writtc:n evidence ftom the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid 
SUbcomractorsll!ld m~8J and equipment suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the COlltractor for subcontracted 
W()jt. If the C~fAits to tumish such evidence within seven days, the Owna- abaiJ. have the right to contact 
~to~ ~er they have been properly paid Neither the Owner nor Architect shall ha'VC an 
obliptitli to pay or to see to tb" payment of money to a Subcontnactor, except as may otherwise be required by law. 

§ 9.6~5 .Contractot payments to material and equipment supplicn shall be treated in a manner similar to tbat provided 
in Sections 9.6.2, 9,6.3 and 9.6.4. 

§ 1.8;6 A Certificate for Payment, a JrogttSS payment, cr partial or entin: use or occupancy of the Project by the 
~ sbiJl not consti~ acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Ccntntct Documents. 

I !t;6.7 Unless the Contractoc provides the Owner with a paymmt band in the fUll peoal sum of the Cmtntct Sum, 
payments ~'VCd by die COntractor for Worlc. properly performed by Subcontractors and suppliers sball be held by 
the Contractor ·tor thO!Ie Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished Dllltc2ia1s, or both, under 
contract with the Contractor for whi~ payment was made by the Owna-. Nothiog contained herein shall require 
money to be plat:ed in a separate ~t and not commingled with money of the Cmtractor, shall create any fiduciary 
liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust or shall mtitle any person cr mtityto an award 
of punitive damages apjnst the Cootractor for breach of the .requircmcDts of this provision. 

§ 9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT 
H the Architect does not issue a Crificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within 8CM&-A&m,days 
efta' receipt of the Contracta's ApplicatiOll for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within WYa 

Jb!m_days after the date established in the Contract Docmnents the amount catified by the Architect or awarded by 
biDding dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days' written notice to the Owna- and 
Architect, stop theW ork 1mtil payment of the amount owing has been received. 1be G8llt'tleet 1'illle +d1 \te ateaded 
.. ,. •• ~-.. c~ .. nb11

- iaefaaslll "Y the IIB81m:t ef4he CMtfalller'neatiBMWe 881148 ef 
aJmt IleaNa, .Way llllCI Ni't "tip, phJe iBWIIIlM JII'8YicW fer ill the C•tl'let 9eeaaeete. 

§ 1.1 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
§ 9.1.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work whm the Work or designated portion thereof is 
sufficicotly complete in accordance with the Cootnlct Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work fer 
its intcudcd use. 

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considcn that the W ark, or a portion thereof which the Owna- agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehcmive list of 
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractcr to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

AJA DocUMIIIIt All1111 - 2017. C~ 01811, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1981, 11183, 1868,1870, 1978, 111&7, 1987 anct 2007 by The American 
lnslltutl of Ardlllacts. All ltghla ,_.lftd, WARNING: Tllll AIA1 DocLIIHnt Is proBctld by U.S. Copyright L-1nd lntem.Uonll TrutiH. lhl1uthortPcl 25 
reproduction or dlltrlbutlon of this NA1 Document, or •ny portion of lt. m1y ..-It In,.,.,. avn 1nd cltmll'lll peM!IIH, and will bt proeecut.d to tht 
malmllllllldilnt .,_ ... unclef the •· Thla ~-produced by AlA IOftwlre at 15:58:38 on 0512812013 under Onllr No.53e0090183_1 which aplret 
on 1011812013, •l'ld Is not for reule. 
U..r N-.: (2050D4677) 

I 

I 
I 

\ 
I 

i ' 

~ 

= ... 



I nit. 

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor's list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whetbrr- the Work 'X" 
desiptcd portioo thereof is substantially complete. If 1he Ardlitect' s inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included an the Contrac:ta's list, whidl is not sufficiently complete in 8CQO!'dance with the Contract Documents so 
that the Owner can occupy or utilize theW ork or designated porticm thei'Cof for its iuta1ded uae, the Contmctor shaU, 
beb'e issuance of the Certificate of Substantial COOipletim, complete or correct such item upon notificatioo by the 
Arehitcct. In such case, the Contracta-shall then submi~ a request for anothrr- inspection by the Architect to determine 
Substantial Completion. . 

S 9.1.4 When the Work. or desigoatcd portion thcnof ia substantially compl~ tbc Architect will JII'CPIIfC a Certificate 
of Substantial Compld:j.on that sbaU establish the date of Substantial Completioo, shall establish respcmibilities of 1bc 
Owner and Ctmtractorfot !ICQII'ity, maimaumce, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and iDsurmcc, and shall fix the 
tinJc within which the COI;ltiactor shall finish all ittms em. the list accompanying the Ctrtificate. Wmantics required by 
the Contract. DOcuments sbalJ commence on the date of Substudial Completion of the Work or desipatcd portion 
thcreofwiltsS otherwise provided in the Certificate of SubstantW Completion. 

§. U.5 'the certm~t.C of~ Completioo shall be submitted to the Owner and Con1ractcr for their written 
~ce of l'eSp9risihllities assigned to tbem in such Cc:rtiticate. Upon such acceptance and consmt of surety, if any, 
the Ow:P.a-.shall mue pa~t ofretainage applying to such Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment sball 
be-adjUSted for Work ~t i! mcomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

f .e.I·~AimAL. occUPAtfcv OR use 
§~ t;~.11b,t0wnti mayo~ or usc my completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
~~C., is dtliigufe4 ~separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or usc is consented to 
b)" the ibsQrer II..S ·~u¥« Section 11.3.1.5 IIDd authorized by public authmties having jurisdiction over the 
Proj~:· 'Sucli ~ ·OCCilPaacy or use may c:ommcnce whether or not the portion ia substantially c:omplete, provided 
the OVmc:r a,Dd Con~ haw 8CCq)ted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them fir pa~, 
retain · it · _.......;.., ~ heat, utilities dama to the Work and· 8lld have .----tin -w.;..., •Jet any, ....--u.1l . , ., . CC, t ge msurmce, "6'--- -u""""" 
~the· period fcC ~oo of the Work and cmunencement of warranties required by the Contract 
~ts. Whtn the Cclil1J'id,ar cmsiders a portion substantially compl~ the Contnctor shall prepare and submit 
a list tQ the Ardiitcct u provided under Secticm. 9.8.2. Consent of the Cmt:mct« to partial occupancy m usc shall not 
be unreQon&biy withheld The stage of the progress of the Work shall be cletcrmined by written agreement between 
the Owner and Contractor '¥', if no agreement ia reached, by decision of the Architect. 

§ 9.9.21mmediatcly pri« to such partial occupancy or usc, the Owner, Contractor and Architect shall jointly inspect 
the area to be OC4l1JPied or portion of the W ark to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or usc of a portion or portions of the Work. shall not oonstitutc 
~e ofWork not complyiDg with the rcquiremc:nts of the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.10 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT 
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt oftbeContractor'swrittm noCicethattbe Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and 
upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspectioo and, when the 
Architect finds the Worlt acceptable under' the Cantract Documents and the Contract fi.Jlly pcrfurmed, the Architect 
will Jlfomptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect's knowledge, informatioo 
and bcli~ and m the basis ofthe.Ardlitect's Cll·site visits and inspectioos, the Work has been e<mpleted in 
accordance with terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance foond to be due the 
Contractm' and need in the final Ca:tificate is due and payable. The Ardlitect's final Certificate fur Payment will 
constitute a further rcprcsa1tatico that cooditions listed in Sectioo 9.1 0.2 as Jlfeccdall to the Cmtractor's being 
entitled to final payment haw been ful1illed. 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment n« any remaining retained percentage shall became due until the Contractor submits to 
the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness conncctcd with 
the Work. fur which the Owner or the Owner's property might be responsible or encumbered (less ammmts withheld 
by Ownec) haw been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract 
Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed to expire 
until at least 30 days' prior written notice has been given to the Owner, (3) a written statement that the Contractor 
knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract 

AIADocu.llllAl01.,. -JOCI7. Copyrlgh\C1t11, 1915, 1918, 1925,1937, 1861, 1958,11161,1983,1988,11170,1976,1987,1907 and2007 byThtAmerlctn 
lndtul8 of M:lllllllcll. All ltfht8 n1MIV8CI. WARNING: This AJA• Document II protected by U.S. COpyrtght L-and lnterutlonal TIMliN. Un.uthortud 28 
,.production or diMrtbutlon of lhll AJA• Document, or any portion of It, m.y ruult In sw- clvD and crtmiNII pen•ltlls,lllld will be pros•cut.d to lh• 
mulniUIII utent possible IIIICMrthe .... Thlldoc:urnert- produced by AlA 101\WII'U t 15:li8:36on06128/2013 under OnllrNo.538001101&3_1 whlchQpiru 
on 11111 B/2013, and 11 not tor male. 
Ulllf NGtas: (2050324677) 

"!!' 
Q -



lnlt. 

Documents, (4) consc:nt of surety, if any, to final payment and (5), if required by the Owner, other data establishing 
payment or satisfilction of obliptions, such as rcc:eipts, releases and waivers of licm, claims, security interests or 
~ arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such farm as may be designated by the Owner. If a 
Subcotta-a.ctor refuses to filmish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may fbmish a bond 
satiifilctory to the Owner to indemnify the ~against such lien. If such lim rcmainB unsatisfied after pa)'IDC:O.ts arc 
made, the Cmtractor shall refUnd to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging such 
lien, including all costs and reasonable attcrneys' fees. 

I 9.10.31( after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fiwlt 
of the Contr~ or by issuance of Change Onbs a1fecting final camplc:tim, and the Architect 10 CODfirms, the 
Owner sha1J. -ypon IPPU~oo by the Cootractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the 
ContrW, ~paymcirt.Qfthe balance due fortbat portioo. of the Work fUlly completed andac:ceptecl. If the remaining 
&itance fot WoFk n~ ~y completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract Docummts, aod if 
bOnds have been fnnrishtoid, the written c:onsent of surety to payment of the balance due for tbat portion of the W ark 
fUlly compl~ ind aqC¢pted·shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to certification of such 
payment Svclt ~t sbail be nwle under terms and conditions govaning final payment, except that it shall not 
CODBtitute a Waiver -~ claims. 

I 9.10.4·The IDiikjng of fiDAd ·payment sball ccmtitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from 
.1 liens, CJAiiJui; security intc:rests or cacumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsc:ulcd; 
.2 fail~ Of the· Wriik to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; or 
.3 ~:of special :wmanties required by the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.10.5 ~ce offiiJ.al.P•ymcnt by the Contractor, a Subcontractor or material supplier tlball constitute a waiver 
of ctailns by-tb8ipayce ct~ those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as UlllleUlcd at the time of 
final APPlicatioo. tb: .,._~ 

Atrr!Ci£ 10 IIROTECTJQN, OF PERSONS AND PROPERtY 
§ 1U W6TY P~CAtiTJOlls AND PROGRAMS 
The Conttactor ~ be i'espODBible for initiating. maintainiDg and supavising all safety precautions and programs in 
c:oo.n~011 with the~ of the Contract 

§ 10.2 SAFETY OF PfltSONS ANI). PROPERTY 
§ 10.2.1-ne Contractor sball1ake i"casonable prccautioo.s for safety o( and shall provide reasonable protection to 
prevent damage, WurY or loss to 

.1 employees on the Work and other pCI'SODB who may be affected thereby; 

.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorpomted therein, whether in storage on or oft' the site, 
under care, custody cr.COiltrol of the Cmtrad.or or the Contractor's Subcomract<n or 
S~subcon~; llld 

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, sucll as trees, sluubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
stnlctures and utilities not designated for ranoval, relocation or replacement in the course of 
construction. 

§ 10~21he Cco.tractor shall oomply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulatiODB, and lawtW. orders of public authorities bearing on safety of persons or property or their 
protectioo. from damage, injwy or 1088. 

§ 10.2.3 The Cmtraetor shall erect and maintain, u required by existing c:onditioo.s and pc:rfurmance of the Contract, 
reasonable safcguanls for safety and ~on, including posting daDger signs and other warnings against hazards, 
promulgating llllfety rcgulatiQDS and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities. 

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosivcs or other bazardous materials or equipmcnt or unUBUal mechods arc 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor sball exercise utmost care and cmy on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel. 

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property 
insurance required by the CmtractDocuments) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in 

AIADo&:u!MntA201,.-1007. Cop)'l'lgtt~ 1811,1!116,181&, 11125, 1837,1851, 1858,1861,1863, 1H6,1870, 1876, 1887, 18871rd2007byTheAmarlclln 
1n1t1tu11t of An:hltllc:ts. All lights rMe!Ved. WARNING: Ttlle AJA• Document .. protaQIII by U.S. Copyright Law and International Trutln. Unaulllor!Hd 27 
.. productiOn or dlalrtbutlon of this AlA• Document. or any portion of It, miiJ raaullln .., ... c:Mianct criminal pe11111tln, and 11111n ba p,_cullad to llle 
maxlm11111 UIMit posalbla under the t.w. This doc:ulnent- J)IOduCad by AlA~ at 15:58:38 on 0512812013 underOnler No.S3600110163_1 wt*=h tii!PIIu 
on 1011812013,111111 Ia not for ruala. 
U..r Notw: (206032A577) 

ll) 
c .. 



lnlt. 

whole or in part by the Cmtractclr, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or incUrectly employed by 
any of them, <r by anyone for whose acta they may be liable and for whidl the Coonctor is respoDSl'ble under Sections 
10.2.1~ and 10.2.1.3, except damage or Joss attributable to acts or omisaioos of the Owner or Architect or anyone 
diitct1y or indirectly employed by either of them. or by anyone for whCllle acts either of them may be liable, and not 
attributable to the fiwlt or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligatims of the Contractor are in addition to 
th~ C!)Jltraca's obligations under Section 3.18. 

§1G.2.6 The Contract(r shaD designate a responsible member of the Cootractor's organization at the site whose duty 
shall be the preventioo of accidents. This person shall be the Contraaor's superintaldalt \Ulless otherwise designated 
by the Conb'aetor in Writin.g to the Owner and Architect. 

§ 10.2.7 The Contraqtor shall not pamit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
crute an UI1Silfe ·ccmditi!lD. 

§ 10.2.1 ,INJU~ OR: DAMAGE TO PERSON OR PROPERTY 
I( Qthca:,~ ~ ]njmy or .damage to person <r property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of 
others tor whose.acfB such par1:y is legally responsible, written notice of such injury or damage, whedlc:r or not insured, 
sbal1 ~ ~Ym tp .tb¢ other plitY within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall 
provide.'~cUint detail to alable the oth« party to investigate the JDBtter. 

§10•~ HAZARJ;)OU$ :tfATEIUALS 
§ :io.~.11be·.c~~1il ~'ble for compliance with any requiranents included in the Contract Documc:ots 
~·~·tna~.: Jfthe Contractor c:ocountcn a bazanfous material or substance not addressed in the 
Contract 'oocmn,ents andifreuoo.ble precautioos will be iDadequate to prevent fm:seeable bodily injury or death to 
~ resultina from ·Jj mattrial or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polyclllmnated biphenyl 
(PClt);enCOUI1terei.o.n'tbe sit.; by the Comractor, the Contractor sh.a11. upon recognizing the condition, immediately 
stop Work ih the affected arc:a and report the condition to the Owner and Architect in writing. 

§ 1.0.3.2 Upon receipt of1hc Contractor's written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to 
'YCl'i1Y the pre!!CDCe QC Jbsence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or 
subati;Q.c;e is ~ w be~ to cause it to be renda'ed hamless. Unless otherwise RqUinxl by the Contract 
DocUments, the QWnt¥ shall. fimlish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualificatiODB of persms 
or entities who ·we to pmform tests verifYing the presence or absence of such matr:rial or substance or who are to 
pc:rfurm the task of removal or sak c;o,ntaimnc:nt of such material or substance. The Cmtr:actor and the Architect will 
promptly reply to 1he Ow.ncr in writing stating whether or not either bas reasmable objection to the p~ons or entities 
proJJOIICi1 bY ~e Owner. If either the Cootractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the 
Owner, the Ownti shall proppse ~to whom the Cmtractor and the Architect have no reasmable objecti.oo. 
Wheo the material or ~ce has been rc:oderecl hannless, Work in the affected area sball resume upon written 
agr-eement of the Owner and Cmtr1u:tor. By Change Clrdcc, dlC Contract Time sball be extended appropriately and the 
Con~ Sum shall be increased in the amount of the Cootractor's reasonable additianal costs of shut-down, delay and 
start-up. 

§ 10.3.3 To the tu.Itest extent pci'Dlittcd by law, the Owner shall jndennrify and bold harmless the Contractor, 
Subcontractors. Architect, Architect's consultants and agarts and employees of any of than ftcm and against claims, 
damages, losses and axpeDIICIII, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting fiom 
pcrfonnance of the Work in the aJrected area if in filet the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injmy or 
death as deseribed in Secticm 10.3.1 and has not been rendered hannless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or 
expense is auributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destructioo of tangible property 
(other tban the Work itself), except to the extc:ot tbat such damage, loss or expense is due to the fiwlt or negligence of 
the party seeking indemn;ty. 

§ 1U.4 The Owner shall not be responsible lUldc:r this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Contmctor brings 
to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documr:ots. The Owner shall be responsible 
for materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the cxtaJt of the Cmtractcr's fiwlt cr 
negligmce in the use and handling of such materials or subl1ances. 

AlA~ Aft1'N-zt07. COpyrlght01911,11115,1918, 1825,1937,11151,11158, 1961,1983, 1He,1970, 11178,11187, 19117 •nd 21'107 byTt.Amertc:.n 
lns11tu18 of Alchitlctl. All rlghll rwtiYH. WARNING: Thll AlA• Document .. pratKted by U.S. Copyrtgllt Uw IIIII lntei'NitlDIIIII T,_tiH. UneulhDIIncl 28 
repraductlcln or dlstrtbutJon of th .. AlA• DDcUIMnt, Dr eny portiDn of tl, ruy result In ...,_ cMI MCI criminal peneiUH,IfiCI will be prosec:Wid to the 
mulmum llllent pDSSibll IInder the I-. Tlll8 document wu procklced by AlA eoftWint at 15:59:36 Dll 0512812013 under Order ND.53800110183_1 which &~~Piru 
on 1011112013, end II not for n~ule. 
U..r Nota: (206032~77) 

I , 
t 

loC = -



lnlt. 

§ 10.3.5 The Con1ractor sba1l indemnify the Owner fur the cost and expense the Owncr inan (1) fur remcdiatioo of a 
material or substance the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, cr (2) where the Contracur fails to 
per:lQn~ its obligations UDder Section 10.3 .1, except to the extm.t that the cost and expa1BC are due to the Owner's fault 
or negligence. 

I 10.3.6 If, without ~on the part of the Contract«, the Contract« is held liable by a government 
ag~ fur the cost of nmcdiatioo of a bazarclous material or substance solely by reason of performing Wcrk as 
required by the Conbact Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Con1met« for all cost end expense tba'c:by 
iaetMed:incum:d, JJtOViik4 1bc Owner is i!!!I!V'!ti!tdy notified upm dilcoyay of the 'P'*RW or substance and 1be 
triafaial or J!9;bstanc:c ii,fi!!l!5l"!?d of in accqdance with all applic:able lawr/rwulations. 

I 10.4 EMERGENciES 
ln m ~~safety ofpenons or property, the Contractor 8ballect, at the Contractor's disaetion, to 
ptcvmt tbrea~ ~ge, injury or loss. Additimal compcDRation IX c:xtcnsion of time claUned by the Contractor em 
account of an cmc:igCJ~Cy shall be detamined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7. 

~~~~.!_ .. ~INPANCE:~D BONDS 
§ 1U ~· ""~S ·lWIIUTY INSURANCE 
I 11~ 1.1: The ~tree~ ~purdJ.asc fi:cm and maintain in a ccmpany or companies lawfully authOOzcd to do 
~in~ jurisdidiciimwhicb the Project is located such insurance as will protect the Contr~kW from claims set 
t&th bdow whiCh .y ariic Q.Ut .of or result fi:cm the Cmtrador' s opcratioos and amplcted operations \Dlder the 
C-ct ~for Vo!hidl:tbe CQI.tractor may be lega11y liable, whetha' such operations be by the Contractor or by a 
SUbcon1raetot IX by an:yono din:Ctly or indirectly cmplo)'M by any of them, or by anyone for whoee acts lillY of them 
may be liable: 

.1 Claims \Jidtr- wOr-kers' compmsatim, disability~ and other similar employee benefit acts that are 
app~elO tbc.Work to be pcrfmned; 

.2 Cl-b ~because of bodily injuryy occupational sickness or disease, or death of the 
Con~s ~oyces; 

.3 Claims· fur -~ because of bodily injury, siclmess or dil!le88C, or death of any penon other than the 
Contfacta"s employees; 

A Clailns fur~ insured by usual pcnonal injury liability coverage; 
.5 ClaimS fer .cllanages, other than to the Work i~ because of injury to or clestructioo of tangible 

pxopc:rty, includil;lg 10ss ofusc resulting thrmrom; 
.6 Claims for dam~ because of bodily injury, death. of a puson. or property damage arising out of 
~ mamtenance or usc of a motor vehicle; 

.7 Claims fur bOdily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and 

.a Claims involvinJ contractual liability insurance applicable to the Cmtractor's obligations under 
Section 3.18. 

I 11.1.2 The insurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be writtr.n for not less than limits of liability specified in the 
Contract llocumalts or required by law, wbidleva- coverage is greata". Coverages, whether written oo an occurralce 
or claDns-made besis, slWl ~maintained without interruption ftom the date of commencement of the Work 1mtil the 
date of final payment and taminati.on of my covenge required to be maintained after final paym.c:ot, and. with respect 
to the Contraetor's completed operatims coverage, until the c:xpiratim of the period fiX correctim ofWork or fur such 
other period fur maintmance of completed operations coverage as specified in the Cmnc:t Documc:nts. 

§ 11.1.3 Certificates ofinsurmce acceptable to the Owner shall be filed with the Owncrpri~X to c:ommc:ncement of the 
Work and thereafter upon rc:oewal or replacement of each requirai policy of insurance. These certificates and the 
insurance policies requirai by this Scctim 11.1 sba1J contain a provision that coverages aft'orded unda- the policies 
will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days' prior written notice bas been given to the Owner. An 
additional certificate evidencing continuation of liability covemac, including coverage fur campletcd operations, shall 
be submitt.cd with the final Application for Payment as require!! by Section 9.1 0.2 and thereafter upm renewal or 
replacement of such coverage until the c:~tpiration of the time required by Sedion 11.1.2. Information concerning 
reductioo of coverage on account of revised limits or claims paid under the Gaunl Aggregate, or both, shall be 
furnished by the Contractcr with I'CIBODihle promptness. 

AIADocUIIIIMA211t,.-2007. ~011111, 1915,1918,19ZS,111S7, 1851,1968,11181, 11183,111e8,11170,11178.111e7,19117 Mil 2007byTheAmerlcln 
lnatHuta of Archllacll. All rllhlll ,_.,..., WARNING: Thll AlA• Document .. proleCted by U.S. Copyright L-lllld lntemlltlon.t Trut111. Unautllorllecl 29 
reproduction or dlatrlbullon of thl• AJA• Document, or lily portion of It, m.,. ruult In ....,.,. civil 1nd crtmlnll ptnaltlel, .nd will be pro .. cuted to Ule 
m.nnum atMrt pos1lble underttle taw. TtMdocurnllntwa J)l'llduged byAIAIDIIwlre lit 15:5&:36on0512812013 under Order No.538001101&3_1 which...,_ 
on 10/1812013, llld 11 not for rulle. 
User Natll•: (2060324577) 

...... = ,... 



lnlt. 

§ 11.1.4 The Contractor aball cause the commcrc:ial liability coverage required by dle Comract Documents to include 
(1) the Owner, the Architect aod the Architect's consultants as additional insureds for claims caused in whole crin part 
by th~ Contractcr's negligent acts or omissions during the Contractor's opcratims; aod (2) dle Owner u an additional 
insured mr clahns caused in whole or in part by the Can1rac:tor' s negligent acts or omissims during the Contractor's 
complded ~tions . 

. §· M.a OIJIINiR'I L.IAIMLI1Y _INIUMN~ . &M llllliBtaiBiac the OrJBw'slii!IYIIIiallility iMumaee. 
~ Q\T.-r Mall M r-.I!III!Hle -~ 

I 11.3 PR~RTY ·~CE 
§ \1.3.1 u~~~provided, the Ownet~eandmaintain, ina company or 
CQtl\pBilics I-.w.tWiy allthcm.ed to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance 
written ~a bl,i.i.ldcr's rUk "~-risk" cr equivalmt policy form in the amOIDlt of the initial Contract Sum, plus value of 
~tCOiltre.ct ~~~ons and cost of mataials supplied or installed by others, comprising total value for the 
entire Projccl at ~ ~te mi ~ ~lacement cost basis without optiooal declw:tibles. Such property insurance sball be 

rruiin .. ~ :ual~ ~provided in the Contlact Documents or otherwise agreed in writing by all persons and 
entitiCS wlto ~R bc:l:tefici.:ri.C..of such :iDsurance, until final payment has been made as provided in Section 9.10 or until 
no~ or ai~ othtt ~ ihe Owner has an insurable intmest in the property required by this Scctioo 11.3 to be 
~ whidJ.M is~. ''IhiB insurance sbal1 include interests of the Owner, the Contractor, Subcontractors and 
Slib-~ooc.iti~ in thC ~ Nnthlpg in dlis section •halt be intqgctedaa a !'!'1JUit:qnqlt of the Owner to 
~!i·anchnamJ!iJdo~ofany kind 

I 11.3.~.1 ·~ ~.~be on an "all-risk" ar equivalent policy form and shall include, without limi1ation, 
~ agiiin .. ~~&-~fire (with extcDded coverage) and ph)'Bicalloss or damage including. without 
<tuplicati~ of oov~~ 1hcft, vandalism. malicious~ colla~ earthquake. ftood. windstmn, falsework, 
~ ~-~· temp<nry buildings and~ removal including demolition occasioned by cufurctment of any 
applic.ble legalreq~ and shall cover reasonable compensation for Ardritect's and Contractm's services and 
~reqUired. as a resUlt of such insured lcss. 

§ 11.3.1.21fthe0wnc:r~·notintmdtopurchasesuchpropertyinsuranccrequimlby1heContractandwithallofthe 
~eii ·in .tl)C aDlOQD.t described above, the Ownc:r shall so infurm the Contracta- in writing pior to OOIJlD1C2lCCtll 

oftlie Wade. The COntracttw-may~ effect insurance tbat will protect the interests of the Con1ractor, Subcontractors 
and Suh-~tntc:Unin the WcR,atid by appropriate Change Order the costthc:reofshall be charged to the Owner. 
lf4he (;:..,__. ... ..._,_l;y lie tiilwe ar~ efthe 9wa• te }WFahaee ar ndrtei& ia!NNMe as desefiltell 
aew, >M~.ee ~the G81lW!Mitef ill 'Mitiag; thea the~ +•U 'ellifllll reaeeaaWe aestB Jllep•ly 
·~ tliaite. 

§ 11.3.1.3 If the property insurance requires deductibles, the Owner sball pay costs not covered because of such 
deducti'bles. 

l11.3.1.41bis property insurance &hall covc:rportionsofthe Work stored oft' the site, and also portions of the Work in 
transit 

1 11.3.1.5 Partial occupancy or use in accordance with Section 9.9 shall not commence until the insurance C001p8DY or 
companies providing property insurance have consc:o.tcd to such partial occupancy or use by endorsement or 
othelwise. The OwDa- and the Coottactor sbal1 take reasooable steps to obtain coosent of the insurance company or 
companies and &ball, without mutual written consent. take no actioo with respect to partial occupancy or use that 
would cause cancellation. lapse or reduction of insurance. 

I 11Y 1011 iA MID Ms.t..CMINiiR¥ .. IUIU.JCE . . . Mtllifed ~the G•1RietQeelllllllltll er ey 
·- - · · hail aMIIIIHllllft IMIIflllM ~ th 9v!IIMF. g +an pmebaee II!MinaHnm•~ . . "ati II!Millllltil &aal~eeeptMN· ~ -~ ~ . = sWl~~peeifieally eewr INih iBtMe4 e8.Jesta Mia8 :' •=• .e 58 !Rilsa...._. ie theWerk, ·~·· .~ sb'l i&ektdeiMerllta eftheQwa.; C81l1raetef, IBfF a 

this......,.. M nsned iRnrM&. ad the 9wa•all C•traeter &Mil 

AIA.Dacum.ntAZ01,.•JODr. Co1¥10ht0 11111, 11116, 1918, 11125. 11137, 11151,1158, 11181, 1983,1988,1170, 19'78,19117,11197and 2007 byTheAmerlcln 
lnatltuta of An:hltllcta. M rtglds ,_rvad, WARNING: Tttls AJA• Dac:um•nt II prot.ct.cl by U.S. COpyright LIW and tnternatlanal Trwatfn. Unt~uthartzad 30 
,.procluc:tlDft or dlatrtbutlon of ttt• AJA• Dacum•nt, or any portion of It, may rHult In ,.,.,. civil and c:rlmlnal ,.n•ltl .. , •nd will be prosac:utad to tM 
maximum utent pas ... undertlla law. Thla clocUment wu produced by AlA IOilware at 15:58:36 an 05f2812013 undar Order No.!i360080183_1 wtdch uplres 
on 10118/2013, and Ia not for raeale. 
U.arNOCU! (20!i0~77) 

I 

l 
I 

QIC) = .... 



lnlt. 

§ 11.3.3 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE 
The Owner, at the Owner's option, may purdsase and mamtain sucll insurance as will insme the Owner against 1088 of 
use pftbe Owner's property due to fire or other hamds, however caused. The Owner waives all rights of action 

ag8inst the Contractor for loss of use of the Owner's property, including coosequentiallosscs due to fire or other 
hazards Jlewe.wf Mllfleli.not caused by tb.e contractor· 

I :··u,a.ot Ifthe GeataeterNif'M!Illl iB wfttieg tllatiMRitee &Nke et11er 4hllll these llea!Med 1MNie er etlle' epeeiel 
-• efl88!1 1te iMhiW ill the Jlf&petty illrM'IIlee peJiey, the OMter Mal&, ifpe!llliWe; iBelwle IRte1l iBaHrMee, lll4 
the eeat th•eefllhiA k eharged te 1he G8lltfaeter ~ 8JSPlepRate '>nap Qllef. 

§ 11.3.51f dQring the~ construction pmod the Owner inBulu properties, real cr pcnonal or both, at or adjacent 
~ the site by ptqperty .illsarance under policies separate from tbosc insuring the Project, or if after final payment 
prOperty ~ce is to be·pr:ovided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than tbose insuring the 
~ect during 1hc ~d.QJl period, the Owner sball waive all rights in accordance with the tcnns of Section 11.3. 7 
fbr ~g~ caused )y fire.ar.Pther causes of loss COVCRd by this separate property insurance. All separate policies 
shall ~de tbjS Waiver .~ ~tion by endorsement cr OCherwise. 

f 11.j.6.~~~ c:xp'OBU,I:e..Ul loss may occur, the Owner shall file with the Cmtractor a copy of each policy that 
includes. in~ ~required by this Section 11.3 .. Each policy shall cmtain all gmcrally applicable 
c<mdtfi~·cw.mti~, ·~CDS and endorsements related to this Project. Each policy shall contain a provision that 
the poJicywiJI·not :be·c:8nccl~:b.r allowed to expire, and that its limits will not be mluccd, until at least 30 days' prior 
writttn·mrtia has~~ tQ the Contractor. 

' ··--·-· -··-.. IRlheeatreeteN, ·' · · ·. J·OV' .... JIIII! -(ll--~""!.,--..,,. __ ·--loy 
t•WWtlMiii::· . .....,'Oii!M•....,• :IJ11oo -..---·••'-.""!..

1

u ·-!IW.._..,.~ , i:iiiiliho-. ... c • • .,._oc:; ._ ..... ...,_s .... ..,..., ..-:-!'""'"'~·'.<IP.._ ___ ":ll ..,._,_ o ,. ........ ~ ............ iO~if-o:= ..... ___ .,:z ...... ~-==....-.-.:.~ .......... _ _ ........... Wed<;-· .. --w-·--~ ___ _ ....... ~,.~-~ ..... ~':.. .. --.... :.~--..... -' . '•. &.!ii-····· . , , --~if- I ..... _.. ' . ~--- .. ;, -· .................... ,. ___ ~_ ... __ ......,.__ .. .oily--. 
--- ' . • .. __ • -.. -~. ....__ - dy .. ~ ., ___ ;: ... ·, lieMI-- ' ·-t~oooo~t-= ' ~-- ; "'""r: .. ~"':.;..;-...il!oae, "':'" ........ ·-~ .....,.. ... _-............. . ' litiao¥'•-~- -.....,o~;._,. ....... ·--........,.,""'""',-~ ___ ..,_ ... · ·efiWr" · · · -;w•-J.a-...~~: .. lf . • ....... tj . . ~ ...... ~ ., . ...... 

§ 11.3.1 A loss insured undo- the Owner's property insurance sball be adjusted by the Owner as fiduciary and made 
payable to the Owner as fiduciiry for tbe insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requiremc:nts of any 
applicable mortpgee clause and of Section 11.3.10. The Contractor sbal1 pay Subcontractcrs their just shares of 
insurance proceeds received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for 
validity, shall require Subcontractms to make payments to their Su~subcontractors in similar manner. 

§ 11.3.9 If required in writing by a party in interest, the Owner as fiduciary shaD, upon occur.rence of an insured 10811, 
give bond for proper pc::rformance of the Owner's duties. The cost of required bonds shall be charged against procccdB 
received as fiduciary. The Owner shall deposit in a separate account proceeds 110 received, which the Owner shall 
distribute in accordance with such agrec:mcnt as the parties in interest may reach, ar as determined in accordance with 
the method of binding dispute resolution selected in the .Agrecmcnt between the Owner and Contractor. If after sudl 
loss no othc=r special agreement is made and unless the Owner tenninatcll the Contract for convenience, replacement of 
damaged property shall be performed by the Contractor after notification of a Change in the Work in accordance with 
Article 7. 

§ 11.3.10 The Owner as fiduciary llball have power to adjust and settle a loss with insurers unless one of the parties in 
interest shall object in writing within five days after occurrence ofloss to the Owner's exercise of this power; if such 
objection is made, the dispute shall be resolved in the manner selected by the Owner and Contract« as the method of 

NA Document A201,.- 2007. Cop)flght C 1811, 1915, 1918, 1!1211. 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 11163, 19118, 1870, 1978, 11167, 19117 and 2007 by The American 
lnalltute of Arctlll8c:tl. Alllfllllts -rved. WARNING: This N/48 Document Is proi8Cted by U.S. Copyatght Law and lntem.tlonal TrNtlas. Unautfloatzed 31 
,.production or dlltffbutlon of thl• NA8 Document, or any portion of It, !lilly I'MIIIlln aevere ciYIIand cltml.,.l pe.,.llle•, and will be prosecuted to the 
mal111111r1 extent poqlble under the llw. Thl•docUmentwu pi'Oducad by AlA aollwanilt 15:511:3aon0512812013 under OnlerNo.5380090183_1 whictlaplrw 
on 1011812013, and Is not for ~e~ale. 
UMrN~: (2050324577) 

0\ = ..... 



lnlt. 

binding dispute resolution in the Agreement If the 0wnC2' and Contracta have selected arbitration as the method of 
bindiog dispute rcsolutioo, the Owner u fiduciary shall make settlement with insuRn ~.in the cue of a dispute Ova" 

distribution of insurance proceeds, in accordance with the directions of the arbitrators. 

§ 11.4PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND 
§ 11,4.1 The Owner &baD. have the right to require the Cmtractor to fiunish boods covering faithful pcrfurmance of the 
Coilttact and payment of obliptiODB ari.si:og thereundtc as stipulated in bidding rcquiremcnts or specifically requjred 
in the Contract Documents on the date of execution of the Contract 

§ 11.4.2 Up<>Jl the requcstofanyperson or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary ofbonds covering payment of 
oo.J,igati.ons arising undtt'the Cmtract, the Cmtractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or 8hall au1h<rize a 
copytobe~ 

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
.s- ~2.1 ~coYeRntG. QF:·•K 
§. 12.1.1 If a .portion .Qfthe: W«k is cove'Zed contrary to the Architect's request or to requiranents specific:ally 
ex~ in the.CoiJttact~ts, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect's 
examiijation and be r.~ at the Contractor's expense without dum.gc in the Cootrac:t Time. 

§ ~2.~~Ihportion Of1JicWarkbas been covered tbattheArchitecthasnot specifically requested to examine prior to 
·its'br:Uig c~, tbt~may request to sec such Work and it shall be uncovm:d by the ContracUr. If 

. ·~ w~k js in ~ Wjth the Contract Documents, costs of uncovering and repJacc:meot shall, by appropriate 
~cOlder, bc·Rt the ~~·8 expense. If such Work is not in acc:ordance with the Contract Documents, such costs 
and the cost of COJiecti~ m..H be at the Contractor's expeose unless the condition was caused by the 0wnC2' or a 

sepamte contractor~ wJicli·~ the 0wnC2' shall be respoasiblc fur payment of such costs. 

. . N'wi!ia~:cftON OF wAI:iu §12.2~ " · ~~ 
§ 1U'tBEFORE ··OR ~- SUBSTANTIAL COMPLET10N 
'Ibe ~~ !1.\laU ~y correct Work n:jectcd by the Architect or failing to CODform to the requirements of the 
Co.Qtract ~.:whether discovered before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, 
Wed tK completed. ~.of c:omcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of 
uncow:rilig and·reptaccin~t, and compensation b' the Architect's secvices and expenses made necessary tbC2'eby, 
sb&ii be at ihe Contractor's expc;ose. 

§ 12.2.2 Af.TER SUIISTAtfriAL COMPLETION 
§ 12.2.2.1 Jn additim to the Contrac:tor's obligations under Section 3.5, it: within me year after the date of Substantial 
Completion of the Work or ~pated portion thereof or after the date fur COII1DlCilCCIIl of warranties establillbed 
untitirS~on 9.9.1, or by~ of an applicable special wammtyrcquimibythe Contract Documents, any of the 
Work is 'rowid to be not in acCordance with the rcquiremmts of the Cmtract Docwne:nts, the Contractor sball correct it 
pmmptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner bas previously givm the Contractor 
a writtal acceptance of~ condition. The 0wnC2' shall give such notice pnmptly after diBcovery of the cmditim. 
During the one-year period fur correction ofWork, if the 0wnC2' fAils to notifY the Contractor and give the Contlactor 
m opportunity to make thec:mrcctioo, the Owner waives therigh1s1orequirc correction bytheCmtractor and to make 
a claim ftlr breach ofwamnty. If the Contractor fails to COl'Mrt nonconfotming Work within a reasonable time during 
that pc:riod after receipt of notice from the Owner or An:bitect, the 0wnC2' may correct it in accordance with Section 
2.4. 

§ 12.2.2.2 The ono-year period for correction of Work sball be extended with respect to pmions ofWork first 
performed after Substantial Cootplction by the pCI'iod of time between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completioo of that portim of the Work. 

§ 12.2.2.31be one-year period for correction ofWorlt shall not be extended by corrective Wodtperformedby the 
Contractor pursuant to tbis Section m12.2. except for that wen directlY affected by fhe correction 

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
rcquiranc:ots of the Contract Documents and are neithC2' cotTeCted by the Ccmtractor nor ac:cepted by the 0wnC2'. 

NADocumentAZt1•-20D7, Cop)flghlC 1811,1816.111111,11125, 1937,11Hi1, 1868, 1881, 1883, 18116, 1970, 1976, 1f87.1997 and 2007 byTheAmerlcen 
lndtule of An:hlteclll. All riJIIIs ,....,..., WARNING: This AlA• Document I& pJOtactad by u.s. Copyright t..w and lnternaUonal Tnatlas. UnaudlortHd 32 
,.production or distribution of this NA• Document, or any portion of It, m~ ,.wllln HV .. civil and l;ftmlnal panaltlea, and wtll be proMCtdld to the 
IIIDin\11111 extent poaslble uncs.r then. Thla doc:Ument waa produced by AlA IOftware at t5c59:38 on 0512812013 undw Order No.S3800110183_1 which uplraa 
on 10111112013, and Is not for 1111111e. 
Uaer NDIH: (2060324577} 

' : . 
I 
J 

t 
i 
! 
! 

t 

t 
J 
I 
t 

= ...c 
...c 



lnlt. 

I 12.2.4 The Con~ shall bear the cost of c~ting destroyed or damaged CODSCruction, whedltr completed cr 
partia,lly ccmplcted, of the Owner cr separate cmtractors caused by the Contracm''s cmection or removal ofWork 
that is not in aaudance with the requircmmts of the Cmtract Documt:.nts. 

§ 12.2.5· Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 sba1l be coostrucd to establish a period oflimitatim with respect to 
other obligatioo.s the Contractor bas wda' the Contract Docwnc:ots. Establishment of the one-year period for 
CQttcCtion of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contredor to c:orrect the 
Work. and bas no relaticmhip to the time within which the obligati.m to comply with the Comract Documents may be 
s~ght to be entbn:ed, llOf to the time within which p-oceeclings may be commenced to establish the Cmtractcr' s 
UahiJity with respect to-e Cmtrador's obligations other tban specificaiJy to eottect the Wcrk. 

§ ,~3 ACCEPTANCE .Of· "ONCONFORMING WORK 
If the e>wn:cr ·ptders:to ·~ Work that is not in acc:crdance with the requirements of the Connct Documents, the 
Owner may dO so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as 
appropriate iuid eqUitible. ~ adjustment shaJl be effected whether cr not final payment has been made. 

A~ ·13. JettseJia.l.MEoUS PROVISIONS 
I 13:f .•• I.NG ·LAW.· .. · . 
~-C®~..U be~ by the law of the place wha'e the Project is located cx.crpt that, if the parties have 
sd~ lll'bitmiion U~·iildhod of binding dispute resolution, the Fedc::ral Atbitraticm Ad shall govern Section 1S.4. . . . ·. ·. 

§ '13i&®Cb&QRs MD ASsiGNS 
§ . U.2.1'~-0w.nct..and~~respectivelybind themselves, their partners,~ assigns and legal 
tqxeaeatatMs to-c:P~-~~ts and obligaticm contained in the ContrW Documents. Excrpt as provided in 
~.l3.2l~ nci~-i*t:Yto the Cootmct shall assign the Contract as a -Mlole wi.thwt written CODSalt of the other. 
If ei1bet party attaDpts 'tQ make sudl an assignment without such consart, that party sba1l nevertheless remain legally 
~"ble for all ol;>J.ilatiGP~. uodcr the Contract 

I 13.2.2-the Owner ~n,ay, Without CODSalt of the Cmtractor, assign the Cmtlact to a lender providing coostruction 
fioanq for the Project,· if the lmder assmnes the Owner's risJrts and obligations wder the Contract Documents. The 
CoiJtraciOr shall execute all consents reaMDahly required to filcilitate such assignment. 

§ 13.3 WRITTEN NonCE 
Written nQiice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the 
firm or entity, or to an officer of the co.tporati.on for which it was intended; cr if delivered at, or sent by registcml or 
certified mail or by couric:c service providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party giving 
notice. 

§ 13.4 RIGHTS AND REMBli!S 
§ 13.4.1 Duties and obligations impoeed by the Contract Docwnents and rights and remedies available thereunder 
shall be in additian to and not a limitation of duties, obliptions, rights and ranedies otherwise imposed or available by 
law. 

§ 1U.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect or Contractor shall coostitute a waiver of a right or duty 
afforded ihc:m UDder the Coot18ct, nor sba1l such action or fiUJure to act constitute 8pp'OVI1 of or acquiescence in a 
breach tba'e under, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

§ 13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS 
§ 13.5.1 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Wort shall be made as required by the Contract 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules ind regulatims or lawfiJl orders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor sball make ammgemcnts for such tests, inspections and 
apJXOVIlls with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Contract« shall give the Architect 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspectiOJlB are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such 

· proc:edures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1) tests, inspcctiOJlS or approvals that do not become requirements wtil 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (2) testB, inspections or approvals where building codes or 
applicable laws or regulati.ODI prdllmt the Owner tram delegating their cost to the Contractcr. 

NA Doculllent A201,. -1007. Cop)"'ghh 01911, 11115, 1918, 1112:15, 1937, 1951, 111158, 19111, 11183, 19118, 1970, 1978, 19117, 1997 •nd 2007 by Till American 
lnatftUIII of A!ehllllell. All rill'* ,_,..., WARNING: This AJA• Doc;yment Is protected by U.S. Cowlfltll Lft lnd lntlm1tlonal Tr .. llel. Un1uthom.d 33 
reproduction or distribution of tbls AJA• DocUIMnt, or arry portion of It, m.y rMUit In _.. civil Mel crtmln• pllllltlq, IHid wtll be prOMc:UIId to till 
mulmum uaent poa•lbl• undtr 1M a.w. Till• ciOCumentwu produced by AlA IOftWIIAI 11115:59:35 on 015128/2013 undll' Order No.5380090183_1 Which upii"M 
on 1Cll'l&/2013, end 11 not for rwela. 
UMrNoM: (2050324577) 

...-I 

...-I 

...-I 



lntt. 

§ 13.5.2 If the Architect, OWner or public authorities having jurisdiction determine 1hat pmioos of the Work require 
additiopal testing, inspectioo or approval not included uncia" Section 13.5.1, the Architect will, upon writtal 
authora..uanftom the Owner, instruct the Cmtractor to make ammgematts for such ldditima1 testing. inspection or 
approval by an entity acccptable to the Owner, and the Contractor 8hall give timely notice to the Architect of when and 
where tests and inspections are to be made so 1hat the Architect may be pra~ent for such procedurea. Sudl costs, except 
as provided in Section 13.5.3, shaD be at the Owner's expense. 

§ 13.5.3 If such procedures for testing. inspection or approval under Sections 13.5.1 and 13.5.2 reveal :fiU1W'e of the 
p.Oitioos oftbe Work tQ COJ:Dp1y with requirements cstablilihed by the Cmtract Documents, all costs made necessary by 
sutb fiillure ·Qicluding thcise of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect's services and cqJC:DBeS shall 
be at tbe ~notol''l! ~se. 

1 13.5.4 ltccjuired cetti1icates of testing. inspection or approval shall, lmlcss oth«wise required by the Contract 
Document\ ·be secureii by the Contrackr and promptly delivered to the Architect. 

§ 13.5.5Jfthe.Ardiit¢iftoobilcrvetests,inspectionsorapprovalsrequiredbytheContractDocumc:nts,the.Arcl:U.tect 
Will cto· s~ pJ:ompt1.Y lind, where practicable, at the nonnal place of testing. 

S 1S,5.;61'cst!f or~ conducted pursuant to the Cmtract Documents sba1l be made promptly to avoid 
~~ ttelayilfthe Work. 

1 ·43.11Nf8iir . ·-·-·· 
-~..;:flM······. 118 ... . · ~· . ~~ .- .•AFt!eG--.etQe811MeetiiiiMH.,_.. · · ,..e.s IIIII!)'. · ..... · · · . IBW18Uf th . ,.......,,IIIIi.:;:::~:...- '"'· .... ·--of; ....... ~- .. ~.~"! ... ·--~ pl'eiiR' ""1 8111 tiiBe te 1ime at the 

§ 1J.f TiJet! UliiTS· ()N. CLAIMS 
The .Owner and COnnctor shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, breach of 
Wll'J1IIl1Y or oth~se, yaiftst the other arising out of or .related to the Cmtract in accordance with the requirements of 
the 1mal dispiiter.uuii.,cm method sc1ected in the Agreement within the time period specified by applicable law, but in 
any c8sc not mOn: tban 10 )'aU'S after-the date of Substantial Completion oftbe Work. The Owner and Contractor 
waive all~ and C8Uiles of actiOn not comm.c:nced in ~c:c with this Sectic:n 13.7. 

ARTICLE 14 . . TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 
§ 1t1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR 
I 14.1.11heContractor may terminate the Contract if the Worlds stopped for a paiod of30 coosccutive days through 
no~ ('I' fiwltoftb.c Contractar or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor or their ageots cr ~lo~ or any other 
persons or entities performing pcrtions of the Work unda' dinlct or indim:t contract with the Contractor, fer any of the 
follo.wing reasons: 

.1 IBBUancc of an CX'der of a court or other public authmtybavingjurisdictim tbatrequin:s all Work to be 
stopped; 

.2 An act of govcmmcnt, such as a declaratim of naticnal emergency that requires all Work to be stepped; 

.3 Because theArcbi.tccthasnotissucda Cati.ficate for Paymentandhasnotnotified theCmtractorofthe 
reason for withholding ccrtificatim as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not made 
payment oo. a C«tificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract .Documc:nts; or 

.4 The Owner bas failed to finnish to the Cmtraaa P'omptly, upon the Cantractor' s request. reasooable 
evidence as required by Section 2.2.1. 

§ 14.1.21he Contractor may terminate the Contract if; through no act or fiwlt of the Contractor cir a Subcontractor, 
Sub-subcontract« or their agmts or employees or any other pcnons or entities perfonning portions of the Work undc:r 
dim:t or indirect contract with the Contractor, rq>eated suspCIISim.s, delays or intcmJpti.oos of the entire Work by the 
Owner as dcsc:ribed in Section 14.3 constitute in the aggregate more tbm 100 percc:nt of the total number of days 
scheduled for complctim, or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less. 

AlA Documllll AZD1""- 2007. Cclp)flght 01811, 1815, 11118, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1D58, 1961, 11183, 1988, 1870. 1978. 111117, 18117 end 2007 by Tr. American 
lnatlt!M of Archlllle:ts. All lflhtiNiefftd. WARNING: Thll AJA• Do.:11111entll protel:tiCI by U.8. Copyright LIW end lntemldlanll Treldl•. Un1uttlortud 34 
reproduc:tiCin or diAtlbuCion of this AJA• DociiiM!II, or MY poltlon of ll, ~result In severe .:lvll end l:rlnllnllpelllltln, and will be JKOMC'*«< to the 
mutmum atent possible under the lew. This document- p!OCU:ed by AlA IOftwlre at 115:511:38 on 05/2812013 under Ordlt No.5380090183_1 wtllct\ uplru 
on 1011812013, and I• not for rHIIe. 
..... NcMa: (2050324577} 

I . 
I 

' 

M 
...-4 
...-4 



I nit. 

§ 14.1.3Ifoneofthereasmadescribedin Sectim 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contract« may, upon~days' 
~ttm notice to the Owner ,.nd Architect, tcnninate the Contract and recover ftom the Owner payment for Work 

executed, including reasonable overhead and profit, costs incurred by reason of such termination, and damages. 

§ 14.1.4 If the Worlds stopped for a pmod of60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Cmtractor or a 
Subcontractor « their agents or employees or any other pcnons pm'orming portions of the Work Ullda' con1ract with 
the Cmtracta because the Owner has repeatedly &iled to fulfill the OWner's obligations under the Con1ract 
DocUments with respect to mattm impcx1ant to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional 
d~Jys' written notice to the Owner and the Arclritcct, tcnninate the Cmtract and recover ft<lm the Owner as provided in 
S~on 14.L3. 

§ 14.2 TERMJ~nON eY lHE OWNER FOR CAUSE 
t ·1u.1 'Ihe<Aw.tc • faminate the Cootract if the Contractor 

.1 l'q)eltedl}' tet'uses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; 

.2 fails:-to:Jiiakc'pfymCDt to Subcontractonl for materials or labor in w:ordance with the respective 
~ ¥Wcc:n the Contractor and the Subcontractors; 

.3 ~y ~prds applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
~ of I pPb).ic authority; or 

.4 athc:rwi8C ~ &uiJty of substantial breach of a provision of the Cootmct Documents. 

§ ·14.#.2 When ao.y.ol'tJlc:ibove reasons exist, the Owner, upon certificatim by the Initial Decision Maker that 
sufticient c;a~e et1sts 10·~ such actioo, may without prejudice to any other riahts or l'C'.DlCdies of 1he Owner and 
~giw,g·theCcmtr8CtQrila4~eCootractor'ssurety, if any, seven days' writtcnnotice, tenninateemploymcntofthe 
Ccmttactor an4 U..y, subj«:t tO any prier rights of the surety: 

.1 Bxclpde·~ eOntractcr from the site and take possession of all mata.ials. equipmmt, tools, and 
~on equipment and madlinery thcnon owned by the Contractor; 

.2 A~ "assi~t of subcm1racts pursuant to Sectioo S.4; and 

.3 Finish the.W<Rby whatever IQ&QDilble method 1he Owner may deem ClltpCd.icnt Upon written request 
of the Colmactcr, the Owner abal1 1\uniab to the Cmtract« a detailed accounting of the costs incurred 
by~ OWner in finishing the Work. 

§ 14.2.3 When the OWntc tcnmnates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor sball 
not be entitled to receive further pi)'lbmt 1Dltil the Work is finished. 

§. 14.2.4· If the Ullp4li.4 balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, inclucting compensation for 
the An:hitcct's services and expmses made neccssuy thereby, and other damages inCUITed by the Owner and not 
expressly waived, such excess sball be paid to the Cootractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balan~ 
the Con1tact« Bball pay the di.fleralcc to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractcr or Owner, as the case 
may~ sQll.be ca1ifi.ed by~ Initi8J Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for paym.mt &ball survive 
tenniuation of the Cmtract. 

§ 14.3 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay cr interrupt the Wcrk in 
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. 

§ 14.3.2 The Cmtract Sum and Contract Time mall be adjusted for inaeases in the cost and time caused by 
suspension, ~or intcmJption as described in Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. 
No adjust:me:nt sba1l be made to the extent 

.1 .that perfmmancc is, was or would haw been so suspended, delayed or intcnupted by another cause for 
which the Contractor is responsible; or 

.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or dmied under another provision of the Contract 

§ 14.4 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 
§ 14.4.1 The Owntc may, at any time, terminate the Cmtract fur the Owner's convenience and without cause. 

I 14.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice :from the Owner of such termination for the Owner's convarlence, the 
Canttactor sball 

AlA Document AI01 111 -.1007. Ccp)flghtC 1911, 1815, 1918, 1825, 1937, 11151, 11158, 1861, 10113, 1te6,1970, 197e, 1887, 11197and 2007 byTheAmarlcln 
1ne11Mt of Archttec:ll. All rlghb -rviCI.. WARNING: Thla AJA• Do-•nt Ia protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lntem.tlon•l T~atles. Un•uthortucl 35 
r.productfan or distribution of tt*IIJA• Document, or any pOitlon of 1t. 111~ ,..ult In..,.,. ciYH and Cflnlln81 ,.,......., and will be ,-clllad to the 
IMidnlunt extent poqlllle under lht lnl. Thll doc:wnent wu produced~ AJA .._ et 15:58:38 on 0512812013 under Onler No.5310090183_1 wNch upiNI 
on 1011812013, •nd II not for rea•Je. 
UHr Notes: (2050324677) 

;, 

t 

\ 
I, 

' 

ff'l ..... ..... 



lnlt. 

I 

.1 caase operations as directed by the Own« in the notice; 

.2 take actims necessary, or that the Owner may direct, fur the protection and p-escrvation of the WOik; 
and 

.3 except for Work directed to be pc:rfonned prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice. 
terminate all CJtisting subcontraets and purchase mJers and enter into no fUrther subcontracts and 
purchase orders. 

§ 14.4.3 In case of sucll tamination for the Owner's canvmic:nce, the Contractor shall be c:ntitled to receive payment 
for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasmable overhead and profit on the 
Wqt"k not executed. 

ART1CLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUT£S 
~- ~5.1 CIA,iM$ 
-§ ·t5.1.1 D~otf. 
A Claim~ a·.~ or ~on by one of the parties seeking. as a matter of right, payment of money, or other relief 
with resp~ to th~ ~ of~ Contract The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in qutstion 
~ ~ Own~ -llitld CCotr:actm arising out of or relating to 1hc Contnlet. The rcspOIISlbility to substantiate Claims 
sball fest Wl"'lh tbCpalty ~the Claim. .· ... 

1.1$;1_,2 NOll¢i ·Of .ClA .. I 
ct.hnS by eitli« tbo.0wJler- or Contractor must be initiated by writttn notice to the other petty and to the Initial 
qeciliion ·~ with-.a -¢0PY:11Cnt to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker. Claims 
tiY citbtir party ~t tJe initi-.~-within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 
da}'S after' 1be eJairi:wrt first ~ecognius the conditioo giving rise to the Claim. whicheva- is later. 

§ 1~1.3 CQNTfN~ -~CT PERFORMANCE 
P~~ ~Jlfi ofa;Ctaim, e:Jtcept as odu:rwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article 14, 
the~ sbiliJ. ~.diligmtly with pafoumnce of the C<ntract and 1he Owner shall C011tiJJue to make 
ptymc:nts in a~ Witb the Contract Documents. The Architect will prepare Oumge Orders and issue 
Ccrtincates for Payment in aCC01dancc with the decisions of the Initial Decision Maker. 

§ 15;1A CLAIM$ fOR AOOmONAL ~orr 
If the ContraCtor vii,shes to make a Claim for an inaeuc in the Contract Sum, written notice as provided herein sba1l 
be givat beftxc proceeding to ex~~ Wak. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emctgc:n.cy 
cn.clangctiDg life or )JfClPerty arising under Section 10.4. 

§ 15.UCLAIMS FOR ADDmQJW. TIME 
§ 15.141· If die Contractor wUhes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, writtat notice as provided 
hCI'Cin slWI be given.. The Caatractor's Claim sbaD include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on 
progress Ofthe Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. 

§ 15.1.5.21f adverse watha- conditims are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documc:nted 
by data substantiating tbat 'Walther conditiaDll were aboonnal f<r the period of time, could not have been reasonably 
anticipated aod had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction. 

§ 15.1.8CLAJMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for conscquential damages arising out of or relating to this 
Cmtmct. This mutual waiver includes 

.1 ~incurred by the Owner for rental c:xpcn.scs, fir losses ofll!JC, income, profit, financing. 
business andreputatioo, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of liUCh 
persons; and 

.2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compcn.sati011 of 
perBODDel statiooed there, fur losses of financing, business and reputation, IIDd for loss of profit except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. 

AlA Docwnent AZ01"'- 2007. CopyrtghtO 1911, 1915, 1918, 11)25, 1137, 1851, 1858, 1961, 19113, 11M18, 1970, 11178, 1987, 19117 and 2007 by Tlla American 
lnllllullt of Archllactll. All rtghta .._.IWd. WARNING: This AIA1 Doc11111ent .. protectH by U.S. Copyright Law and lntem.tlanal T .. au.. Un1uthorlzed 36 
,.production or dlatrtbullon of thll AIA1 Docum1nt, or 1ny portion of It, may .. ault In ..,.,. clvllllld crlmflllll p1naltllla, and will ba prDMcu&ed to the 
muflftum extetrt poMible under the law. This claeumentwaa produced by AlA 1oflware at 15:59:38 on 0612112013 under Order No.53800110163_1 which upne 
on 1011812013, 8lld Is not far !lillie. 
U..r Nollie: (2050324577) l 

"'S' 
~ 
~ 



lniL 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to aU consequential damages due to eitha- party's termination in 
accordance with Article 14. Noebing contained in this Section 1 5.1.6 sbaU be deemed to prcc:lude an award of 
liquidated damaF', when applicable, in accordance with the rcquircments of the Contract Documents. 

§ 15.21NITIAL DECISION 
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those arising 1md« SectiODS 10.3, 10.4, 11.3.9, and 11.3.10, shall be referred to the Initial 
D~an Maker fur initial decision. The Architect will SCl'VC as the Initial Decision .Maka', Ubless othc:rwise indicated 
in the .Agrecmcnt. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision aball be required as a 
cooditim precedent to mediation of any Claim ariaing pior to the date fiDai payment is due, unless 30 days have 
~ after the ClainJ .lias been referred to the Initial Decision MakCI' with no decision having be= I'CIIld«ed. Unless 
the Initial Decision .Maker and aU affected parties aaree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between 
the Contracfa and P.~ or entities other than the Owner. 

§ 1"!.2.2 ~~ ·Jjlitial bcc;ision Maker will review Claims aDd within teo days of the receipt of a Claim take one or more 
Qfthe foJ19Wing aCtiOiui: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a respOD&C with supporting data 
from thC ~ paity, (2) ~the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, ( 4) suggest a compromise, or (5) 
~ ~·l*tiei tbafthe W.~ Decision Maka- is 1mable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Mlbr lacb 
sufficient irdOrmatim to cVah;J8te the merits of the Claim. or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the Initial 
~<ii.Make;'s. sOle ~ it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim. 

' . . . .. 

§ 15:U In $,l~CJi,hbs, the Initial Decisioo MakCI' may, but shall not be obligated to, CODJUlt with or seek 
~~QnJhm ¢itbt;t.~.or from pa-sons with special knowledge or expertise v.ho may assist the Initial Decision 
~in rca\~J:dec:isi~ The Initial Decision Maka: may request the Owner to authorize retention of such 
persons at the<>"Wnet's ~ 

§ 1UA If the Initi.all).ecUiion Makr.r requests a party to provide a response to a Oaim or to furnish additiooal 
~ daia, such plrty.ilhall respmd. within ten days after receipt of such request, and lball either (1) provide a 
respqniC m the rcctuested. ~data, (2) advise the Initial Decisioo Maka- v.hen the response or supp<xting data 
will~ ti;JJ;t!isb~ or(~) a4vise 1he Initial Decision Mal= that no suppcllting data will be fumillb.cd. Upon receipt of the 
~Or~ data, if any, the Initial Decision Mal= will either- reject or approve the Claim in whole or in 
part. 

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving cr rejecting the Claim, ar indicating that 
the Initial Decision MaJa:r is W\llble to resolve the Claim. This initial decisioo &ball (1) be in writing; (2) state the 
re8soos thcretor; ~ (l) notify the parties and the An:bitect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision 
Maker. of any cban&e in the Cm1ract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shaJl be fiDai and binding on 
the parties but subject to mcdiatioo and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute tbrougb mediation, to binding dispute 
reaolub.oo. 

§ 15.2.1 Either perty may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the tams of Section 15.2.6.1. 

§ 15.2.8.1 Either part¥ may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party 
file for mediatioo within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demaud 
fails to file for mediatioo wi1hin the time required. then both parties waive their rights to mediate or p1nue binding 
dispute resolutioo proceedings with respect to the initial decision. 

§ 15.2.7 In the evart of a Claimapinsttbe Cootract«, the Owner may, butianotobligatcdto, notify the surety, if any, 
of the n.aturc and amount of the Claim. If the Claim rdates to a posst"bility of a Contracttrs default, the Owner may, 
but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the swety' s assistance in resolving the controveny. 

§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic's lien, the party uscrting sudl Claim may proceed in 
accmJance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 

§ 15.3 MEDIATION 
§15.3.1 Oaims, disputes,«¥ other matters in controvmy arising out of or related to the Cmtract except thoec waived 
as povided for in Sccti.ms 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.6 sbail besubjecttomediatimasaconditionpm:ede:ntto binding 
dispute resolutim. 

AlA DocUIMftl AI01,.- 21107. Cowtght C 11111, 11115, 11118, 1825, 11137, 11161, 11168, 1H1, 1983, 11188, 11170, 11178, 11187, 19&7 and 2007 by The AmMICIII 
lnllltutlt of Arc:hltlcll. All rlthlll ... rved. WARNING: Th .. AJA• DoCIA'henl Ia protected by U.S. Copyright Law •d ln .. mttlonal TIWitla. Unawlhorlad 37 
twpnld~ or dlatrlbutlon of this NA• Doe11111ent, or any portion of II. lniJ rMVIt In - ciYH llllCI crtmlnll.,......_, lnd willie ~ue.d to the 
lftlldiiM.-. utant ~ undarthe law. Thllcloc:umentwa pocU:8d byAJAsollww .. t 15:eo:38on0512&'2013 underOnlerNo.534100S10163_1 whlchupi!Q 
on 1011812013, and 11 not for rasele. 
UaerNola8: (2050324577) 

I(} 
..-.I ..... 



kilt. 

I 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation wbicll, uoless the parties mutually agree 
~crwisc, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Coostructimlndustry 
M~m Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mcdiati<m sbaD be made in writing, 
delivered to the otha'party to the Ccmtract, and filed with thepmon or entity administering the mediation. The request 
may be made concurrently with the filing ofbinding dispute resolution proceedings but, in sudl event, mediation shall 
~in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which sba1l be stayed pending mediation for a period of 
60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties oc court <rdcr. If an 
~tration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties maynoncCheless proceed to the selection of the 
llrbitrat01(s) and agree upon a schedule fur later proceedinp. 

i 15.3.31h~· P.a.:ties s1W1 "tbare the mediator's &e and any filing fees equally. The mediatim shall be held in the place 
where the Pi(,ject is i~ unless another locatim is mutually agreed upon. Agreements n:adled in mediation shall 
bC e.ofcrcr.able_u seftlement agrcement8 in any r.ourt having jurisdiction 1b.c:tt.of. 

§ 15.4AQri'RAnON 
§ 15.~1-lfth~ P,8:11i~ have ~c:ctcd arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolutim in the~ any 
Cl~ ~ctt tO,. but not ri;SQlwcl by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
~ ·shail:bc·~ by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with im Construction Industry 
Atbi~ti.Oil Rlib·m ~·:on the date of the Agreement. A d&mmd for arbitration shall be made in writing. delivered 
~·t~r,e OChrl i-.tY ~ ~-~ and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitndion. The party filing a 
rioti~ "of demind h iJbitration must asscn in the demand an Claims thm known to that party on which arbitratioo is 
pen:Di~tobe~iBdcct . 

§ ·15.U.1 A -~ fur·II:bdnrtian shall be made no earlier dum. concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mcdiau~ bUt lnnb' ~ shaqit be made after the date whm the institutioo oflegal or equitable prorwxlinp based on 
~C18itll waul~ 1ie:bltted l;;y-'the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a 
wtitft21' cbDaDd tor arbitrllti(Ji by the penon or mtity administering the arbitration shall constitute the inltitution of 
lcgai or ClqUitablc procco~J;:ngs based on the Claim. 

§ 1U.2 The award r:endc:red by the arbitrator or arbitrators sball be final, and judgment maybe entered upon it in 
ace~ with &pplicablc law in any court having jmisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4..3 ~ furegoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
cmsented t9 by parties to the Agreement shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 

I 15.4.4C0Nt$0UDATION OR JOINDER 
§ 15.4.4.,1 Either party~ at its sole diacretion, may consolidate an aJbitration conducted un,dct this Agr=nent with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration aarcement governing the other arbitratioo 
permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural ndes and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 15.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole discrctico, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
conunoo question oflaw or fact \\hose presence is required if complete relief is to be acccxded in arbitration, provided 
that the party sought to be joined cmsents in "Writing to such joindrz. CODJCil.t to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute coosent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other- matter in question not 
described in the written cDilSCDt. 

§ 15.4A.a The Owner and Contractoc grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Scctioo 1 5.4, whether-by joinder or consolidation, the ll8DlC rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Coo.1Iactxr "IJDCI« this Agrctmr.nt. 

NA Document AJG1'~~~- 2007. CopyrightC 1911, 11115, 1918, 1925, 1937, 11161. 1958. 11161, 111113, 11188, 11170, 19711, 1987, 11197 and 2001 by The AIMI1cen 
ln1tnute of Archllacta. Nl rtghla .... ,. .... WARNING: Thla AJA8 Doe11111ant Ia protec;tad by U.S. Copyright Uw and lmrn.tlonal T .. atl •• Un.uthorlzad 3B 
raproductlon or dlstlibutlon of this AIA8 DoeUIMnt, or MY pottlon or It, IUY ruult In MY- civil and crflniMI paMidts, and wtu be pJOMc!Md to the 
rnaxllftum utenl poeall• und•r lila 18w. This clocumentwu piOCIUCid by AlA 1ollware al 15:69:38 on 0512812013 under Order No.531100901t13_1 Which uplrat 
on 11111812013, •nd Is not far raule. 
U.... NoiM: (2050324577) 

\C> 
...-! -



Cettification of Document's Authenticity 
AlA• Document D401'TM - 2003 

I, ROger A. Bosk.us, AlA. hc:rcby certify, to the best of my lmowledgc, information and beli~ tbat I created the 
aUaChed final document simultaneously with this certification at 15:59:36 on 05!2812013 under Orda' No. 
5360090163 1 from AlA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made DO 

changes to the mginal tat of AlA • Docmnc:nt A20ITM- 2007, Gcmc:ral Cooditions of1hc Cantract fur CaosCructim, 
q published, by the AU. m its software. other than dlanges shown in 1hc atfachecl final document by unda'8coriDg 
added text and striking e>vU deleted text. 

(Signed) 

(I'(tie) 

(DatiUJ) 

AlA Doc:....m 0401"' - uu. Copll!f9ht o 19821nd 2003 by The AmeltCIII'IInstllul& or Archllllc:1a. NfJtgla rwarvect. WARNING: Thla AlA• Dor:umant Ia I 
pi'Dt8Cted by U.S. Copyrtgllt L-and lmem.UOMI TI'Hllea. Unauthortucl reprodur:tlon or dlablbullon Dfthla AlA• Do~ment, or any portion of It, mey 1 
nault In MY-ei¥U ami r:rlnllnal penalties, Mel wiU be proucuted to tile malin IIIII ut.nt pqslbll under tile laW. TN• clocumsnt waa produced by AlA 
1Dftwlre at 15:511:311 on 0512812013 under Order No.5300080163_1 whlr:h uplrw on 1011&'2013, and ia not fot I8Ule. t 
UPr NotM: (205032o4677) l 

\ 
~ 

t-
..-1 
..-I 



RESOLUTION NO., __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A JOINT 
STREET PROJECT WITH THE CITY OF 

BETHEL HEIGHTS 

Whereas, the City of Springdale shares a portion of Jefferson Street 
and Kendrick Lane with the City of Bethel Heights, and 

Whereas, the City of Bethel Heights has received State Aid Street 
funds in the amount of $250,000, and 

Whereas, it is in the best interest of both the City of Springdale and 
the City of Bethel Heights to partner together to pave the shared portions of 
Jefferson Street and Kendrick Lane, and 

Whereas, the City of Springdale's portion of Jefferson Street would 
cost $16,683 for Public Works to pave using in-house labor and equipment 
and it would cost $7,524 to pave the City's portion of Kendrick Lane, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to participate in a joint street project with the City of Bethel Heights 
and reimburse the City of Bethel Heights the amount of $24,207 for paving 
Springdale's portion of Jefferson Street and Kendrick Lane. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 25th day of March, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

:&!--~-?-~ 
Ernest B. Cate, City Aft.orney 

QO 
~ 
~ 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF TRE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS 

FOR PLANTING TREES ON DON TYSON PARKWAY 

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Springdale (the Club) and the City of Springdale 
entered into an agreement to share equally in the construction of a 
playground in Rotary Park with an estimated cost of $600,000, and 

WHEREAS, the City's share of the construction of the playground was $252,547 and 
did not require all of the $300,000 committed to this project, and 

WHEREAS, the Club and the City also agreed to share in the renovation of the 
adjacent basketball court and the City's share of that project was 
$13,978.50, and 

WHEREAS, there is a balance of $33,474.50 remaining of the $300,000 appropriation 
for these projects, and 

WHEREAS, there is a need to plant trees in the median of Don Tyson Parkway 
between Thompson and Hylton Road and the Club has committed up to 
$10,000 for this project, and 

WHEREAS, Tyson Foods, Inc., has committed up to $5,000 for this project, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS that the City Council hereby approves spending 
$28,474.50 of Capital Improvement Project funds for planting trees in the median of Don 
Tyson Parkway between Thompson and Hylton Road. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 25th day of March, 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

9ti:: ·G& 
Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

e-. 
~ 
~ 



.... 

'(~(~~t~~~:\:~ 
-~--www .proscape77.com 

423 Oak Grove Rd. Springdale, AR 72762 Phone: (479) 751-2764 Fax: (479) 750-0578 

March 10, 2014 

City Of Springdale 
291 Spring Street 
Springdale, Arkansas 72764 

Reg: Joint Venture Project with Rotary Club Of Springdale - Tree Planting Don Tyson Parkway 

138 2" Sugar Maple Trees 285.00 ea 
Sales Tax: 

Total Cost: 

39,330.00 
3,834.67 

$43,164.67 

Price includes: all materials, labor, and installation. Price also includes transplanting often 
existing trees from median to one of Springdale Public schools. Also included is the digging up 
of any other trees the city may want to transplant themselves. We will need the city to help with 
traffic control while we plant. Tree staking is not included. We will warranty all Sugar Maple 
trees to leaf out this spring. City of Springdale to deep water trees within two day after planting. 

Time is of an essence, the existing trees need to be transplant as soon as possible to give them 
better chance of survival. We have located the 13 8 - 21

' Sugar maple trees, however we need to 
give our supplier a commitment to hold them for us. 

Thank you so much for asking me to quote this project for you. 

Jeff Q. Hunter 
Proposal Approved (Signature & Date)* 

Q2~ ~/cf-bl+ ;p '50 

<1 '33J '-11~~.,;\: ~)Q; ~f~jl\1 
t-~{trJ ~ 

= M -



ORDINANCE NO., __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 
AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 
FOR THE PLANTING OF TREES ON DON TYSON 
PARKWAY; TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING; 
TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, there is a need to plant trees in the median of Don Tyson Parkway 
between Thompson Street and Hylton Road; 

WHEREAS, in order to get these trees planted in time for spring, and since it 
would be advisable to use the same company who planted similar trees in the median on 
Don Tyson Parkway west of Thompson Street, it is necessary to waive competitive 
bidding; 

WHEREAS, the city will negotiate a contract with Professional Landscaping 
Company, LLC, of Springdale, in an amount not to exceed $28,474.50, for the planting of 
these trees; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute a negotiated contract with Professional Landscaping Company, LLC, 
in an amount not to exceed $28A74.50, for the planting of trees in the median of Don 
Tyson Parkway between Thompson Street and Hylton Road; 

IT IS FURTHER ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that because of the exceptional situation described 
above, competitive bidding is not deemed feasible or practical and therefore competitive 
bidding is waived. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE. It is hereby declared that an emergency exists and this 
ordinance, being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of Springdale, Arkansas, shall be in effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day of 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

~r:::~ 
Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

FmestCa/2014misc/ORDtreesDI'P 

...-1 
M 
...-1 



ORDffiANCENO •. ____ __ 

AN ORDffiANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 
AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER ffiTO A CONTRACT 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
POLES/MAST ARMS FOR THE DON TYSON 
PARKWAY/40m STREET INTERSECTION TRAFFIC 
SIGNAL; TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING; TO 
DECLARE AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, the City is currently working on improvements to Don Tyson 
Parkway, which includes the installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of Don Tyson 
Parkway and 40th Street; 

WHEREAS, in order to receive the needed traffic signal poles/mast arms in a 
timely manner, to avoid fees associated with expedited delivery charges, and to avoid 
delays in this project so that this traffic signal can be in place by the time schools 
commence for the 2014 fall semester, it is necessary to waive competitive bidding; 

WHEREAS, the city will negotiate a contract with Traffic & Lighting Systems, 
LLC, for the needed traffic signal poles/mast arms for this project, as stated in the quote 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute a negotiated contract with Traffic & Lighting Systems, LLC, for the 
needed traffic signal poles/mast arms for the Don Tyson Parkway/40th Street intersection 
traffic signal; 

IT IS FURTHER ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that because of the exceptional situation described 
above, competitive bidding is not deemed feasible or practical and therefore competitive 
bidding is waived. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE. It is hereby declared that an emergency exists and this 
ordinance, being necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of Springdale, Arkansas, shall be in effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __ day of 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

a-~-~ 
Ernest Cate, City Attorney 

Emc:stCa/2014misc/OR.DsignaiDTP 

M 
M 
~ 



LLC 
~ 13305 N. SANTA FE 

OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73114 
('105) 524·1341 • FA)( (405) 524·2386 

March 14, 2014 

Mr. Dub Janczys 
City or Springdale 
269 E. Randall Woebbe Lane 
Springale, AR 72764 

CITY OF SPRINGDALE 
DON TYSON & 40TH STREET 
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLES 

Dear Mr. Janczya: 

The following Is a quotation you requested for traffic signal pole assemblles on the above subject project. 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL ITEMS 
AHTO 38' Trame Signal Mast Arm Assy w/20' Lum. Arm., GV, 
AB, VMD 1.00 EA 
AHTD 46' Traffic Signal Mast Arm Assy w/20' Lum. Arm .• GV, 
AB,VMD 1.00 EA 
AHTD 48' Trame Signal Mast Arm Assy wt20' lum. Arm., GV, 

1 AB,VMD 1.00 EA 
AHTD 52' Traffic Signal Mast Arm Assy w/20' Lum. Arm., GV, , AB, VMD 1.00 EA 

TOTAL THIS QUOTATION 

QUOTATION NOTES: 

UNIT 
PRICE 

$ 7,600.00 $ 

$ 9,850.00 $ 

$ 10,315.00 $ 

$ 11,000.00 $ 

== $ 

All Steel Poles are Designed to meet the AASHTO Standard Specifications for Structural Supports for Highway Signs, 
Luminaires and TrafRc Signal&, 4th Edition (2001) with 2003 and 2006 Interims. · 

2 Lead Time is based on current business conditions and is subject to change at the time of release. 
3 Lead time is 11 • 13 weeks from receipt of approved drawings. 
4 Prices Include anchor bolts and galvanized finish. Signal Hangers, brackets and CGB connectors are not included. 
5 Freight is included for delivery to Springdale, AR. Customer responsible for unloading. 
6 Sales tax Is not included. 
7 Payment Terms are Net 30 days. 

I appreciate the opportunity to quote you on this project. Please do not hesitate to call if you have any questions. 

r 

pe:'~r\~ 
David N. Willis, President 
Trame & lighting Systems, LLC 

AMOUNT 

7,600.00 

9,850.00 

10,315.00 

11,000.00 

38,766.00 

~ 
N 
~ 



That which is underscored is added; that which is stricken through is deleted. 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 4.10 OF THE 
PERSONNEL AND PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS 

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2014, the City Council for the City of Springdale, Arkansas, 
adopted a Resolution amending Section 4.10 of the Personnel and Procedures Manual for the 
City of Springdale, Arkansas, to create "On-Call" pay for certain City employees; 

WHEREAS, certain the provision providing for "On-Call" pay should be amended to 
provide that "On-Call" pay should not be allowed on days when the employee is using sick 
leave, unless approved by the Mayor; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS, that: 

Section 1: Section 4.10 of the Personnel and Procedures Manual for the City of 
Springdale, Arkansas is hereby amended to read as follows: 

4.10 Additional Compensation for Certain Employees: 

In addition to regular pay, including any holiday compensation, certified full-time 
paramedics of the Springdale Fire Department shall receive an additional salary 
compensation, to be determined by the City Council. Those full-time firefighters 
who are members of HAZMA T shall receive additional compensation in an 
amount to be determined by the City Council. 

Police officers who have attained any certificate, except the Basic Certificate, 
under the Arkansas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards, shall receive an 
additional compensation each month for each certificate earned above the "Basic 
Certificate," and said compensation amount shall be set by the City Council. 

Animal Control Officers, employees of the Information Technology Department, 
employees of the Public Works Signalization Division, and designated employees 
of the Police Department shall receive additional compensation of $15.00 per day 
when required to be "On-Call" after normal work hours. The designated 
employees of the Police Department entitled to "On-Call" compensation shall be: 
1) Criminal Investigation Division Sergeant; 2) Criminal Investigation Division 
Detective; 3) In-House Narcotics Detective; 4) Drug Enforcement Agency 
Detective; and 5) 4th Judicial Drug Task Force Detective. Provided. however. that 
an employee shall not be eligible for "On-Call" compensation on any day that the 
employee is using sick leave. unless approved by the Mayor. 

All additional pay set out in this policy is paid bi-weekly, and such compensation 
is set out on the employee's paycheck. 

Section 2: All other provisions of Section 4 not specifically modified herein shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this day of 2014. 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, City Clerk 

AP!jW~D AS JO FORM: 
~~.__(~ 

Ernest B. Cate, City Attorney 

EmestCai2014Misc/RESOPersonne1Sec.4.10(2) 

Doug Sprouse, Mayor 

"'f' 
N -



ORDINANCE NO. __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE ORDERING THE RAZING (DEMOLITION) 
AND REMOVAL OF A CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL 
STRUCTURE WITHIN THE CITY OF SPRINGDALE, 
ARKANSAS, LOCATED AT 4003 SOUTH THOMPSON 
ST.; TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, , is the owner of certain real property situated in Springdale, 
Washington County, Arkansas, more particularly described as follows: 

Part of theSE 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 14, Township 17 North, Range 
30 West, described as follows: Beginning at a point on the existing right 
of way line of US Highway 71, which point is 40 feet East and South 0 
deg. 31' East 308.7 feet from the Northwest corner of said forty-acre tract; 
thence North 89 deg. 28' East 70 feet; thence North 0 deg. 31' West 87.9 
feet; thence North 3 deg. 53' East 130.4 feet; thence North 72 deg. 54' 
East 188.2 feet; thence North 1 deg. 02' West 37.4 feet to a point on the 
North line of the said forty-acre tract; (which point is 300.1 feet East from 
the NW corner of said 40-acre tract) thence East 44.9 feet; thence 110 
feet; thence East 300 feet; thence South 300 feet; thence West 300 feet; 
thence North 100 feet; thence West to the existing right of way line of US 
Highway 71 ; thence North along said right of way to the point of 
beginning. 

Commonly known as 4003 South Thompson St., Springdale, Washington 
County, Arkansas 
Tax Parcel No. 815-29477-000 

WHEREAS, the structure on the property is unfit for human habitation, 
constitutes a fire hazard, otherwise is dangerous to human life, or constitutes a hazard 
to safety or health by reason of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, obsolescence, or 
abandonment, and further is unsightly, and is considered an unsafe and unsightly 
structure in violation of Springdale City Ordinances (§22-32 and §91-37, et seq.); 

WHEREAS, the owner has been notified by the City of Springdale prior to the 
consideration of this ordinance, that the structure on the property is in violation of 
various ordinances of the City of Springdale, as well as the Property Maintenance Code 
of the City of Springdale; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 22-32 of the Ordinances of the City of 
Springdale, the owner was given thirty (30) days to purchase a building permit and to 
commence repairs on the property, or to demolish and remove the building from the 
property; 

WHEREAS, the owner has failed, neglected, or refused to comply with the notice 
to repair, rehabilitate or to demolish and remove the building, and as such, the matter of 
removing the building may be referred to the City Council pursuant to Chapter 22 and 
Chapter 91 of the Ordinances of the City of Springdale; 

WHEREAS, under Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203 and pursuant to Chapter 22 and 
Chapter 91 of the Springdale Code of Ordinances, if repair or removal is not done 
within the required time, the structure is to be razed (demolished) and/or removed; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF SPRINGDALE, ARKANSAS: 

Section 1. That the structure located at 4003 South Thompson St., Springdale, 
Arkansas, is dilapidated, unsightly, and unsafe; and it is in the best interests of the City 

J:\ CindyHorlick\2014 Files\ Ordinances\ Raze&Removal\ 4003 S. Thompson 
lf) 
~ 
~ 



of Springdale to proceed with the removal ·of this dilapidated, unsightly, and unsafe 
structure. 

Section 2. That the owner is hereby ordered to raze (demolish) and remove the 
dilapidated, unsightly and unsafe structure located on the aforesaid property; and, is 
further ordered to abate the unsightly conditions on the property. Said work shall be 
commenced within ten (10) days and shall be completed within thirty (30) days from the 
passage of this ordinance. The manner of razing (demolishing) and removing said 
structure shall be to dismantle by hand or bulldoze and then dispose of all debris, 
completely cleaning up the property to alleviate any unsightly conditions, in a manner 
consistent with the Property Maintenance Code, and all other state laWs and regulations 
pertaining to the demolition or removal of residential structures. 

Section 3. If the aforesaid work is not commenced within ten (10) days or 
completed within thirty (30} days, the Mayor, or the Mayor's authorized representative, 
is hereby directed to cause the aforesaid structure to be razed (demolished) and 
removed and the unsafe, unsanitary and unsightly conditions abated; and, the City of 
Springdale shall have a lien upon the aforesaid described real property for the cost of 
razing (demolishing) and removing said structure and abating said aforementioned 
conditions, said costs to be determined at a hearing before the City Council. 

Section 4. EMERGENCY CLAUSE: The City Council hereby determines that 
the aforesaid unsafe structure constitutes a continuing detriment to the public safety 
and welfare and is therefore a nuisance, and determines that unless the provisions of 
this ordinance are put into effect immediately, the public health, safety and welfare of 
the citizens of Springdale will be adversely affected. Therefore, an emergency is 
hereby declared to exist and this ordinance begin necessary for the public health, safety 
and welfare shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of , 2014. 

Doug Sprouse, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Denise Pearce, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

&~-~ 
Ernest B. Cate, CITY ATTORNEY 

J:\ CindyHorlick\2014 Files\ Ordinances\ Raze&:Removal\4003 5. Thompson 
~ 
M -


	Agenda 03-25-14
	6. Building Inspection Report - Feb
	7. Minutes- March 11, 2014
	9A. Ord. rezoning C-2 to C-5 SW corner of Elm Springs & Oak Grove Rd.  
	9B. Ord. rezoning O-1 to C-2 1503 Carley Rd. 
	9C. Reso. conditional use @ 589 White Rd. 
	9D. Reso. WAIVER @ 5190 Highway 112
	10. Ord. amending Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance 
	11A. Reso. amending Section 4.10 of the Personnel & Procedures Manual
	11B. Reso. adopting the City of Springdale Emergency Operations Plan for City Council & City of Springdale
	11C. Reso. authorizing the Mayor & City Clerk to enter into an agreement for automatic Mutual Aid between Springdale Fire & Lowell Fire
	11D. Reso. authorizing the Mayor & City Clerk to enter into an agreement for Emergency Medical Services w/ Benton County, Arkansas. 
	11E. Reos. authorizing execution of a Construction Management Contract for Fire Department improvement projects in 2012 Bond Improvement Program.  
	12A. authorizing a joint street project w/ Bethel Heights. 
	12B. Reso. by the City Council to the City of Springdale to appropriate funds for planting trees on Don Tyson Parkway. 
	12C. Ord. authorizing the Mayor & City Clerk to enter into contract for planting of trees on DTP; to waive competitive bidding... 
	12D. Ord. to authorize the Mayor & City Clerk to enter into contract for the purchase of traffice signal poles/mast arms for DTP/40th St... 
	13. Reso. amending Section 4.10 of the Personnel & Procedures Manual...
	14. Ord. ording the razing & removal of a certain residential structure @ 4003 S. Thompson St. 



